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CORPORATE PROFILE
SREIfE o

Guoan International Limited (the “Company”) (Hong Kong
Stock Exchange stock code: 143 and Singapore Exchange
stock code: G11), together with its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”), is principally engaged in the financial services
business, trading and the provision of maintenance services.

The Company is 53.79% owned by CITIC Guoan Group, a

conglomerate headquartered in Beijing, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC").

*  For identification purpose only
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year"”) has presented
multiple challenges for Guoan International Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”),
particularly as our financial services segment was impacted by
impairments leading to a reported loss.

We commenced operation of the financial services business
after the completion of the acquisition of Yicko Securities
Limited (“Yicko") on 28 February 2019. The board of directors
(the "Board”) noted that investment sentiment was largely
robust in 2018 when the sale and purchase agreement
was negotiated and finalised. However, in the face of
macroeconomic turbulence, sentiment had deteriorated in the
time leading up to the completion of the transaction in 2019.

During the Year, the average daily turnover (by value) of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong amounted to HK$87.155
billion, a drop of nearly 19% year on year. A total of 183 new
listings were recorded in 2019, a decrease of 16% compared
to those in 2018. Hong Kong reclaimed its global top position
in terms of funds raised through initial public offerings
("IPO"), which increased 9% year on year to HK$312.9 billion
owing to the heavyweight IPOs near the end of the Year.
However, equity funds raised directly and indirectly through
Hong Kong totalled HK$452.0 billion (2018: HK$544.1 billion),
a drop of 17% year on year.

The Board anticipates that the spread of the novel coronavirus
in mainland China and Hong Kong will pose greater challenges
to the year 2020 ahead. We will therefore continue to apply
stringent risk management principles in our ongoing business
operation and development.

As the epidemic situation develops in Hong Kong, we have
taken various measures to protect our workplaces and staff
members. These include, where feasible, prolonging the
Chinese New Year holiday for staff, making flexible work
arrangements, and observing the guidance of the Department
of Health in terms of the disinfection of common areas and
office equipment, recording and reporting any suspected
case of infection, and complying with social distancing
recommendations within the workplaces. By implementing
these infection control measures, we hope to work together
with our community to mitigate the spread of the disease.

ERHE

BHZBRBRAR ([AQF]) REME
AF(ABFAEE)RBEE_FT-NF
ToA=+T—RLEE ([RFE]) EYHZ
BB LESBREDMIRMETE A
BERSEE -

RZE-NEFZAZ+ N \BRREEZS
HAFARAR ([@/])E RMACHGRE
TRREEB -EFg ([EEE])E
R N\FRERREEEE hE
CMBEREBERR BEEEREEES
BT -NAFRHEK REBHEEK

K

/

=

WY

N

3R IR o

KEER BEFISMFEHEBEERX (£
B IBEF TIR19% 288871558, =&
—NEFLETRRRIBR K- N\F
WMAD16% WX BREAFERARAE
RAFRBR ((BXRABEBR])  BEER
AABREECHEERRE— KF LA
9% E B3 129B L BEEEXHEEER
EEBREMSEENESIEF THKI17%
B 52018 (ZF—/)\F : BES5,441
Brr) »

EESRAHUEBERNRESETEAMLEE
BHEE BE T _TFERKEANOHK
B RN ELENEREGE SREKRST
BEREAREERA -

BEERBEHER HAMSRRTBEER:
PAINSE TR P E RRE B T - 5 e tf
R ERETRENFRE  HlEEE
EM R WiRREEZRES ESAHRE
B R N E R RO R N I SRR R R
MEZR ARETESMERELIERRE
& BB LURE - TfIH L
MR —FEE IR R R AL




CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERWE

On the macroeconomic environment, the International
Monetary Fund (“IMF”) made a downward revision of 0.1
percentage point to 3.3% for global gross domestic product
("GDP") growth in 2020. This reassessment of growth
prospects mainly reflects negative surprises to economic
activity in some emerging economies as well as increased social
unrest.

While the IMF and other organisations are still assessing the
full economic impact of the epidemic, its spread has already
caused disruptions in the supply chains of China and its trading
partners. A research report in February 2020 estimated that
the shutdown of China’s manufacturing facilities for one week
could have dragged global exports to the country down by
US$26 billion. The research firm therefore revised its forecast
for global trade growth down by 0.5 percentage point to
1.3%. Among all manufacturing industries, electronic products
and computers are expected to take the hardest hit. First-
quarter world GDP growth is projected by the firm to slow by a
further 0.3 percentage point to 2%.

For Hong Kong, the value of total exports of goods for 2019
dropped by 4.1% year on year, the largest annual decline
since 2009. Decreases were registered to most of the city’s
export destinations, in particular the United States (the “US"),
India, Germany, Japan and the Netherlands. The value of total
exports to the Mainland also decreased by 3.3%.

The Hong Kong SAR Government expects the city’s trade
performance to be subject to high uncertainties in the
near term. While global economic conditions showed some
signs of stabilisation in the latter part of last year, partly
helped by reduced trade tensions between the US and the
Mainland, external uncertainties are still high. The government
draws particular attention to the development of the novel
coronavirus infection as it may weigh on the economic
performance of some Asian economies and disrupt economic
activities in Hong Kong. In light of these exterior and local
developments, we will continue to monitor the performance of
our trading and maintenance services segments closely.

Hong Kong's financial sector, on the other hand, has been
operating in an orderly manner despite some volatility after
the virus outbreak. This reflects the sound fundamentals of
the Hong Kong market, and underscores our confidence in the
long-term development of the city’s financial sector. While we
remain vigilant to any emerging risks, we look forward to the
further development of the financial services segment.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

As uncertainty that may emerge from health or socio-political
issues increases, we will review our work process and business
portfolio, and take steps to better prepare ourselves for future
macroeconomic shocks or business disruption.

I am delighted to report further progress in our commitment
to social responsibilities. We have renewed our Caring
Company 2019/20 logo with the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service, recognising our collaboration with social agencies
on community care programmes. We have also been granted
labels or certificates to mark our green, social and charitable
commitments. Our work in this area is covered in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report section of this
report.

On behalf of the Board, | wish to thank our management and
staff members, shareholders, and other stakeholders for their
unfailing support. With professionalism and resolve, let us tide
over difficult times together.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEF WK S

Overview

During the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”),
the Group was principally engaged in the financial services
business, trading, and the provision of maintenance services.
The Company is 53.79% owned by CITIC Guoan Group, a
conglomerate headquartered in Beijing, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC").

In an effort to implement sustainability measures at its
corporate headquarters and step by step throughout its overall
business operations, the board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”) has adopted a set of Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG") policies. These policies cover the
areas of environmental protection, employment, workplace
quality, health and safety, responsible product and supply chain
parameters, and corporate governance. A taskforce, overseen
by the Board, is responsible for implementing these policies
and driving overall improvement in sustainability performance.
In 2019, the Group expanded the scope of ESG reporting to
incorporate the newly acquired financial services business.

As the Group is not engaged in manufacturing or business
activities involving heavy consumption of resources or
the creation of pollution, its environmental impact is
considered relatively limited. During the course of its business
operation, the Group takes measures to ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations in waste treatment,
labour, occupational health and safety, data privacy and the
prevention of corruption.

The Group is committed to maintaining positive relationships
with its key stakeholders, which include employees, customers
and suppliers. During the Year, there were no significant
disputes nor was any legal case brought against the Group
with regard to employee relationships, customer rights, or
dealings with suppliers.

Further details of the Group’s sustainability policies and
performance will be set out in the ESG Report contained in this
report.

Performance

During the Year, the Group’s business was adversely affected
by both global trade tensions and local social unrest.

Guoan IAternationaI Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, the Group recorded a 89.4% year-on-
year increase in revenue to approximately HK$207.8 million
(2018: approximately HK$109.7 million). A gross profit of
approximately HK$46.8 million (2018: approximately HK$23.1
million) was delivered.

The revenue for the Year has incorporated the results of Yicko
Securities Limited (“Yicko"”) upon completion of its acquisition
on 28 February 2019.

Nevertheless, a net loss of approximately HK$46.6 million
(2018: approximately HK$43.8 million) was incurred, mainly
attributable to an increase in finance costs of approximately
HK$25.4 million during the Year (2018: approximately HK$0.1
million).

By segment, the financial services business recorded revenue
of approximately HK$34.0 million for the ten months
ended 31 December 2019, contributing a segment profit of
approximately HK$25.2 million.

Revenue generated from the maintenance services segment
decreased 34.3% year-on-year to approximately HK$42.5
million (2018: approximately HK$64.7 million), as a result of
disruptions to business operation during the second half of
the Year amid social incidents causing road blockages in the
district where the maintenance centre is located. Consequently
the segment’s performance was affected and incurred a loss.

The trading segment, mainly covering electronic products and
parts, delivered a revenue of approximately HK$130.1 million
during the Year (2018: approximately HK$43.4 million). As the
trading business encountered eroding margins, a segment loss
was incurred.

Business Review
Financial Services Business

The Group, through the indirect wholly owned subsidiary
Yicko, was engaged in the securities brokerage business.
The segment’s results were incorporated into the Group's
financial statements for the Year subsequent to the completion
of the acquisition on 28 February 2019. According to the
participants’ records of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the total turnover for Yicko
amounted to approximately HK$9 billion in 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEF WK S

Yicko is a well-established brokerage company, licensed to
carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on
securities) and Type 9 (asset management) activities regulated
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). Its business consists of investment
advising, stock trading, margin financing, corporate
placements and underwriting.

The management remains optimistic about the future prospect
of the financial services business. As Hong Kong benefits
further from the Mainland’s drive to develop the Greater Bay
Area and the Belt and Road initiative, its financial sector will
be able to strengthen its status as an international financial
centre.

Trading Business

The trading business segment covered a range of merchandise
including electronic products and parts.

Beyond their direct effects, the trade conflicts have heightened
general uncertainty and contributed to the slowdown in the
global economy. China’s economic engine has been cooling
down with GDP growth slowing to 6% in 2019. World
merchandise export and import growth has also slowed across
most regions.

As the operating environment has become less predictable,
the Group has adopted a more prudent business strategy for
the trading segment. The strength of the US dollar throughout
2019 also had a negative impact on this business stream.
Trading of certain products slowed in accordance with market
changes, and consequently the Group is considering its options
as regards these product lines.

In light of the ongoing operating difficulties and the new
challenges associated with the spread of the novel coronavirus
epidemic, the management envisages that the profit margins
for the trading segment will stay under pressure. The Group
will continue to review the product portfolio and make
necessary adjustments in line with market developments.

Maintenance Services

The maintenance services segment continued to face
challenges as the economy showed signs of slowing. During
the second half of the Year, the maintenance services segment
recorded a decline in revenue as local social incidents caused
serious disruptions to its operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group will continue to monitor the operating conditions
of the segment and will formulate measures to cope with the
associated challenges.

Liquidity, Financial and Working Capital Resources

The Group’s total non-current assets amounted to
approximately HK$624.2 million as at 31 December 2019 (31
December 2018: approximately HK$349.3 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held an inventory
of approximately HK$13.2 million (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$34.6 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held net trade receivables
of approximately HK$198.3 million (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$10.6 million) which included trade
receivables of approximately HK$167.0 million (31 December
2018: N/A) arising from the financial services business. The
Group's bank and other borrowings stood at approximately
HK$160.0 million (31 December 2018: approximately
HK$34.5 million), while its gearing ratio, expressed as a
percentage of total borrowings over total assets, was 44.1%
(31 December 2018: 8.3%). The office property and a fixed
deposit of approximately HK$10.2 million (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$5.2 million) were pledged to secure other
borrowings and banking facilities respectively. The current ratio
was approximately 0.78 (31 December 2018: approximately
1.10) while the liquid ratio stood at approximately 0.75 (31
December 2018: approximately 0.75).

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December
2019, excluding approximately HK$121.8 million in
segregated accounts (31 December 2018: N/A), amounted
to approximately HK$47.8 million (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$34.2 million).

The objective of the Group’s cash management policy is to
optimise liquidity to gain a better return for shareholders
in a risk-averse manner. At 31 December 2019, the value
of the Group’s investment in listed securities classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss amounted
to approximately HK$1.2 million (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$1.8 million).

Amid the prevailing financial volatility, the Group is committed
to maintaining a conservative cash management policy and to
increasing operating efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEF WK S

Prospects and Strategic Outlook

Hong Kong recorded negative GDP growth in 2019,
representing the first annual decline in a decade. Retail sales
contracted at a sharper pace as the local social unrest took
a toll on consumption-and tourism-related sectors, dealing a
severe blow to a city already weakened by synchronised global
economic slowdown and ongoing trade tensions.

The latest economic report issued by the Hong Kong SAR
Government pointed to a 2.9% year-on-year contraction in
the third quarter of 2019, indicating that the economy had
entered a technical recession during the quarter.

Heading into 2020, the global economic outlook remains
bleak. After recording the largest decline in export in a
decade in 2019, Hong Kong's shipment volumes are expected
to continue to be weak this year. The local outlook will be
affected by softening global demand and lingering trade
frictions, with the effects of the epidemic likely to see the
economy slow further.

It is also likely that the external environment will become more
austere, with mounting downside risks facing the economic
outlook. Amid weakening trade and investment, global growth
is projected by the World Bank to be 2.5% in 2020, up just
slightly from the post-crisis low registered last year. While some
recent alleviation in trade tensions may mitigate uncertainty,
risks continue to be tilted to the downside.

The Group will stay alert to the economic impact of the
spread of the novel coronavirus. While the epidemic may only
bring temporary disruption to business activity, the scale of
China’s slowdown and the pace of recovery will, in part, be
determined by the effectiveness of infection control in the
country.

As regards the financial services segment, local markets will
likely be exposed to greater uncertainty stemming from global
economic turbulence and the new epidemic. The performance
of the segment will also be affected by potentially weaker
investment sentiment.

However, the Group remains confident in the long-term
prospects for the financial services segment, and will continue
to deploy management resources and attention to the
development of this new business stream.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On the other hand, the trading and servicing business lines
will continue to be subject to operating challenges and
eroding margins. The Group will closely monitor the ongoing
conditions of these businesses in order to weigh and formulate
responsive measures.

The Group will cautiously navigate the currently highly
uncertain environment, applying stringent risk management
principles in its business operations and development. At the
same time, the Board will stay alert to signs of turning points
in the current economic cycle, in order to identify and capture
new growth opportunities that may emerge. The Group’s long-
term goal remains to create value for its shareholders.

Currencies

The Group conducts its core business transactions mainly in
Hong Kong dollars, New Taiwan dollars and United States
dollars. The majority of the Group’s cash and bank balances are
also denominated in these three currencies. During the Year,
the Group did not experience significant exposure to exchange
rate and interest rate fluctuations. As a result, the Group
did not enter into any material foreign exchange contracts,
currency swaps or other financial derivatives.

Contingent Liability

The Group did not have any significant contingent liability at
31 December 2019.

Material Acquisition or Disposal of Subsidiaries

Except the acquisition of Yicko, there was no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2019.

Employee Information

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a work force
of 108 (2018: 117). Staff costs, including salaries, bonuses
and allowances, were approximately HK$32.7 million (2018:
HK$37.0 million).

The Group maintains a competitive remuneration policy to
motivate, retain and attract talent. The remuneration packages
mainly comprise salary payments, group medical insurance
plans and discretionary bonuses awarded on a performance
basis. The Group provides pension schemes for employees as
part of the staff benefits.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EHEWE S

—E-tEHRABREFELABR
AR ERARFTS R FRE A /422,600,000
BIL-R_E—NF+_A=+—8 #i
IS EFEMNAERONT :

Use of net proceeds from the rights issue in 2017

The net proceeds from the rights issue of the Company
were approximately HK$422.6 million. The use of the net
proceeds from the rights issue as at 31 December 2019 was

approximately as follows:

Net Amount Amount
proceeds utilised Remaining
Percentage of (in HK$S (in HK$S (in HK$
Use of net proceeds net proceeds million) million) million)
Fr8RIE
EPRERE HE EERTH Ferea
FEFEFREAR FHEESE (ABERT) (BEE#ET) (BEB#ET)
Repayment of loan from the 67.7% 286.2 286.2 -
controlling shareholder for
the acquisition of the office
building (the “Acquisition”)
BEERBRR BB ETEYE
(TZWE]) MEENER
Payment of property related 1.9% 8 HK$6.2 million used -
professional and agency fees for original purpose
for the Acquisition and HK$1.8 million re-
SR EEENYERBEE allocated and applied as
ERIEER part of the deposit for the
acquisition of Yicko
62BEBETERIEREM
woR1ISEBETLCDEN
D K AVEED 5 X T U
mEmlRe
Payment of renovation costs for 3.5% 15 HK$3.3 million used for -

the office building
X B FRYMEHNRERA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

Net Amount Amount
proceeds utilised Remaining
Percentage of (in HK$S (in HK$S (in HK$
Use of net proceeds net proceeds million) million) million)
Fr& IR
EPRERIE HE EERTH Nere 8
FEREFEAR FHEESE (ABERT) (BEB#ET) (BEB#ET)
Repayment of the loan from 11.8% 50 50 -
the controlling shareholder
granted in 2016
EEERBRER-_Z—RFELY
HE R
Repayment of bank borrowings, 6.2% 26 HK$9.0 million 17
a former director’s loan re-allocated and applied
and other payables as general working capital
BERITEE  —BATEES purpose
R E 3% E e R IE s.0aEEBETLEEM DMK
RIELEE S
General working capital 8.9% 37.4 (i) HK$14.9 million used -
LEES® for original purpose;
(i) HK$6.5 million re-
allocated and applied as
part of the deposit for
the acquisition of Yicko;
and (i) HK$16 million re-
allocated and applied as
investment in the Group’s
wine business.
() 1498 8B TEAER
ER®: (i) 6.5ABBIT
EEFOEKBERS X
g = 2 B E Rl
16.08 BB TR EEMDAE
EARKREREENEE
BER
Total 100% 422.6 405.6 17

L
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Adapting and adhering to recognized standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one of
the top priorities of the Company. The board of directors of
the Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate
governance is one of the areas that leads to the success of
the Company and in balancing the interests of shareholders,
customers and employees, and the Board is devoted to
ongoing enhancements of the efficiency and effectiveness of
such principles and practices.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year"”),
the Company has complied with the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition and Responsibilities

The Board currently comprises eight directors (“Directors”),
of which two are Executive Directors, three are Non-executive
Directors and three are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board members of the Company during the Year are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian
Mr. SO Haw Herman (resigned on 31 January 2020)
Mr. DU Jun (Chairman)

(redesignated on 31 January 2020)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LI Xiang Yu
Mr. CUI Ming Hong
Ms. BAI Wei

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. WONG Chun Man
Mr. TSE Yung Hoi
Mr. NG Man Kung

The biographical details of each Director are set out in the
section headed Human Capital on pages from 48 to 51.

Guoan International Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Composition and Responsibilities (continued)

While the Board is primarily overseeing and managing the
Company’s affairs, the Chairman of the Board provides
leadership to the Board in carrying out its duties. The
Executive Directors constituting the senior management of
the Company are delegated with responsibilities in the day-
to-day management of the Company and make operational
and business decisions within the control of and delegation
framework of the Company. The Non-executive Directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors) contribute
valuable views and proposals for the Board’s deliberation and
decisions.

Board Meetings

The Board members meet regularly, normally four times
each year at approximately quarterly intervals, to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operational and financial
performance of the Company. Other Board meetings will be
held when necessary. Such Board meetings involve the active
participation, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication, of a majority of Directors. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, seven regular Board
meetings were held and the attendance records of individual
Directors are set out below:

ERELIRS

BEEE (8)

RERBE (&)

EEHE IO AEEEREBARACE
B EERTIFREEEYRETERE A
NRIZEREBBEPTESMAR KE
BEAARESENEEADA Y BEEBY
RAARZERRETRETIELLER
EBAEZRE T ES (BIEBYIE
MITER)RHEESRARESE HESS
EERHRo

Exga;

EEgRETHETER (BEREFT
KRB E-R) URE ERIwmARTFZ
BERRBAMEERMBImZRR M
BEEEeRNFERTRT REEFS
EREMERIFNESTHIIEBHME
FEAFTABERZ2E - REBEE_T—NF
TZRA=+—HLEEE HBTBRBEKRE
HEFger SREF2HFECHEATINM
T

Number of
Meetings
Attended/Held
EHE BT
BERRE
Executive Directors: HITESE:
Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian EiRR LA 717
Mr. SO Haw Herman gt
(resigned on 31 January 2020) (R=ZF=ZFF—H=1+—HEF) 717
Mr. DU Jun (Chairman) HELEE (EE)
(redesignated on 31 January 2020) (R=ZF=ZFF—A=1+—HHHE) 6/7
Non-executive Directors: FHMITEE:
Mr. LI Xiang Yu FRHEE 2/7
Mr. CUI Ming Hong ERREE 2/7
Ms. BAI Wei ML L 3/7
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYFBITEE:
Mr. WONG Chun Man FlEX A 717
Mr. TSE Yung Hoi HBBEE 717
Mr. NG Man Kung RXHEE 717
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Composition and Responsibilities (continued)

Appropriate notices were given to all Directors in advance
for attending regular and other Board meetings. Meeting
agendas and other relevant information are normally provided
to the Directors in advance of Board meetings. All Directors
are consulted to include additional matters in the agenda for
Board meetings.

Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures, and all applicable law, rules and regulations, are
followed.

Draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comment and records respectively. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and such minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
prior notice by any Director.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal

All Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) have entered into service contracts with
the Company for a specific term of two years. Every Director
on Board is subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

The Board is collectively responsible for appointing new
Directors either to fill casual vacancies or as additional Board
members and removing any Director. Candidates to be
appointed are those experienced, high caliber individuals with
sufficient skills and knowledge required for the positions. All
candidates must be able to meet the standards as set forth in
rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to
be appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director should
also meet the independence criteria set out in rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

Guoan International Limited Annual Report 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Appointments, Re-election and Removal (continued)

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
diversity of Board members. It maintains a board diversity
policy setting out the approach to diversity of members
of the Board to ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Company’s business. All Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis with
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will
be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

Nomination Committee

The Board established the Nomination Committee in March
2012, with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Code Provisions, which have been reviewed from time to
time by the Board to keep them in line with the most up-to-
date requirements. The Committee currently comprises one
Executive Director, namely Mr. DU Jun and three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Messrs. WONG Chun Man,
TSE Yung Hoi and NG Man Kung, and is chaired by Mr. DU
Jun. The most up-to-date written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the Company's
website.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board regularly and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy. Its
duties include making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. In carrying out the responsibility of
identifying suitably qualified candidates to become members
of the Board, the Committee will give adequate consideration
to the board diversity policy. The Committee is also responsible
for assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to perform its duties.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of
the Board including the resignation of Mr. SO Haw Herman
as Executive Director and the redesignation of Mr. DU Jun
as Executive Director. It also assessed and confirmed the
independence of the three Independent Non-executive
Directors, and recommended to the Board the nomination of
Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian, Mr. SO Haw Herman and Mr. NG Man
Kung for re-appointment as Directors by the shareholders at
the 2019 annual general meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year,
and the attendance record of individual Committee members
are set out below:

EEg @)
REZAE ()

R-E-NF+_A=+—RHLEFE &
HLEEHESENRRE  ABIAEX (B
REBEERTINTEEAMERLERT
WITES) TR MR =R\ IFNTT
E=FHAEMEREBYIE YRAES
SHBREFERRLLE HBRLERRX
HEEARARA —ZE-NFRRBFKRE
HRREEEEES -

RAZEENAFEERIT-REHF %
EEKRBZHFEREHINIAT:

Number of
Meetings
Attended/Held
EHE BT
ERRE

Mr. DU Jun (Chairman) HELE(EE)
Mr. WONG Chun Man FEEE

Mr. TSE Yung Hoi BB EE

Mr. NG Man Kung R FESE
Confirmation of Independence

The independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors
has been assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing
Rules. Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
has made an annual written confirmation of independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of
the view that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
guidelines for assessing independence set out in rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties which have been formalized into
the terms of reference of the Board, a summary of which are
as follows:—

— To develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
any changes it considers necessary to ensure their
effectiveness;

—  To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

— To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

—  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees; and

—  To review the Company's compliance with the Code
Provisions and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During the Year, the Board reviewed and approved the
Corporate Governance Report contained in the Company’s

2018 Annual Report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Specific enquiry has been made on all Directors who
have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. Directors are continually
updated with regulatory and governance developments.
During the Year, the Company provided all members of the
Board with updates on the Company’s performance, position
and prospects.

Directors are encouraged to participate in professional
development courses and seminars to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has devised a training
record to assist the Directors to record the training they have
undertaken.

During the Year, Messrs. WONG Chun Man, LI Xiang Yu,
TSE Yung Hoi and NG Man Kung and Ms. BAI Wei received
briefings on updates of accounting standards from the auditors
of the Company at Audit Committee meetings. All of the
Directors were provided with reading materials on the relevant
rules and regulatory updates.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Emolument Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is to ensure the fairness
and competitiveness of total remuneration. The emoluments
of Executive Directors are determined based on the skills,
knowledge, individual performance as well as contributions,
the scope of responsibility and accountability of such Directors,
taking into consideration the Company’s performance and
prevailing market conditions. The remuneration policy of Non-
executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) is to ensure that the Non-executive Directors are
adequately compensated for their efforts and time dedicated
to the Company’s affairs including their participation in
the respective Board committees. The emoluments of Non-
executive Directors are determined with reference to their
experience, duties and knowledge.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Board established the Remuneration Committee in July
2006, with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Code Provisions, which have been reviewed from time to
time by the Board to keep them in line with the most up-to-
date requirements. The Committee currently comprises one
Non-executive Director, namely Mr. CUl Ming Hong and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Messrs. WONG
Chun Man, TSE Yung Hoi and NG Man Kung, and is chaired
by Mr. TSE Yung Hoi. The most up-to date written terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s emolument
policy and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing such policy. Prior to making its
recommendations, the Committee consults the Chairman
of the Board and the Executive Directors and takes into
consideration factors including the Group's performance
and profitability, experience, duties and time commitment
of Directors, prevailing market conditions, salaries paid by
comparable companies, employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration. The Committee has adopted the operation
model where it performs an advisory role to the Board,
with the Board retaining the final authority to approve the
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior
management. The Committee is provided with sufficient
resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration packages of the Directors and employees of
the Company. No Director was involved in deciding his own
remuneration.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the
period, and the attendance record of individual Committee
members are set out as follows:

EERSAEEAESZME &)

¥yMESSE (&)
FHEZEENHAGRT-REHE RB
SEREZHEREEHIWT:

Number of
Meetings
Attended/Held
EHE BT
ERRE

Mr. TSE Yung Hoi (Chairman)

Mr. CUI Ming Hong ERAREYE
Mr. WONG Chun Man FEEE
Mr. NG Man Kung RHESE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. Financial results of the Group
are announced in a timely manner in accordance with statutory
and/or regulatory requirements.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board
has given careful consideration to the future liquidity of the
Group notwithstanding that the Group’s net current liabilities
of approximately HK$117,539,000 as at 31 December 2019
as well as the Group’s net loss for the year amounted to
approximately HK$46,588,000 and these conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The Board is satisfied that the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due for the foreseeable future, after taking into consideration
of the followings:

(i) In relation to the convertible bonds with principal
amount of HK$100,000,000 due on 28 February 2020,
subsequent to the reporting period, on 28 February 2020,
the Company has entered into a deed of extension to
extend the maturity date for repayment of the principal
amount of the convertible bonds from 28 February 2020
to 28 November 2020.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Financial Reporting (continued)

The Company has been actively negotiating with the
holders of the remaining convertible bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$200,000,000,
regarding the settlement arrangement of those
convertible bonds.

(i) The Company has placed its buildings with carrying
amount of approximately HK$299,763,000 as at 31
December 2019 for sale.

(ili) The Board will continue to implement measures aiming
at improving the working capital and cash flows of the
Group including closely monitoring general administrative
expenses and operating costs.

(iv) The immediate holding company, Road Shine
Developments Limited, has agreed to provide financial
support for the continuing operations of the Company
so as to enable it to meet its liabilities as they fall due
and carry on its business without a significant curtailment
of operations in the twelve months from 31 December
2019.

The Board has carried out a detailed review of the cash
flow forecast of the Group for the next twelve months
from the reporting date taking into account the impact of
above measures, the Board believes that the Group will have
sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future working capital
and other financing requirements as and when they fall due
in the next twelve months from the reporting date, and
accordingly, is satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements set out on pages 68 to 193
on a going concern basis.

During the year, the Company engaged HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited (“HLB") as the external auditors. Apart from
providing audit services, HLB also reviewed the interim results
of the Group. The fees in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided by HLB for the year ended 31 December
2019 amounted to approximately HK$1,304,000 and
HK$250,000 respectively.

The reporting responsibilities of HLB are set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report between pages 59 and 67.
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ERELIRS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the maintenance of
sound risk management and internal control systems within
the Group and reviewing their effectiveness.

The Board has entrusted the Audit Committee with the
responsibility to review the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, which not only include financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management
functions, but also cover the areas of adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions. Procedures have been set up
for, inter alia, safeguarding assets against unauthorized use
or disposition, controlling capital expenditure, maintaining
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use and for publication, and ensuring
compliance with the relevant legislation and regulations.

Risk assessment and evaluation are an integral part of the
annual planning process. Each division/business unit of the
Group has to set its strategic objectives, identify specific risks
and assess the effectiveness of its risk management actions
and internal control measures to help ensure that the risks
it faces are addressed by the controls that have been or
will be implemented. Management throughout the Group
maintains and monitors the risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis. Where any significant
risks are identified, the Board will evaluate and manage such
risks by considering the severity of the impact of the risk
on the Company’'s financial results, the probability that the
risk will occur and the imminence of the risk. It should be
acknowledged that the risks management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group has adopted procedures for the handling and
dissemination of inside information in a timely manner and in
compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Listing Rules, such
procedures are subject to review on a regular basis.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Controls (continued)

The Board conducts review of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems semi-annually. During the
Year, the Board has assessed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems through the reviews
performed by the Audit Committee, executive management,
and both internal and external auditors and considered such
systems are effective adequate for their purposes.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established in
December 2004, with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code Provisions, which have been reviewed from
time to time by the Board to keep them in line with the most
up-to-date requirements. The Committee currently comprises
two Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. LI Xiang Yu, Ms. BAI
Wei and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely,
Messrs. WONG Chun Man, TSE Yung Hoi and NG Man Kung,
and is chaired by Mr. WONG Chun Man. The most up-to-
date written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee reports to the Board and has held
regular meetings to assist the Board in reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s financial reporting process,
internal controls and risk management systems. The
Committee monitors the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual report and accounts and half-year report,
and reviews significant financial report judgments contained
therein. It reviews, makes recommendations and reports to
the Board on findings relating to the financial statements,
reports and accounts, systems of internal controls and
risk management and compliance issues. The Committee
also oversees the Company’s relationship with the external
auditors, reviews auditors’ letter of engagement and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
re-appointment of external auditors. It is empowered to
review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with applicable standards. It reviews external
auditors’ management letter and any material queries raised
by the auditors to the management and the management’s
response. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient
resources enabling it to discharge its duties.
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ERELIRS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the Year, the Audit Committee discussed and reviewed
with the management of the financial reporting system, the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
internal control procedures, risk management system and the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experiences of staff
in the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and internal
control functions and the effectiveness of such systems and
functions. The Audit Committee also met with the external
auditors and reviewed the annual and interim reports of the
Company.

The Audit Committee members met two times during the Year,
and the attendance records of individual Committee members
are set out below:
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Mr. WONG Chun Man (Chairman) TEXEE(EE) 2/2
Mr. LI Xiang Yu FHREE 1/2
Ms. BAI Wei Ak + 1/2
Mr. TSE Yung Hoi BB EE 2/2
Mr. NG Man Kung R HEE 2/2

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for
guiding and monitoring the Company in discharging its
duties, certain responsibilities are delegated to various Board
committees which have been established by the Board to
deal with different aspects of the Company’s affairs. Unless
otherwise specified in their respective written terms of
reference as approved by the Board, these Board committees
are governed by the Company’s articles of association as well
as the Board’s policies and practices (insofar as the same are
not in conflict with the provision contained in the articles of
association).

The Board has also delegated the responsibility of
implementing its strategies and the day-to-day operation to
the management of the Company under the leadership of
the Executive Directors. Clear guidance has been made as
to the matters that should be reserved to the Board for its
decision which include matters on, inter alia, capital, finance
and financial reporting, internal controls, communication with
shareholders, Board membership, delegation of authority and
corporate governance.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Ms. WONG Shuk
Ching who is a solicitor qualified to practise law in Hong
Kong. She is also a fellow member, and was awarded the
Chartered Governance Professional qualification, of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators). Ms. WONG assists
the Board by ensuring good information flow within the
Board and that the Board’s policy and procedures including
those on governance matters are followed. She reports to Mr.
HUANG Zhen Qian, Executive Director who is also her primary
Corporate contact person at the Company.

SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication Strategies

The Board established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the principles of the Company in relation to its
communication with the shareholders, with the objective of
ensuring effective and timely dissemination of information
to shareholders. Information would be communicated to
shareholders mainly through the Company’s corporate
communications including interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars. These publications are sent to
the shareholders in a timely manner and are also available on
the website of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board, members of the Board and
external auditors attended the 2019 annual general meeting of
the Company (“AGM") held on 17 May 2019. The attendance
record of the Directors at the AGM is set out below:
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BHEBTRR
BEXERH
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian BIRH L ”n
Mr. SO Haw Herman (resigned on 31 January 2020) & BEE (R=ZFE=-FF—A=+—HFIL) 171
Mr. DU Jun (Chairman) HELE (If)
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Non-executive Directors: FNITEE:
Mr. LI Xiang Yu FhHEAE 0/1
Mr. CUI Ming Hong ERRLAE 0/1
Ms. BAI Wei mkzt 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIHTEE:
Mr. WONG Chun Man FEXEE il
Mr. TSE Yung Hoi WEEEE 171
Mr. NG Man Kung RNXHEE 171
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SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

(continued)
Communication Strategies (continued)

Shareholders may direct enquires about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Share Registrars. To the extent the requisite
information of the Company is publicly available, shareholders
and the investment community may at any time make enquiry
in respect of the Company in writing at our head office in
Hong Kong by post, facsimile or email via the numbers and
email address provided on the Company’s website or through
the Company’s Investor Relations Adviser whose contact details
are provided in the “Corporate Information” section of this
annual report.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, any
two or more shareholders or any one shareholder which is a
clearing house (or its nominee) (in either case) holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
which carries the right of voting at general meetings can
make a requisition to convene and put forward proposals
at an extraordinary general meeting. The requisition must
specify the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by the
relevant requisitionist(s) and deposited at the head office of
the Company in Hong Kong.

Shareholders may put forward their enquires about the
Company to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company’s head office in Hong Kong or by email or through
the Investor Relations Adviser of the Company.

Amendment to the Company’s Constitutional
Documents

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has not made any changes to its memorandum
and articles of association. An up-to-date version of the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company is
available on both the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Guoan International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are pleased to present
our Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG"”) Report
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”). This
report covers our ESG policies, their implementation and our
performance in different areas of corporate social responsibility
("CSR").

ABOUT THE REPORT

ESG Policies, Implementation and Governance

The Group is principally engaged in the financial services
business, trading, and the provision of maintenance services in
Hong Kong. Data collected for this ESG Report covers the Year,
except for the financial services segment which commenced
operation through Yicko Securities Limited (“Yicko”) upon
completion of its acquisition on 28 February 2019. ESG-related
data collected from Yicko thus covers the ten months ended
31 December 2019.

Yicko is licensed to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities),
Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management)
activities regulated under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Its business consists
of investment advising, stock trading, margin financing,
corporate placements and underwriting.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) assumes
overall responsibility for the Group's ESG policies, their
implementation, reporting and governance. The ESG policies
have been adopted by the Board and provide guidance for the
Group to carry out business operations in an environmentally
and socially responsible way. These policies cover various
aspects of the environment, business ethics, employee
relationships and community investments, details of which will
be discussed in the following sections of this report.

The Board has authorised the setting up of a working group
to co-ordinate and monitor the Group’s ESG-related works.
Comprising staff of various levels under a Board member,
the working group regularly reviews and updates the policies
to ensure their continued relevance to the Group’s business
operations, our key stakeholders and new ESG trends and
regulations. It is also responsible for identifying potential ESG-
related risks on a continual basis and bringing them to the
Board for discussion and, if thought fit, management action.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RBE HERELEE

ABOUT THE REPORT (continued) BRAERE (8)

Preparation of the ESG Report RERE HERERARS

The ESG Report has been prepared with reference to Appendix ~ AIRE HEREARELEBEBHAER
27 of the Main Board Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of ~ S FTBEMR AR TR EHMRBIHEERE —++
Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX ESG Guide”), adhering to the (§([BEBXEMEBE HEREARAREE
“comply or explain” provisions and where possible reporting Bl 1) ¥ [ BT A EREE | 163X & AT gERt
on recommended disclosures. The preparation process was  (Z#HWEFHEEER ARE 2 EEHBRR
overseen by the Board and consisted of the following steps. HEZEEEEE SFEUTNFHE - AFER =
The report was endorsed by the Board in March 2020. T_TF-AREFEZA -

Board adopts ESG policies, evaluates and manages ESG-related
risks and establishes an internal control system for ESG issues
EESRMERE - He RERBE
FHERERBERE g RERK
JR\Be B AR S AR R A BR B R R AT
N2

Determines the reporting boundary
SR E P R

2

Forms a working group to lead
the implementation of the ESG policies
BRI TAE/ME - SEEMERIR - 8 RERBUR

N2 N2
Undertakes an internal review to identify Collects stakeholder opinions on materiality of
ESG issues relevant to the Group ESG issues through a questionnaire and discussions
HEITREDRTR - LABRI S AR B AARRI I IR - BBHEEREERE® - BWERNELIRE
HEREREAHE HERELMGHEENEENCER
N2 N2

Prepares ESG Report
WERR g REARE
Ng

The Board endorses the ESG Report and identifies areas
for further improvement in ongoing reporting
ERERARE  HgRERE
IR B 1% AT — SR R R
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ABOUT THE REPORT (continued)

Reporting Boundary

As the Group’s operations are all based in Hong Kong, the
scope of this report mainly includes data and activities of the
Group's corporate headquarters and, as far as feasible, other
offices in Hong Kong. Compared with the 2018 ESG Report
published in March 2019, the scope has been broadened
as the Group commenced the operation of a new business
segment for the provision of financial services.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group’s key stakeholders include its employees, customers,
suppliers, shareholders, business partners and community work
partners. Throughout the Year, members of the ESG working
group have engaged in discussions with these stakeholders
to collect their views on the materiality of different aspects of
ESG. A questionnaire survey has also been carried out during
the Year, the results of which were analysed and used as a
reference for the preparation of this report.

Set out below is a summary of the channels used to engage
our key stakeholders:

Stakeholder Engagement Channels
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S BEPRGRE (BIEER)
o Emails and telephone calls (for financial services segment)
BELEBFBA (TRRBEES)
o Personal contact
1B A Bt &2
Suppliers o Tendering or business negotiation process
HEm RIEREBAE
o Regular correspondence
TEHA AR
o Site visits
B E R
o Promotional activities
B EE &

B BIRA A
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ABOUT THE REPORT (continued) BRAERE (8)
Reporting Boundary E ¥Rt E
Stakeholder Engagement Channels
BHE SHERE
Shareholders e Annual and special general meetings
A& 3R BRERBFARERRREFIARE
o Annual and interim reports
FwmEkhHmE
J Corporate website
YNGIE R

o Contacts with IR representatives

RERBEBRARKE

Business partners o Regular correspondence
X E B
o Joint activities
Baiy
Community work partners o Staff members’ participation in volunteering work
HETESIERH BET2HEZTREY
o Joint activities
BaEy
Wider community o CSR initiatives
BREZMLR rEASEEERD
Materiality Assessment BEEMFMG

The Group has summarised the internal and external 7N & 4845 Q&0 &M EFEEAZ 45 52 - W0 3% 7))
assessment results and identified these material ESG topics: LTIRE e kB aENEE:

e B2: Health and Safety e B2:fERELE
e B7: Anti-corruption e B7:REF

e B6: Product Responsibility e B6:EMAM

o B3: Development and Training e B3:ERENKIEFI
e B4: Labour Standards e B4 :# TR

e B1: Employment e Bl:IEfE
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BRE MERELIEE

ABOUT THE REPORT (continued) BERARRE (&)
Materiality Assessment (continued) EEMNM (E)

The following distribution map exhibits the importance of the I THOHERRASEEIEE MFHEH
key ESG issues considered by the Board and the stakeholders T ERE HEeNEAZEETEMMIEZ

of the Group. FTAZ o
— © 5
5 G5B
2
T~ 4
7 ﬁé" B3
c ]
o= 3 B1
ot
©
s &
gt
cT
g 1
Sk o
A S B5
@©
< > g
s 2m 0
c Qs
g 5k
= z 0 1 2 3 4 5
Not relevant Crucial
T HER8 ok
Internal Assessment (impact on business)
AEEZ (BEBHNTE)
Al: Emissions B1: Employment BS: Supply Chain Management
HEr 1Ef& HIEEER
A2: \Us\e of Resources B2: Health and Safety B6: Product Responsibility
AR{EH RERLE EREL
‘ A3 Lhe En\lli;\onment and B3: Development and Training B7: Anti-corruption
atural Resources R R RES
B R RAER ;
B4: Labour Standards B8: Community Investment
B TR HERE

BZEEARAR
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ENVIRONMENT

Environmental Policy

o Seek to reduce the environmental impact of our
operations through different schemes to reduce energy
consumption and day-to-day operational inputs, to re-use
materials where practicable, and to collect and separate
appropriate materials for recycling.

o Go paperless where feasible.

o Comply with relevant environmental legislation and
regulations and strive to go beyond them.

o Support the environmental initiatives of the communities
where we operate.

Environmental Pledges and Activities during the Year

Programme Label/Pledge Organiser
HE Y S EX0 3 1

i

5
iﬁﬁ(%
M2 ETRETE - JREL LR
/JEUKEI%“%@EF‘E'JHQ/JE%% I £
—IﬁE’JFRTEFﬁ%ﬂ W AT
BESBURRBR MR EHIR
%ﬁkﬂ’]g/ﬁzo

I

o HEATHEBERTERER(L-

o  ETHBERBREENFABK  WE

NEBBETERAE -

s XEMAEMHRIRMREE-

FEERAERRRNERSEEEY

Date/Period
B, HE

Energy Saving
Charter 2019

Energy Saving
Charter Scheme

Environment Bureau

Jun 2019 — May 2020

EiEE = Al EiREAE 2019 RER 201956 - 202045 A
Green Office and Green Office Awards World Green 1 year from Dec 2019

Awards Labelling
Scheme and Eco-Healthy

and Eco-Healthy
Workplace labels

Organisation

Workplace
HmeEMAEREEFERE SKERLAEREEIE HRECAEAR 2019 12 A F%4
BR T AEfHE 1R RE—F

Since most of our business activities are carried out inside
the office, in particular within our corporate headquarters,
we have adopted a number of best practices based on the
World Green Organisation’s guidelines under the Green
Office Awards Labelling Scheme (“GOALS"). Such practices
include energy saving, reduced resources usage and support
of recycling. Having demonstrated sufficient achievements
in green workplace practices as proven by a green audit, we
have been awarded Green Office Awards and Eco-Healthy
Workplace labels. Most importantly, these green practices are
so straightforward and easy-to-follow that they are helpful in
instilling behavioural change within our workplace.

Annual Report 2019

Guoan International Limited

AEBE A D %ﬂ‘%é@)ﬂ&#}#“* LH
REMER T PR AT I8 AR SR AR
éiﬂiﬁkiié;tb#/‘iﬁﬁb #t2l ([GOALS |)
Fra]EtE 5l 1T — RO ET A - S FH T
A BERET K BEIR B A B R 6 A A S #5 B
145( raeEzk BPAMEENZERRA

ERBESTERRGERAERERT
VEF?*TM; EE%E’]E g‘\i@ﬁﬁ”ﬁ?ﬁﬂ%

RITE - 1 BOTE T (I8 PR 285 50 1T AR -




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENT (continued)

A1. Emissions

The Group is a non-production company principally engaged
in financial services, trading, maintenance and customer
service activities, which do not make material impacts on
the environment. Our business operations do not produce
hazardous waste, nor do they rely heavily on energy
consumption or water resources.

The Group owns only one company passenger car in Hong
Kong, with a low level of direct emission recorded during
the Year. NO,, SO, and particulate emissions (PM) from this
source were all close to zero tonne. The calculation of NO,
emission is based on an emission factor of 0.0747 g/km for
private cars, while that for SO, is based on a factor of 0.0147
g/L for petrol, and PM emission is calculated with a factor
of 0.0055 g/km for private cars. These emission factors are
based on the Environmental Protection Department’s EMFAC-
HK Vehicle Emission Calculation model and the United States
Environmental Protection Agency’s Vehicle Emission modelling
software — MOBILEG.1.

Emission of greenhouse gases indirectly caused by the Group
was mainly attributable to the consumption of purchased
electricity at our corporate headquarters and 4 offices in
Hong Kong. Under the Energy Saving Charter 2019 scheme,
we maintained an average indoor temperature between 24
and 26°C during the summer months of June to September
in 2019, switched off idle electrical appliances and systems,
procured energy-efficient electrical appliances and systems,
and engaged staff to adopt energy saving practices. The
emission volume and production of non-hazardous waste
increased year on year owing to the inclusion of emissions
from one additional branch office under a new business
segment commencing 1 March 2019.

Another source of indirect emission was from paper usage
in offices, while non-hazardous waste was mainly produced
in the form of paper waste and toner cartridges. We thus
encourage our staff to think twice before deciding to print
any documents to minimise usage. Waste paper is separated
from other kinds of wastes in order to be collected for
recycling. Recognising the indirect greenhouse gas emissions
from business air travel by employees, the Group encourages
employees to utilise instant messaging tools, video calls or
teleconferences where feasible.

R - iEREAHRE

RIE (&)

Al. BERY

AEBRIENESCRRE EH #HiER
EERBEMNIFRENT  WRBEITHE
REAFE - EE7EENTELEERE
BZ2Y) MTEEERERIKER-

AEBERBEHRE —BLRARIFKHAE F
NS EEEEER - XA RENR
St FE YT FEN Y 2SI T Z0E -
RECDBERNFTEERALRENFERR
HEHRE0.07475% ' MR AL W BEA FT
BHIENTHEATF0.01478 M EH - B
R B BE PR ARL R B &2 £0.005557 /)
RYAE - ELEERAEDNERERESR
EMFAC-HK)S B BE i 5T & 15 AU A0 3 B 3R 3R
{RFEZE HIMOBILE6. 17 B8 BE OIS BY S fF o

AEBEREERZAZERRBEEZEHRES
MEREERNENREEERMBEE
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ENVIRONMENT (continued)

A1. Emissions (continued)

Since the emissions and non-hazardous waste generated by
the Group were for general office operation instead of from
production activity, their intensities were not calculated and
reported.

f% % (&)
. BER ()

EEBAK’EIFEEEE’JEFE&&, EEBERM))
RE—RMAELE MIERELEER
WA WA ERREETE -

Sources of Greenhouse Gas Emission 2018 2019’
BEREHERRE —E-N\F =
Scope 1: & EN -
Direct emissions (in tonnes) BEEHER (1)

— Unleaded petrol consumed by —SKERAFRAEMBERD

Group-owned passenger car? £ 55 752 11.4 12.20
Scope 2: & E2 :
Energy indirect emissions (in tonnes) B IR B2 BER (WE)

- Purchased electricity? —-EEEE 155.2 199.3MF
Total tonnes of annual CO, equivalent FE-ZS/iESEERY (M)

greenhouse gas emission 166.6 247.9MF
Non-hazardous Waste 2018 2019'
BEBEY —E-N\F =5
Waste to landfills: KT HEIER
Toner cartridges i #n [ 2 piecesff 3 piecestF
Collected for recycling: & SEElE
Paper waste & 4% 2.1 tonneslE 2.3 tonneslif
Notes: it
1. Data of one additional office included (for the ten months 1. BEIERSENER (BE=Z—A

ended 31 December 2019).

2. Direct greenhouse gas emissions from the use of unleaded
petrol for vehicles include CO, (with an emission factor of 2.36
kg/L), and CH, (emission factor of 0.000253 kg/L) and N,O
(emission factor of 0.001105 kg/L).

3. Energy indirect emissions for 2019 are calculated using an
emission factor of 0.81 kg/kWh for electricity supplied by Hong
Kong Electric and 0.62 kg/kWh for that supplied by CLP.

A2. Use of Resources

The Group’s headquarters was designed in such a way to
maximise the admission of natural daylight, which helps reduce
the use of energy for office lighting. Environmental impact
was also minimised through responsible sourcing. Eco-friendly
materials were selected where feasible for our headquarters
and formaldehyde-free fixtures are used. Electrical appliances
with Grade 1 energy labels and LED lights were purchased.

Guoan International Limited

Annual Report 2019

F+-A=+—BIt+@EAHH) -

2. REABEAMENAHINEELRESR
BeEReE sl (BERESAEA
H236F %) FR(EBREBEESLQFH
0.000253F ") FMEL =R (BERMAEE A
HAF0.001105F 5 ) o

3. —E-NFZHEEBEEREBASTE/)E
081F % (BREREN) KT T R/ F0.62
TR (PESH)NERAEEGTE -

A2. ERMER

SENERFRRTEEARTRL BER
LPREABAERAMBER LFTAE
TORBERA SEREHRENTZE K
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ENVIRONMENT (continued)

A2. Use of Resources (continued)

As a practice, our office lights, computers and most electrical
appliances are switched off when not in use. In addition,
automatic lighting control is in place to turn lighting off in
common areas after office hours. Also as a principle, the
Group goes paperless where feasible and re-uses materials
as much as practicable. Waste separation facilities for paper,
plastic and metals are installed in the headquarters to support
recycling. In view of the Group’s business nature, there is no
significant raw material being used in operations. For the
trading segment, the goods are pre-packed by the suppliers
and the Group does not add further packaging during the
shipment process. Packaging materials usage is therefore
regarded as immaterial.

In terms of water consumption, the Group’s corporate
headquarters and other offices in Hong Kong do not have
independent fresh water accounts with the Water Supplies

it ERERRE

RIE (&)
A2. ERER (&)
WMAZTE BEREARIEDBEERETTER
BRI BPIBEAEEED
EH AEERAERASNERA QIR
B - AEBEYEATHNEB )RT?’H%%
BTERCRERDE - A EFHREIW &
%rﬁa REME BBEMEBHERD ‘*E
R ERAEEMEREE  FEPITE
ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁMﬂZﬁ% B o5 DIHE R H
HEBBELEE AEEEMERREF T
EMARE ARAEBAERNBEEY
BRARAEEFREE-

AREER BB B FEMEMMRERE
RAEGEKIBBRILBILRKKES O l
S ESEEE KB E R - RIB S B AN

Department, leaving us unable to obtain data on water %JEZEIE AN AI B ERRE

consumption. According to the latest sustainability report of AAIEEEERMNYEERE — RIIEK

the management company of the Group’s headquarters, the aﬁm°

company has installed water-saving measures for its managed

properties.

Energy Consumption Sources 2018 2019°

BEIRFE B RR —E-N\FE ZZE-AF

Electricity Bh 238,255 kWh 306,026 F &
T

Petrol VM 4,825.6 litresF+ 4,533.5%

Note: st

1. Data of one additional office included (for the ten months 1. AE—INPEENSE(BE-Z—AN

ended 31 December 2019).

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

As a non-production company, the Group’s business activities
are mainly conducted inside offices. The Board therefore
considers that our operations do not have a direct and major
impact on the environment and natural resources. As discussed
in the above sections, we have adopted an Environmental
Policy and various green practices to help reduce the carbon
footprint of our office activities.

However, we are mindful of the indirect impact of our
trading business. We therefore incorporate environmental
considerations in the process of selecting products, suppliers
and logistics services providers. We also strive to ensure that
the Group complies with relevant laws and regulations on
environmental protection in Hong Kong.

FHZRA=+—RIL+EAHMB) -

A3. fﬁiﬁ&fﬁiﬁﬁ

ERIEEERR AKENEEEHETE
E#ﬁ#’“ﬁmiﬁﬁ it EEERBERY
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SOCIAL
CSR Activities during the Year

The Group is delighted to have renewed the Caring Company
logo from the Hong Kong Council of Social Service in
recognition of our commitment to CSR and collaboration
with several social agencies. The Caring Company scheme is
a widely recognised CSR programme in Hong Kong aiming at
building strategic partnerships among businesses and non-
profit organisations to create a more cohesive society. Through
cross-sectoral activities and exchanges, the two sectors can
get to know and understand each other and develop projects
matching the community’s needs.

We have also received the Corporate Citizenship logo once
again from the Hong Kong Productivity Council for our CSR

performance and volunteer work.

Social and Employee Related Pledges during the Year

e

TFEERALELEEXTETD
REBEZESEETERBEHSEND
ARBEEHE URTEEHCELED
M ARETRMEEEZEE-BRE
AEAECEEBERR SEREFR
HHERACHNRBEHESERE BR
HEtg B BB R MES  DEMI
SREEBREERBMNET R AEE
EZEERETHEAEFTENT RS -

BPIRRERINEEHLERRALS /\%i‘%
TE ?%E/%EE?‘ME%E%%E fER

R

FEERAERTENEEMNBNE

Programme Label/Pledge Organiser Date/Period
HHE B R EX 3 ¥ B HA R
Happiness-at-work Happy Company logo Promoting Happiness 1 Jan 2019 -
Promotional Scheme Index Foundation and 31 Dec 2019
Hong Kong Productivity
Council
201970 TIEME RVSTE L =7 ERRITREREES  2019F1818-
HERE T 212019 NEBEENRES 20194F12A31H

Jockey Club Age-Friendly
City Partnership Scheme
BERghRMmaE—
2 e RERZTE

The Caring Company
Scheme

SR B AT 8l

The 10th Hong Kong
Corporate Citizenship
Program

EFETREEBLEREAR
Saatat &

Guoan International Limited

City Partnership Scheme
certificate and sticker
2 e RERSHFER
2%

Caring Company logo

2019 -2020
SRR B R IR S
2019 -2020

Corporate Citizenship
logo (Enterprise Category)

EEARREFR
(EE#R)

T IJ/Lz

Annual Report 2019

The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Charities Trust
ERESgERER

The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service

FELERGHE

Hong Kong Productivity

Council and Committee

on the Promotion of Civic

Education

%T}% EFﬂﬁi&%&
E%&ﬁ ; =} El

1 Jan 2019 —
31 Dec 2019
20191 A1H-
2019412 A31H

1 Mar 2019 -
29 Feb 2020
20193 31H-
202092 A29H

1 year from 17

December 2019

201912 A17H R4
ABE—F
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SOCIAL (continued)
B1. Employment
Employment Policy

e Adhere to equal opportunity principles in the recruitment,
selection, compensation, training, appraisal and career
advancement of staff.

o Hire and promote staff members based on objective
criteria, individual performance and merit.

o Prohibit any form of forced labour and adhere to
the minimum age provisions of applicable laws and
regulations.

Workplace Quality Policy

e Aim to offer a welcoming and positive work environment
in which members of staff are treated with respect and
dignity.

o Promote inclusivity and equality in the workplace.

o Maintain a work environment that is free from
discrimination on the basis of sex, disability, family status,
race or religion. Discriminatory behaviour or harassment
will not be tolerated.

In addition to full compliance with the Employment Ordinance
in Hong Kong, the Group has in place a set of open and fair
employment policies to guide its human resources activities.
These policies cover compensation, dismissal, recruitment,
promotion, working hours, conditions and welfare of
employees. Other benefits include entitlements to the
Group’s medical insurance scheme and special casual leave
arrangements, offered to eligible employees in accordance
with length of service, seniority and job nature. The Group
also ensures equal opportunity for all employees and diversity.
Discriminatory behaviour towards any employee or in
treatment of staff matters is strictly prohibited.

Our fair employment policy and employee-friendly practices
have earned us recognitions as a Jockey Club Age-friendly City
Partner and a Happy Company.
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SOCIAL (continued)

B1. Employment (continued)

At 31 December 2019, the Group employed a workforce of
108 (2018: 117). The Group maintains a generally diversified
combination of employees which provides a balanced mix of
skills, experience and job knowledge to support our different
operational requirements.

B2. Health and Safety
Health and Safety Policy

o Operate in full compliance with all relevant occupational
health and safety legislation.

o Provide and maintain a healthy and safe work
environment and strive to prevent workplace accidents
from happening.

The Group is committed to maintaining a healthy and
safe workplace for employees, through observing all the
requirements under the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance of Hong Kong.

In view of the recent outbreak of the novel coronavirus,
the Group has adjusted its working arrangement to ensure
our employees’ well-being. Infection control guidelines for
staff were compiled and constantly updated pursuant to the
pandemic situation. Relevant policies including extending the
Chinese New Year holiday, allowing staff to work from home
or flexible working hours have been implemented where
feasible. On top of performing temperature checks on our staff
with non-contact thermometers, we also keep equipping them
with adequate infection prevention tools, such as surgical
masks and hand sanitizers, in a timely manner.

e E)

B1. EfE (&)
EZZ—NF+-A=+—8 AEEE
AHI0BUET (ZZT—NF:11741) o
SEH#FEARARZTIEMNEIBEBERE &
SEIRHE TR KR TEME X
BTIEANEES

B2. BREHRZZE
RBEEZ2EHEK

s ZHEBTHAMEBMNBXERNZZ
ER o

s REIRFBELZEZHIIFRE B
HiE R BHETESMPELESIN

AEEB NI RETHBREMNZEMNITIE
RE - UBTEEBRERE REREHZ
FrEMRE -

ERNOHFAETRRSEE SEDHE
TERHE MREE TR - RMARELHK
ARG S| - WIRR T T E 3 - 2
MBEREBEEREENFRYA BEAG
BTHERTFARERE M EIRRE R T
NIEE@EUREAERE TR RMATT
ERAETEREAERENHETA flmih
RMOSMREFRE-

Incidents of Work-related Fatality 2017 2018 2019
ET/EHBENETSER —T—+tF —E-)N\F —E—hE
Number of work-related fatalities B2 T {EFERIRYILT- S E = 0 0 0
Rate of work-related fatalities B T{EMRBEMI T EFH X 0% 0% 0%
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SOCIAL (continued)

B3. Development and Training

Employees are encouraged to receive training in their
respective professional fields and are provided with paid leave
for attending relevant programmes or public examinations
during office hours. The Group’s senior management members
attended sessions three times during the Year to update
themselves on corporate governance issues and the latest audit
requirements.

As at 31 December 2019, the financial services segment had
24 employees who were persons licensed by the Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC") to engage in one or more of the
regulated activities.

All licensed individuals have complied with the SFC's
requirement of undertaking at least 5 hours of continuous
professional training (“CPT") for each regulated activity they
carry out. In addition, the Group provides training on product
and industry knowledge, compliance and risk management,
manager-in-charge regime, common reporting standard,
suitability of investment recommendations and solicitations,
and anti-money laundering and counter-financing of terrorism.

B4. Labour Standards

The Group complies strictly with the Employment of Children
and Employment of Young Persons (Industry) Regulations
stipulated under the Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong. As
such, we prohibit child or forced labour for any position. There
was no legal case brought against the Group or its employees
for violation of relevant labour laws or regulations during the
Year.
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SOCIAL (continued)

B5. Supply Chain Management

The Group had one major supplier for its trading and
maintenance services business during the Year. According to
this supplier’s published sustainability report of 2019 (covering
the year from 1 January to 31 December 2018), it fully
endorses the UN Sustainable Development Goals (“UN SDGs")
that aim to achieve a balanced development of economy,
society and environment through business engagement and
value creation. In alignment with the UN SDGs, the supplier
reported that it had taken steps to manage water resource
risks in the workplace and monitor the quality of the effluent;
researched into technology that reduces energy use and
adopted such technology for its products; implemented energy
use reduction projects at overseas subsidiaries; adopted an
eco-design process and in-house eco product rating system
in the product development phase; operated a programme to
recover and recycle waste products; reduced greenhouse gas
emissions in the workplace and increased the use of renewable
energy; implemented pilot climate change adaptation projects
with an academic institute; and developed biodiversity
preservation guidelines and identified and improved its impact
on the aquatic ecosystem and the habitats of endangered
species.

As a general rule, the Group maintains communication with its
suppliers on ESG-related matters. Their compliance with our
ESG policies is taken into consideration in our procurement
process.

B6. Product Responsibility

Responsible Product and Supply Chain Policy
o Continuously improve the quality of our products and
services.

o Safeguard the health and safety of customers and protect
customer privacy and consumer rights in accordance with
applicable legislation.

o Be committed to the protection of intellectual property.

o Ensure fair and reasonable treatment of suppliers and
service providers in the procurement process.

Guoan International Limited Annual Report 2019
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SOCIAL (continued)

B6. Product Responsibility (continued)

The financial services segment has obtained all licences,
qualifications and permits required for its business operations.
It has designated personnel to ensure that business operations
comply with governing laws and regulations. Updates on
relevant laws and regulations are notified to the respective
operating units and employees from time to time. Licensed
persons of the segment have conducted business activities in
compliance with the Code of Conduct (the “Code”) of the
SFC during the Year.

The segment has developed a set of internal procedures to
guide its customer services staff in the handling of disputes or
complaints. The financial services segment did not record any
complaints during the reporting period.

For the trading segment, there had not been any product
recalls for safety or health reasons during the Year. Our
telecommunications supplier provides a warranty on the
mobile products it supplies to the Group for distribution.
Generally the warranty provided by the supplier covers one
year, but certain warranty terms may vary. The supplier also
adopts strict quality control procedures on its products.

The maintenance services segment recorded 1-2 incidents of
customer complaints per day during the Year, which were
resolved with the provision of further repair services. The
segment generally offers a further 30 days of warranty for
repaired devices.

The Group also observes the Codes of Practice issued by
the Office of the Privacy Commission for Personal Data. The
repair services segment has in place a system to erase and
separately store all data on customers’ mobile phones prior to
maintenance. Afterwards, such data will be erased from the
segment’s system after restoring them on customers’ mobile
phones. There had not been any reported case of data or
privacy infringement during the Year.
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RBE HERELEE

SOCIAL (continued) HE e

B7. Anti-corruption B7. RES

Governance Policy ERBR

e Maintain a strong commitment to conducting business s FHmBTEmEEE-
ethically.

e Adopt good corporate governance practices. s RWMROTWEEREFETA -

e Employees are prohibited from soliciting, accepting or s EREAEEEKK BREEERI-
offering advantages when dealing with the Group’s BEXRREE MR-
business.

e Operate in full compliance with all regulatory reporting o ETEEXSHEIMETHMAEEESR
requirements for monetary transactions. HERko

The Group complies with the Sample Code of Conduct by the ~ ANEEEFREAZE BLEMETT T~ 217
Independent Commission Against Corruption for the private /4 5F B &5 AN o AN4F [ (A IF 4 §1 4 A 52 @ =
sector. There had not been any legal case regarding corrupt ~ E{EEBIRHNESHRARM-

practices brought against the Group or its employees during

the Year.

The financial services segment is engaged in investment S RIRBEHITNESBIEIEHIEEER
advising, stock trading, margin financing, corporate REX S REFCRE PERE AR
placements and underwriting businesses. It has established — ©EX T [P AHE] BEEEX  FEAFRE
a "Chinese Wall” to prohibit communication or exchanges — HJBBEZ7  ABH & A5 & 2R -

of material, non-public information to prevent conflicts of

interest.
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SOCIAL (continued) HEg(s)
B8. Community Investment BS. #HERE

Social and Employee Related Activities during the Year ZAEERSHEHERETHBEIH

The Group constantly invests in the communities we  ANEEHEREERMLEMENLE B
operate in, with a view to better understanding them and HMAERBE THELHREME 2HEMIEE
catering more comprehensively to their needs. Through staff ~ fINE B - AEEFEBE TLHEEK TIE
volunteering, donations and venue sponsorships, the Group — BEMISHER S —RKIAEZNH
has supported a range of meaningful causes, including youth  RIBE @ BiESES VO FEE BERSE -
empowerment as well as care for the elderly, patients, and  JEEFERKEALZEE - %E T/ &
persons with disabilities. In addition to volunteering, the Group ~ £EFSHFE T B BLXEBREFT LT
also supported staff members to contribute to different causes A TRt 1E1EB B L & B -

through participation in special fundraising events.

Programme Group’s Participation Organiser Date/Period
HH SE2H EX Y 2 B H R
Dress Red for Staff participation in Children’s Thalassaemia 31 May 2019
Thalassaemia fundraising Foundation

B ERAKA ET2HEER WwHEEMRERES 20194 5A31H
Guoan Caring Event Staff volunteering Good Neighbour Network 29 Jul 2019
Cikegroleg 6 SR BET2HEEKTE SRS 201947 H29A

Mooncakes for Charity Staff engagement and The Community Chest of  Sep 2019

2019 donation Hong Kong

Nz A #2019 REEIRAELBE FEQAxED 2019494

Mooncakes Sharing and  Staff participation Food Angel 6 Sep 2019 — 27 Sep

Boxes Collection 2019 2019

2019 8D = BTI2H EBRE 2019%°9A6H %

A @7 201949AH27H

Raleigh Challenge — Venue sponsorship Raleigh Hong Kong 20 Sep 2019

Wilson Trail

ENEERE 15 1 & B) BENEE(FE) 20194F9 A20H

Dress Casual Day 2019 Staff participation in The Community Chest 10 Oct 2019
fundraising of Hong Kong

NaeERA BT 2HEERK EREREE 201910 A 10H

During the Year, the Group made a donation of HK$4,000 to ~ AFEER  ANEBEER 74,0008 T FEE
United Christian Nethersole Community Health Service. A BT EALRIRTS ©




HUMAN CAPITAL
ATEEF

The biographical details of each Director are set out below:

Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian (“Mr. HUANG")

Mr. HUANG, aged 59, was appointed as Executive Director
on 11 March 2016. He is an experienced businessman in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). During the period
from October 2000 to March 2015, Mr. HUANG worked in
REREERAFEIND QB (CITIC Networks Limited —
Shenzhen Branch*), a wholly-owned subsidiary under /B
ZEBE AR AR (CITIC Group Corporation*), in the capacity
of general manager and was responsible for managing
the operation of its Shenzhen Branch including budgeting,
development, operations and strategies in the region of
southern and eastern Guangdong as well as liaising with
corresponding governmental departments. On 19 December
2018, Mr. HUANG was appointed as a director of Guoan (HK)
Holdings Limited, the immediate holding company of Road
Shine Developments Limited, the controlling shareholder of
the Company. On 28 February 2019, Mr. HUANG also was
appointed as a director of Yicko Securities Limited, one of the
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. HUANG is responsible for
the Group’s corporate and business development strategies,
and oversees the environmental, social and governance related
matters.

Mr. DU Jun (“Mr. DU")

Mr. DU, aged 51, currently the chairman of the Board, was
appointed as Non-executive Director on 11 March 2016 and
redesignated as Executive Director on 31 January 2020. He
graduated from Shaanxi College of Finance and Economics
with a Master Degree of Economics. He was an engineer in the
early years, and until 1996 he joined Beijing Securities Limited
and has become very experienced in the finance industry over
the years.

In 2005, Mr. DU joined CITIC Guoan Group and became the
capital operation manager in 2006. In 2015, he was appointed
the deputy general manager of CITIC Guoan Group*, mainly
responsible for capital operation and fund management.
Currently he is also a director or a member of the senior
management of the subsidiary companies of CITIC Guoan
Group managing investment, elderly services and winery
business.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. LI Xiang Yu (“Mr. LI")

Mr. LI, aged 52, was appointed as Non-executive Director
on 11 March 2016. He graduated from Renmin University of
China with Bachelor Degree of Economics. In 1995, he got the
qualification of Senior Accountant in Beijing and has been very
experienced in the finance industry for years.

Mr. LI joined CITIC Guoan Group* in 2000 and became the
deputy manager and manager in finance department in
2002 and 2007 respectively. In 2015, he became the deputy
general manager of CITIC Guoan Group*, mainly responsible
for finance management etc. Currently he is also a director
of the subsidiary companies of CITIC Guoan Group managing
technology, asset management, travel investment and hotel
businesses.

Mr. CUI Ming Hong (“Mr. CUI")

Mr. CUI, aged 54, was appointed as Non-executive Director on
11 March 2016. He got his professional qualification of Physics
and graduated in the Capital Normal University (ex-Beijing
Normal College).

In 1998, Mr. CUI joined CITIC Guoan Group* and became
the deputy manager and manager in integrated planning
department in 1999 and 2007 respectively. In 2015, he
became the deputy general manager of CITIC Guoan Group,
mainly responsible for business strategic planning and project
management etc.

Currently Mr. CUl is also a director of the subsidiary companies
of CITIC Guoan Group managing properties investment, asset
management and winery businesses.

Ms. BAI Wei (“Ms. BAI")

Ms. BAI, aged 36, was appointed as Non-executive Director
on 23 August 2018. She graduated from the University of
Leicester of the United Kingdom with a Bachelor Degree of
Marketing and is also a holder of Master Degree of Science.
She was an executive manager of an advertisement company
in the early years.

In 2009, Ms. BAI joined the capital operation department of
CITIC Guoan Group*. In 2016, she was promoted as deputy
manager of capital operation department, mainly responsible
for capital operation, fund management and overseas
investment management. At the same time, she is also a
director or a supervisor of the senior management of a number
of the subsidiary companies of CITIC Guoan Group.

*  For identification purposes only
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Mr. WONG Chun Man (“Mr. WONG")

Mr. WONG, aged 43, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director on 11 March 2016. He is a holder of a
Bachelor Degree of Business Administration at the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. WONG has extensive experience
in corporate finance and he is a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Chartered
Financial Analyst of the CFA Institute. Mr. WONG is the non-
executive director of Vico International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1621) and the independent non-executive director of
Zhaobangji Properties Holdings Limited (stock code: 1660).

Mr. TSE Yung Hoi (“Mr. TSE")

Mr. TSE, aged 67, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director on 11 March 2016. Mr. TSE graduated from
English studies from the Department of Foreign Languages
and Literatures of Fudan University in July 1975. He is currently
the Chairman and Non-executive Director of BOCI-Prudential
Asset Management Limited. Mr. TSE serves as member of
Election Affairs Commission (Financial Services), Standing
Committee Member of the Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce and Permanent Honorary President of Hong Kong
Chinese Securities Association. Mr. TSE is also the independent
non-executive director of HJ Capital (International) Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 982), BOCOM International
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 3329), DTXC Silk Road
Investment Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 620), Vico
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1621), China Tower
Corporation Limited (stock code: 788), Banco Well Link, S.A.
and Shenzhen Qianhai Financial Holdings Company Limited.
Mr. TSE was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the
Government of HKSAR in 2013.
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Mr. NG Man Kung (“Mr. NG")

Mr. NG, aged 68, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director on 11 March 2016. Mr. NG graduated
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University with an attendance
certificate in banking. Mr. NG has over 28 years of
management experience in banking industry. He was
appointed as the managing director and general manager
of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited in 1992 and was its
vice-chairman and chief executive from 2001 to 2012. He
had worked as a business consultant at China Orient Asset
Management (International) Holding Limited, a company
principally engaged in investment from January 2014 to April
2015. Mr. NG was a non-executive director of Roma Group
Limited (stock code: 8072) from 24 August to 18 December
2017. Mr. NG was a member of the Council of Hong Kong
Polytechnic University from 1999 to 2003 and a member of
the Fujian Province Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (FEIARBUGHE EHEREEZ
B&X8)from 1993 to 2013. Mr. NG is an independent
non-executive director of Fujian Holdings Limited (stock code:
181), ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (stock code: 1395),
HKBridge Financial Holdings Limited (formerly known as China
HKBridge Holdings Limited) (stock code: 2323), Shanghai
Zendai Property Limited (stock code: 755) and Green Future
Food Hydrocolloid Marine Science Company Limited (stock
code: 1084). On 31 March 2018, Mr. NG was appointed as the
Chairman of the Supervisor Board of Well Link Bank in Macau.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EFERE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2019 by business and geographical segments is set
out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

A fair review of the Group’s business, including the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, the important events
affecting the Group that have occurred after 31 December
2019 and the likely future development, is set out in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 5 to 7 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 15.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 68.

The Directors resolved not to make any payment of an interim
dividend (2018: HK$ Nil) and do not recommend the payment
of a final dividend (2018: HK$ Nil) for the year ended 31
December 2019.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 72
to 73 and Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group at 31 December
2019 are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2019 and up to the date of this report are as
follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian
Mr. SO Haw Herman (resigned on 31 January 2020)
Mr. DU Jun (Chairman)
(redesignated on 31 January 2020)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LI Xiang Yu
Mr. CUI Ming Hong
Ms. BAI Wei

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. WONG Chun Man
Mr. TSE Yung Hoi
Mr. NG Man Kung

In accordance with Article 116 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr. DU Jun, Mr. LI Xiang Yu, Ms. BAI Wei
and Mr. WONG Chun Man shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
48 to 51.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of distributable reserves of the Company at 31
December 2019 are set out in Note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EFERE

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 194.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting have a service
contract with Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the employing company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 13 February 2018, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Yicko
Securities Limited at a total consideration of HK$420,000,000,
which was satisfied as to HK$120,000,000 in cash and
HK$300,000,000 by the issue of the convertible bonds of
the Company. The acquisition was completed on 28 February
2019. Mr. SO Haw Herman, being an executive Director, is the
son-in-law of Mr. Chong Chin (being one of the vendors) and
Ms. Yao Sze Ling. As such, each of Mr. Chong Chin (being
one of the vendors) and Ms. Yao Sze Ling is deemed as a
connected person of the Company under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Accordingly, the acquisition
and the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted
connected transaction for the Company under the Listing
Rules. Please refer to Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company’s announcement dated 14 February
2018 and 28 February 2019 and the Company’s circulars dated
24 May 2018 for more details.

The related party transactions as disclosed in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Group
has complied with the disclosure requirements, where
applicable, in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Save as disclosed above, no transactions were entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019, which
constitute connected transactions under the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as disclosed in the “Connected Transactions” section
in this report and Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, there were no transactions, arrangements or
contracts that are significant in relation to the businesses of
the Company and its subsidiaries to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his/
her connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no Director had
been recorded as having interests in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in
respect of Directors’ liability.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2019, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER
THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES ORDINANCE

At 31 December 2019, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained under section 336 of the SFO shows that the
following company (not being Directors or chief executive of
the Company) had long positions of 5% or more in the shares
of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:
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BREESRAERAATREZ
FTERRERHEMAT ZERE (8)

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER
THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES ORDINANCE

(continued)

Number of Number of Approximate
ordinary underlying percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares shares shareholding
REREH 56 LERGOGHE MHEEARGHE BoK
Road Shine Developments Limited  Beneficial owner 4,168,606,337 - 53.79%
BB A
Guoan (HK) Holdings Limited Interest of controlled 4,168,606,337 - 53.79%
(Note 1) corporation
Bz (B8 BERERAR (M) XEBEHEEEZ
hERTZEBR AR AT Interest of controlled  4,168,606,337 - 53.79%
(CITIC Guoan Group*) (Note 1) corporation
P ERTZEERRAR (M) X HEEE S
Mr. CHONG Chin (Note 2) Beneficial owner - 1,153,846,153 14.89%
KRB S (Fat2) REHEEER
Ms. YAO Sze Ling (Note 2) Beneficial owner - 1,153,846,153 14.89%

ERHR B 22 £ (Hfat2)

EEHEE R

Note:

1.

Road Shine Developments Limited is held as to 100% by Guoan
(HK) Holdings Limited, which in turn is held as to 100% by
CITIC Guoan Group*. Under the SFO, each of Guoan (HK)
Holdings Limited and CITIC Guoan Group* is deemed to be
interested in all the shares held by Road Shine Developments
Limited.

Mr. CHONG Chin and his spouse, Ms. YAO Sze Ling, jointly
hold convertible bonds amounting to HK$300,000,000 issued
by the Company on 28 February 2019. The convertible bonds
carried a right to convert the convertible bonds into shares of
the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.26 per conversion
share.

*  For identification purpose only

Save

as disclosed above, no other person was recorded in the

register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as
having an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2019.

Guoan International Limited

Annual Report 2019
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the convertible bonds are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 5 March 2015, a share option scheme (the “Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders of the Company.
No share option has been granted under the Option Scheme
since its adoption.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended
31 December 2019.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2019 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers
and customers are as follows:—

EFEHS

iR R 3 8 105 R
A A E S 2 F BN AR A M WK T
32

B EstE
RZE—RAFE=ARHB KA ARELER
—IABEARRERT 2 ([REARAERT &I ) - BB P
T B MUK EBEZATER L E
AR 4 o

EEEY

REBEE-_ZE—NFt+_A=+—"HILFE
A AR EER X RN EZER
ZEBRITHRIERIKGFREEMEY -

IEEFRMHERS
AEBZEBHEBREFRE-2—A
FE+- A=+ BLFERERTERS
EFEIEALIT : —

Percentage

of the total
purchases/sales
accounted for

FihBE

HEHH

Bt
Purchases e

— the largest supplier — A ER 20.0%

— five largest suppliers combined —hARHEEERE 49.9%
Sales HER

— the largest customer —&AEP 12.8%

— five largest customer combined —REREFP#BE 46.6%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the
five largest suppliers or customers of the Group noted above.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association although there are no
restrictions against such rights under the laws of the Cayman
Islands.

BEEE HBMBEAREARR (BEER
HMBEEARADETRASRAL)HEA £
MAEBRAHEENETP 2

BrRBERE

56 A B0 2 B¥ B 0% ) 3 498 408 4 B A4 L
fR ) B AR RAKER M AR I A
BE -

B BIRA A
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PENSION SCHEME

On 1 December 2000, the Group set up a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in association with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “MPF Ordinance”). The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group and are under the control of an independent
trustee.

The Group and its employees are each required to make a
mandatory contribution of 5% of the employees’ relevant
income to the MPF Scheme, subject to a maximum
contribution of HK$1,500 per month during the year ended
31 December 2019 as prescribed by the MPF Ordinance.
Members are entitled to 100% of the employer’s mandatory
contributions as soon as they are paid to the MPF Scheme but
all benefits derived from the mandatory contributions must be
preserved until an employee reaches the retirement age of 65
or in accordance with the rules of MPF Scheme.

In addition to the mandatory contributions, the Group made
voluntary contributions for certain employees during the year
ended 31 December 2019. In any event, the total monthly
contributions made by the Group to an employee are capped
at 5% of the relevant employee’s relevant income.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and a
resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the said meeting.

On behalf of the Board

DU Jun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 April 2020

Guoan International Limited Annual Report 2019
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Independent Auditors’ Report

HLB) B # & 3 & ¥ # 5 A 2 3

HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GUOAN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Guoan International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 68 to 193, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended 31 December 2019, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3(b) in the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a
net loss of approximately HK$46,588,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2019 and, as of that date, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$117,539,000. As stated in Note 3(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, these events or conditions, along with
other matters as set forth in Note 3(b), indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Guoan Irlternational Limited Annual Report 2019
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The key audit matter
BEELSHE

BB E

BERELEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESHEBLRTNEED R

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 YRR 2 MBS

Refer to Notes 3 and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements

F2HERAMBRRM EIN23

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had gross
trade receivables of approximately HK$338,084,000
(2018: HK$149,894,000) and provision for
impairment of approximately HK$139,792,000
(2018: HK$139,290,000).
EEBER T NF+=-A=T—HEESE
U 3K TE 48 %8 #9338,084,0008 T (T — )\ & :
149,894,000/ 7T ) K i 1B # &5 49139,792,0007% 7T
(== — )\ 139,290,000 7T ) °

The impairment assessment of trade receivables
was considered as a key audit matter due to the
significant and subjective management judgements
and estimates.

B 5 RWFTRRER G EE R R 8 E IR E H b
RAEFT MRS AR ERER-

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2019
included:

BMERAEEEER S —NF+-A=+T—HANEZENK
REZRENEZRFEE:

o Understanding and evaluating the key controls that the
Group has implemented to manage and monitor its
credit risk, and validating the control effectiveness on a
sample basis;

o TEKIMHME EXECEROBEEESIER UEER
ERHEERR I HMEREREE A

o Checking, on a sample basis, the aging profile of
the trade receivables as at 31 December 2019 to
the underlying financial records and post year-end
settlements to bank receipts;

s WMERER-ZE-NF+A=+—BERHKIHN
BB 5 RIFIBNRRERL L FEBRNRITRFES
Yotz
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BIRZBENIRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The key audit matter
BRELSE

BEEREE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESHEBRTNERS R

Impairment assessment of trade receivables
(continued)

EZEUBFBZHERML (&)

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group
to the customers. Management performed
periodic assessment on the recoverability of the
trade receivables and the sufficiency of provision
for impairment based on information including
credit profile of different customers, aging of the
trade receivables, historical settlement records,
subsequent settlement status, expected timing and
amount of realisation of outstanding balances, and
on-going trading relationships with the relevant
customers. Management also considered forward-
looking information that may impact the customers’
ability to repay the outstanding balances in order
to estimate the expected credit losses for the
impairment assessment.

mEms EEERTEFPNEEH-EEER
BIRAZEFHNEREBN  BZREFIANKE &
ARECDH BEEENR EHERRRERE
RERCRENERETFORERIBREENY
B Z IR AT Bl fOREE B TR L ET
Y- EEETEREARTERFEEREE
R NHMATEEER  AEEREFENERE

EEE-

The assessment of impairment for margin client
receivables was including estimation of probability
of default, valuation of collateral, expected future
cash flows and futures economic conditions.

ERHFREE P ZIEREN G RIERL AT hEt
EARRMEE BRERKBSRERRRLEBEAMNR

We focused on this area due to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables under the expected
credit losses model involved the use of significant
management judgements and estimates.
HAEILESE AR BERREEEEENXET
BB 7RI IRRERN G LERERNEIEE A
Ko flEt e

Inquiring of management for the status of each of
the material trade receivables past due as at year end
and corroborating explanations from management
with supporting evidence, such as performing
public search of credit profile of selected customers,
understanding on-going business relationship with the
customers based on trade records, checking historical
and subsequent settlement records of and other
correspondence with the customers;
HHEREAHEFREAMNZIEENE HRKFIAN
R ERLNRAEHEEEFNERABR BREX S
BRTRETFORELEBBAR REEXFPATREZE
REESAREEPHEMERERHEXREREEE
B EE:

For margin client receivables, in assessing the credit
loss allowances made by the Group, we checked the
valuation of the collateral and developed a reasonable
range of expected cash shortfall for comparison with
the Group’s assessment; and
RERAREFHEMS -1 ESEEHEEERN
M HPREERAnEERGTRAReEZRH A8
HE NE SRECAEETHER: K

Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit
loss provisioning methodology, examining the key data
inputs on a sample basis to assess their accuracy and
completeness, and challenging the assumptions, including
both historical and forward-looking information, used to
determine the expected credit losses.
AETEREERREE D ENERL MEEEI2H
ABUBRH R EB M R BN HARETHEHEERS
BORR AEELRAIBEEER REEREE-

We found that the management judgment and estimates

used to assess the recoverability of the trade receivables and
determine the impairment provision to be supportable by
available evidence.
RABREEEAUNEE SR FIENAIKEN REFEHR
] 15 28 15 S 5 B0 R0 (B 188 3 1/ L B 1 Ol % fik 5t o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The key audit matter
REEZSHE

BB E

BERELEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESHEBRTNEED R

Impairment assessment of goodwill

&R E R

Refer to Notes 3 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statement

FL2HRAMBRRMEIRT

We identified the impairment assessment of
goodwill arising on acquisition of businesses
through acquisition of subsidiaries as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
combined with the significant degree of judgments
made by the management of the Group associated
with the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated.
EERERAKBNEAREE L BERRARBRE
REE WIHNEREGANBERR I ERBER
-t EEEEEEREIERBZRSEL
B rREeBRIELERIZRE G-

Management concluded that there is no impairment
on goodwill. This conclusion was based on a value
in use model that required significant management
judgement with respect to the discount rate and the
underlying cash flows, in particular future revenue
growth. An independent external valuation was
obtained in respect of the impairment assessment
on goodwill in order to support management's
estimates.

ERERAMEEHRBRE ZERIRERE
MR ELEARERE (FRIRARKRIER)E
HERNEREHENEREERLSGH - B EHER
EREBEIIMNBRENEEXHERENMET-

Our procedures in relation to management's impairment
assessment of goodwill included:

BEEHEREBFLBERENGNEFERE:

o Evaluating the independent external valuers'
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

. TEBUNBEESNEE N REBREE

o Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology, key assumptions and estimates used base
on our knowledge of the relevant industry and using
our valuation experts;

o ERHMEMBBOTRNTRIAEARMNBERR A
AEEERE ARERREMAGENEE T

e  Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of business and industry; and

s REFXBRIEZNZERAREINGEML: R

o Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input date used.

o  HMEREMMEAREZERELARMIE-

We found that the management judgment and estimates
used to assess the recoverable of cash-generating units and
determine the impairment provision to be supportable by
available evidence.
BMBEREBERUMGAIREReELEMRETA ARG
78 B SRR RO R (B 8 18 1 L B VB e i 5t o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not included the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon (“Other
Information™).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Guoan IrJternationaI Limited
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also: (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practising Certificate Number: P06417

Hong Kong, 9 April 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
SeRaRkEtZEKGE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Bz BHE
—E-NEF —E-N\F
+=ZA=+—H +=A=+—H
EFE LEFE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
ft et BET T BT T
Revenue g 7 207,794 109,712
Cost of sales SHE R (161,032) (86,630)
Gross profit E7 46,762 23,082
Other revenue H A Yz 8 4,973 3,728
Other losses, net H b BB FHE 9 (336) (2,402)
Selling and distribution expenses HENDHETH (983) (1,063)
Administrative expenses THREH (68,153) (66,814)
Other operating expenses H A 48 & % H (388) (121)
Finance costs B B B AR 10 (25,649) (251)
Loss before taxation B 15 A& 1 11 (43,774) (43,841)
Taxation 18 12 (2,814) 4
Loss for the year FEBHR (46,588) (43,837)
Other comprehensive loss Hith2EEE
Item that may be reclassified HEngEET HEEEm s
subsequently to profit or loss: B :
Exchange differences on translation BEBIRBZELZHE
of foreign operations (34) (21)
Other comprehensive loss for FEHAMEZEER  HRBE
the year, net of tax (34) (21)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ FE 2 HEE 1B 4% (46,622) (43,858)

Guoan International Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
SeRakEtZEKEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ-_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

BZE BHE

—E-hEF —E-N\F
+=ZA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
IEEE IFE

Notes HK$°000 HK$°000

fit it BEFT BETT

Loss for the year attributable to: UTATEEFERSE:

Owners of the Company 7NN ZN (45,417) (43,690)
Non-controlling interests FEERE R (1,171) (147)
(46,588) (43,837)
Total comprehensive loss for UTATEEEFEZHER
the year attributable to: e
Owners of the Company KARHEA A (45,451) (43,711)
Non-controlling interests FEERE R (1,171) (147)
(46,622) (43,858)
Loss per share attributable KAREBEAELEBRER
to owners of the Company
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EARREE (BL) 14 (0.59) (0.56)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these 58 PR PR = 45 7N £ BR 4 & B 765 i 3% B0 4B K 3T
consolidated financial statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ReMBKLE

As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—AF+=-A=+—H

JAY

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
B i BT T BT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME MBENERE 15 302,563 312,863
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 4,976 =
Goodwill S 17 299,121 -
Financial assets at fair value through  E:iBI8z5 A A F(EDIEE 2 &7t
profit or loss BE 19 13,560 14,550
Other assets EMEE 21 3,711 -
Deferred tax assets RIEFEE E 33 269 =
Deposits for acquisition of WEHB AR ZkE
subsidiaries - 21,873
624,200 349,286
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 22 13,239 34,566
Trade receivables U E 5 BRI 23 198,292 10,604
Prepayments, deposits and other AN ERIA e R E b
receivables IE 24 12,946 11,651
Loan and interest receivables EWE R B 20 - 13,043
Financial assets at fair value through F:EBHEZAAN T ESEZ S5
profit or loss BE 19 1,173 1,840
Contract assets EUNEE 25 1,155 -
Pledged time deposits BB E TR 26 10,151 5,159
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTTES
- Segregated accounts —BUERP 27(a) 121,789 -
— House accounts —BE8EKFP 27(b) 47,833 34,199
406,578 111,062
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables e 8 5Bk 3K 28 185,623 10,540
Accrued charges and other payables  fE=+ % BB &z H fih & 1 7038 29 68,895 52,663
Bank and other borrowings BITREMEES 30 160,000 34,500
Loan from the ultimate holding BRI AT B
company 31 3,556 3,556
Convertible bonds AR ES 32 99,713 -
Contract liabilities adAaE 25 265 =
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEAE 33 47 -
Lease liabilities HEEBRE 34 3,570 =
Tax payable FERT 18 2,448 —
524,117 101,259

Guoan International Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
REMBEKAE

As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—HAF+-_HA=+—8H

2019 2018
—B-nE ZTN\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

fff BT T BT T

Net current (liabilities)/assets RE (ARG BETH (117,539) 9,803
Total assets less current liabilities #EERAIEE 506,661 359,089
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Convertible bonds Al AR E 5 32 186,390 -
Deferred tax liabilities ELFIEAE 33 2,869 604
Lease liabilities HEBE 34 1,548 -
190,807 604
Net assets EEFHE 315,854 358,485
Equity =
Share capital A& 7 35 77,489 77,489
Reserves & 239,683 267,643

Total equity attributable to owners NANTIEB AE(G e

of the Company 317,172 345,132
Non-controlling interests JEFE IR #E 25 (1,318) 13,353
Total equity mED 315,854 358,485
The consolidated financial statements were approved and EARBREOR S -_ZFNALAE
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 9 April 2020 EEgERKETE THTIESEK
and signed on its behalf by: REFRERE:

HUANG Zhen Qian DU Jun
EiR® HE
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these & Bt BT 5 7% 2N RS BR 4R & B 75 S 2k 89 4B K BB
consolidated financial statements. 7 e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SReEaERE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AARRAAELRE
Capital ~ Convertible  Exchange Non-
Share Share Capital ~ redemption bonds difference  Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Subtotal interests Total
g% Thk i3] gt FER

kx  RBEE  ERRE 2 REEE  BHEE ZERG # it E& ait
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
AEfr  B¥Tn BETn ARFr BEfn BETn BETn BEFr BEFr BETn
(Note &) (Note b) (Note ¢)
(hida) (W) (Wi

At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\E-A-H 77489 858,897 2450 160 = 6,107 (556,260) 388,843 = 388,843

Loss for the year EREE = = - = = = (43,690) (43,690) (147) (#38)
Item that may be reclasified ERREN RS
subsequently to profit or loss: ZER:
Exchange differences on translation  AE BN EB 2 EX 28
of foreign operation - - = = = 21) - 21) = 21)

Total comprehensive loss for the year AEE 2 AESEES - - - - - (1) (43,690) (@3,711) (147) (43,838)

Capital contribution from non- REMELDERRER
controling interests of a subsidiary 2T & = - - - - - - - 13,500 13,500

At 31 December 2018 and R=E-\E+24

1 January 2019 S+-ARZT-NE
-A-A 77489 858,897 2450 160 - 6,086 (599,950) 345132 13353 358,485
Los for the year FRER - - - = - S WA T s

Item that may be reclasified ERREN RS
subsequently to proft or loss: ZEf:
Exchange differences on translation  AE BN EB 2 EX 28
of foreign operation - - - - - (34) - (34) - (34)

Total comprehensive loss for the year AEE 2 AEEES - - - - - (34) (45,417) (45,451) (1171) (46,622)

Recognition of the equity component A k&% 7 535

of convertible bonds - - - - 21,087 - - 21,087 - 1,087
Deferred tax on convertible bonds R 4 2 EXLHE - - - - (3,59) - - (3,59) - (3,59)
Decrease in non-controlling interests  —Ff B AT ERAIHEE

arising from capitel eduction of a2 FEERIERH

subsidiary - - - - - - - - (13,500) (13,500)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-1%

t=A=+-A 77,489 858,897 2,450 160 17491 6,052 (645,367) EiVAYYS (1,313) 315,854

Guoan International Limited Annual Report 2019




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FeHREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve represents the repurchase
of shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited during the financial year of 30 September 2000.
These repurchased shares were cancelled upon repurchase
and, accordingly, the nominal value of the cancelled shares
was credited to capital redemption reserve and the aggregate
consideration paid was debited to the retained earnings and
share premium account.

Convertible bonds reserve
Convertible bonds reserve represents equity portion of
convertible bonds.

Exchange difference reserve

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
assets of the Group’s foreign operations from their functional
currencies to the Group's presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) are recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange difference reserve. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy of foreign
currencies set out in Note 3(h).

Ffat -

(a)

(b)

(c)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HaBenE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE-_T-NFT+-A=1T—HILFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZ-Z-h&F BZ2-_FT—N\F
+=ZA=+-H +=-A=+—H
EEE LFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
fit &t BETFT BEF T
Cash flows from operating activities REX£ECvBERE
Loss before taxation BRI AT E1E (43,774) (43,841)
Adjustments for: AEIEE -
Depreciation of property, plant ME BELRRETE
and equipment 11,15 10,294 10,810
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 11,16 4,001 -
Bad debts written off I AR 88 11 27 101
Net unrealised loss on financial assets at  #E@BE=RIAN T EETIE 2
fair value through profit or loss REHEMEERE 9 971 2,402
Net realised gain on financial assets at BBBHEAATEEBEIEZ
fair value through profit and loss EERemEERR 7 (516) (385)
Loss on written off of property, plant MEEME  WELREEE
and equipment 11 305 6
Loss on lease modification HEBIBE 9 386 -
Reversal of allowance for expected credit EUWE ZERZH 2
loss of trade receivables BHEEBERERD 9,11 (1,021) -
Allowance for inventories FERE 11 9 17
Reversal of allowance for inventories FERERR 11 (5) (70)
Dividend income B B A 8 (44) (87)
Bank interest income RITRE WA 8 (455) (112)
Interest expense FERX 10 25,649 251
Operating cash flows before EEECRBIZRERENRE
movements in working capital (4,173) (30,908)
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fairi& BESIA A FEN K S REE
value through profit or loss wWL/ (3Eh) 1,206 (2,467)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD,/(HEm) 21,323 (33,382)
Decrease/(increase) in loan EREREFERD,/ (#E)
and interest receivables 13,043 (2,876)
Increase in trade receivables e B 5 BR L AN (13,243) (6,491)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, BAHIE  He REAMERGRIE
deposits and other receivables md /(&) 24,538 (23,742)
Decrease in current held in bank balance $R1T4 8 2 mEH &R >
- Segregated accounts —BURP 1,758 -
Increase in other assets H & EE (1,402) =
Increase in contract assets EREEEEM (1,155) -
Decrease in contract liabilities EREAERD (737) -
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables EREZER CRD), /1L (4,834) 9,331
Increase in accrued charges FEET B A K H b & 1< ZR IR 1 AN
and other payables 5,288 8,748

Guoan International Limited Annual Report 2019




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
TEHRERE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BHE-Z-IL5F BE-2-)N\F
+=ZA=+—-HB +=ZA=+—H
HEEE EFE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
ft & BETF T BT T
Cash generated from/(used in) REXBRFE/ (FR) 2
operating activities BeFE 41,612 (81,787)
Profit tax (paid)/refund (B /BEFIEFH (1,203) 182
Net cash generated from/(used in) meEBELE/ (ER)Z
operating activities ReFH 40,409 (81,605)
Cash flows from investing activities REXBE-BERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment & E %% B E k& 15 (158) (903)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant  HE¥%¥  BE RFEZFETIE
and equipment 5 =
Net cash outflow for acquisition WiE—HRBAR RS R FE
of a subsidiary 38 (111,666) -
Dividend received B S a4 87
Interest received BIF 2 455 112
Increase in pledged time deposits B E B Fgm (4,992) (75)
Net cash used in investing activities REEBFERAZRE FE (116,312) (779)
Cash flows from financing activities BWEZHzBERE
Repayment of lease liabilities BEMERRE (3,940) -
Interest paid BRFE (6,612) (223)
Repayment of loan from a related party BB —ZHEALTER (12,000) -
Capital contribution from non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary REMBAREERER 2 TE - 13,500
Decrease in non-controlling interests arising — &I b /B A 7] & A B REE 2
from capital reduction of a subsidiary B ER R (13,500) -
Increase in bank and other borrowings SRIT M H A fE B2 A0 332,500 57,000
Repayments of bank and other borrowings &R 17 k HbE & (207,000) (27,000)
Net cash generated from RETBEECHREFHE
financing activities 89,448 43,277
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BekFeZEMLEN CRd)
and cash equivalents R 13,545 (39,107)
Cash and cash equivalents FNzReRReEED
at the beginning of year 34,199 73,511
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  [EXR % &) v & 89 (205)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of EXRZEENRLEEY
the year 47,833 34,199
Analysis of balances of cash and cash BE&RBSEBULEH I
equivalents
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITHER
— House accounts —BBEFP 47,833 34,199




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M EREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
9 December 1998 as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares have a primary listing on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
and a secondary listing on Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST").

The registered office of the Company is P.O. Box 309,
Ugland House, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at 15th Floor of Tower Il, Admiralty
Centre, No.18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in trading
of telecommunications and other products, provision
of repair services for telecommunications products,
investment in financial assets, provision of brokerage
services operation and money lending business.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
regard Road Shine Developments Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands as the immediate
holding company, and CITIC Guoan Group, a company
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") as the ultimate holding company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") which is also the functional
currency of the Company. All values are rounded to
the nearest thousand (“HK$'000") except otherwise
indicated.

*  For identification purpose only

Guoan IAternationaI Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

The accounting policies adopted in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the Group’s annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018 except as
described below.

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for
the first time in the current year:—

HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
(Amendments) 2015-2017 Cycle

HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
(Amendments) Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
(Amendments) Settlement

HKAS 28 Long-term interest in Associates and
(Amendments) Joint Ventures

HK (IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over income tax
treatments Transactions

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and position for the current and prior periods and/or
on the disclosures set out in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M EREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

2.

Guoan IAternationaI Limited

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 “Leases”
("HKAS 17"), and the related interpretations.

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 16

The Group has applied the following accounting policies
in accordance with the transition provisions of HKFRS 16.

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application, the Group assesses whether
a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception or modification date. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

As a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office premises that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16. Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 16 (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases, the Group recognises right-
of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e.
the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:—

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term is depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

2.

Guoan International Limited

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 16 (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:—

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate;

o amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 16 (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market
rental rates are initially measured using the market rental
rates as at the commencement date. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
not included in the measurement of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets, and are recognised as an expense in
the period on which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:—

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent
review, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

2.

Guoan International Limited

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 16 (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

Taxation

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable
to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and
over the lease terms due to application of the initial
recognition exemption.

Transition and summary of effects arising from
initial application of HKFRS 16

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”
and not to apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the
Group has not reassessed contracts which had already
existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group has applied the definition of
a lease in accordance with the requirements set out in
HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains a
lease.

Annual Report 2019

2.

PRANFTE] & 78 B RS R S 2E A
(IEBMBHREEAN)RE
CHESED,

FERERMBRELERE 163 [H
EI2RERETRRED (B)
EREERBEHREERIFE165EH
ZEITHEEXNEE (&)
TERAMA (&)

BiIE

A EAKEHHEER 7 HERE AR
BELRMEBEERABZELEHEAM
FAREEABEERBEHNRESE
BREAEEEXHERR-

BB RGRBENHERECHER
ZME ARESFEGTEAF2
SETATS T AR E 2 Bl e A X6 P 4
EEMHERGB HEREEELH
EREMBCEREZERNVTHIAR
REEMAT SRR ARERT Y
HHERERR

BEAXEREBMEREERFE165
ELZBERZGEHL
HEZTE#
AEBECERAITREN L LR
EREFEEGTEANF 175 TS (B
RYBREREZES) —RER4
HIBEERHEEEEE]#MNA
MEZANRERTEMBRE LIS
1658 ML |ME AL KRB BES
HEMNAHWERAZER -HA A%
B AREH AN ERER B
FEZEN-

AR T NEFE-H—HHZKFIL
HIERZANME  ARBECDRESR
78 B 75 ¥ 5 42 BII 551 655 P 8 AR E FE
HEZERFEANECREEE




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& M 35 8 5 P o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Transition and summary of effects arising from
initial application of HKFRS 16 (continued)

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal
to the related lease liabilities adjusted by any prepaid or
accrued lease payments by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii)
transition. Any difference at the date of initial application
is recognised in the opening retained profits and
comparative information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-
by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective
lease contracts:—

i.  having relied on the assessment of whether leases
are onerous by applying HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” as an
alternative of impairment review;

i. having elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for leases with lease term ends
within 12 months of the date of initial application;
and

iii.  having excluded initial direct costs from measuring
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application.

When recognising the lease liabilities for lease previously
classified as operating lease, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group
entities at the date of initial application. The weighted
average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied is
approximately 3.7%.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. REFET BB Y HREED
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (BERAMBHREEL ) RH
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS CHENE )

("HKFRSs") (continued)
Impacts and changes in accounting policies of FEREEMBREERE165[H
application on HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued) ElzRERETHEEY (&)
Transition and summary of effects arising from BEAXEREBUBHREEAEI6T
initial application of HKFRS 16 (continued) FEEXZBERSEMML (&)
As at
1 January
2019
R-ZF—-Nh#%F
—A—H
HK$'000
BT T
Operating lease commitments disclosed R-ZE—-NF+-_A=+—HFRBEEZ
as at 31 December 2018 A THE AIE 5,455
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant NS EEENERAR HEAE
incremental borrowing rates 4,943
Less: Recognition exemption — short-term leases i : FER % % — A E (1,217)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R-ZZTE—-—NhF—RA—AZHEaRE 3,726
Analysed as DR
Current &N 1,883
Non-current IETRH 1,843
3,726
The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the following FrigRzEREEENA TS EEE
types of assets:— -
As at As at
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
R=ZZ—NF RIT-IF
+=A —A
=t+—H —H
HK$°000 HK$'000

BT BETT

Rental premises HEW 4,976 3,726
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. RFFTERYBHREER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (BERAMBHREEL ) RH
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS CHENE )

("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of EREBMBREERNE165 [
application on HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued) E|I2HERSHBREE (&)
Transition and summary of effects arising from BEAXEREBUBHREEDEI6T
initial application of HKFRS 16 (continued) FEEXZBERSEMML (&)

The Group recognised lease liabilities of approximately RZZE-—NF—A—B XEEER
HK$3,726,000 and right-of-use assets of approximately HEBELB3,726,0007T & F A
HK$3,726,000 at 1 January 2019. 1B EE H7513,726,0007T °

The following adjustments were made to the amounts AR _ZE-NF—-R—BESHBMN
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial MRERNEEELRATHAE AKX
position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not BYRTENSBEILESEEA-

affected by the changes have not been included.

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at Impact on HKFRS 16 at
31 December adoption of 1 January
2018 HKFRS 16 2019
—E-hEF

FRTRA —A—8H

—EBE-N\F HRENESE BEFTBUK
+=A B HE i £ 2E A
=+—H2%# R 51658 £165EM

YRR E B OR-Z AREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

BT T BT T BT T

Non-current assets ERBEE

Right-of-use assets EREEE - 3,726 3,726
Current liabilities RBEE

Lease liabilities HEARE = 1,883 1,883
Non-current liabilities kRBERE

Lease liabilities HEARE = 1,843 1,843
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. RMFHTERMBREZEA
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (BEBMBREEN]) RE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS CEIENE D,

("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRS in issue but not EHEMEMRERNHITERBME

yet effective HEA R EBRT AR

The Group has not early applied the following new and REBEWERZEZEAUNTEBRME R

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are REBKRFETBAN B REEL R H

not yet effective:— {EETA - -

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts' BAEVBERE REREA

ERIENT5R
HKFRS 3 (Amendments)  Definition of a Business? BB KRS ¥ 2 EE?
AR ZE35%
({BETA)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28  Sale or Contribution of Assets BBV B®RE RBREEFHEBE
(Amendments) between an investor and its AEBI| %1058 HEETEZ
Associate or Joint Venturns? RBEBEE FHMEELE
4RI 2858 A3
SEHEY)
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material* BEASFER ERAZEER
(Amendments) FIRRED
S ERIESH
CEHEN)
HKFRS 9, HKAS39 and  Interest Rate Benchmark BB KRS F R ELAE PG e
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)  Reform?* AR ZEI5R
BAEGEER
FI9HRER
M mEERE
75% (BRI A)

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 1 RZZE-_—F—HA—HB=z2%HHR
January 2021. 2 FEEARAER -

2 Effective for business combination and asset acquisitions 2 HNERSRA-—S -_TF—A—H
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning ¥ ERIA 2 GBS BAE RS R
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January HCBEMEBRAHNREEREE
2020. B o

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date 3 REEE 2Bz &RAB2FE
to be determined. HRE A 2K o

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 4 RZEZTF—-HA—Hxkz2%E&MA
January 2020. ZFEEARER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRS in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting was issued in 2018. Its consequential
amendments, the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned in the consolidated financial statement, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements
in the foreseeable future.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
which is a collective term that includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the
HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HEHE &)
POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation (b) WEEXE

Guoan Irlternational Limited

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements is the
historical cost convention except for certain financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019)
or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable

fm B4R B B 5 AR IR 2 PR S X
ROAERFTEERE B BIBS
ARFEIIR & B EERRIN

R 52 R AR — AR IRIGENE dn B AR5
IR EBz A FEEFE-

AT EEISEM SR EE ZHE
ERETZERERSTHE
—HEEJRMSEE—BAE
BAXMZEBE TwmZERRES
Al{F A E M ERIITEEERK
Bt RNHEEESABBZATF
BEN AEEZEEMHELHE
2R AZEESABETTE
BREBEERBZZEFE &
EREMBREFENER K
WERAERZAFEEHRLE
EET WHEBMBHRELERE
25RARRMD BER 2 N RESEE R
RHBAEERZ RS RIE
BEMBHRELERFE 165 (B
T-hEF—A—BR)KEEEG
FFERIFEN 7R (RERE BT B
MEEDFE 165 ARZHEE
G AREAFEBEAELEL
FRFEBEZE (HlEES

value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS STERE2RFEE 2 A 2R FE
36 Impairment of Assets. BB GTERFEI6REER
BZ2EREE) BRI

For financial instruments which are transacted
at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure
fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation (continued) (b) RBEE (£&)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair AN AU BE®RM S A TFE

value measurements are categorised into Level 1, B E2REAFEEFEZBHA

2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs BRI BREE L ABURE &

to the fair value measurements are observable BAEQATEEZEZUSER

and the significance of the inputs to the fair value F—R BRMKE=RHE
measurement in its entirety, which are described as MR

follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) e ZFERBHAHEBEEER
in active markets for identical assets or 2R URGHREE
liabilities that the entity can access at the IBERNERM S 2 HRE
measurement date; (REeFA®)

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted s ZFEABWAHBEBERZE—
prices included within Level 1, that are FABIEZREINA]EHE
observable for the asset or liability, either IEEERCEEXER
directly or indirectly; and ZE AT R

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the s ZB-RBMABBREEX
asset or liability. BEZIAAEEHEAH

i o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

90

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEZ:BEHE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation (continued) (b) MmBEXE (&)
Going concern FHEKE

Guoan IAternationaI Limited

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$46,588,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019 and, as of that date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$117,539,000. Furthermore,
amongst the total carrying amount of the bank
and other borrowings and the convertible bonds
of approximately HK$446,103,000 as at 31
December 2019, bank and other borrowings
and the convertible bonds of approximately
HK$259,713,000 are due for repayment within one
year from 31 December 2019.

These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore, the Group may not be able to realise
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.

In order to ensure the Group’s ability to operate as
a going concern, the directors of the Company have
implemented measures to deal with the conditions
referred to above, as follows:

(i) In relation to the convertible bonds with
principal amount of HK$100,000,000 due
on 28 February 2020, subsequent to the
reporting period, on 28 February 2020, the
Company has entered into a deed of extension
to extend the maturity date for repayment of
the principal amount of the convertible bonds
from 28 February 2020 to 28 November 2020.

The Company has been actively negotiating
with the holders of the remaining convertible
bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$200,000,000, regarding the settlement
arrangement of those convertible bonds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M EREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation (continued) (b) RBEE (£&)

Going concern (continued)

(i) The Company has placed its buildings
with carrying amount of approximately
HK$299,763,000 as at 31 December 2019 for
sale.

(ili) The directors of the Company will continue
to implement measures aiming at improving
the working capital and cash flows of the
Group including closely monitoring general
administrative expenses and operating costs.

(iv) The immediate holding company, Road Shine
Developments Limited, has agreed to provide
financial support for the continuing operations
of the Company so as to enable it to meet
its liabilities as they fall due and carry on its
business without a significant curtailment
of operations in the twelve months from 31
December 2019.

The directors of the Company have carried out a
detailed review of the cash flow forecast of the
Group for the next twelve months from the end of
the reporting date taking into account the impact of
the above measures, and believe that the Group will
have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future
working capital and other financing requirements.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue its business
as a going concern, adjustments would have to
be made to write down the value of assets to
their recoverable amount, to provide for future
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and liabilities to current assets and
liabilities respectively. The effects of these potential
adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE_—F

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

—NE+-A=1+—BLEFE

POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Guoan International Limited

Basic of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give
it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e  the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights

relative to the size and dispersion of holdings
of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M EREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

() Basic of consolidation (continued) () FERBEBEE(£)

o any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon
liquidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESFEEHE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
() Basic of consolidation (continued) () HRERBEE (&)
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests FEBRBEENBLAAEEE
in existing subsidiaries ZEREE
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in REBRWE R BEAE 2 s
existing subsidiaries that do not result in the Group E@Diﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂi%l%ﬁﬁf%ﬁ%

losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded

RE)ZEFIER  SREDER S
AR e N E A AR S IR A AR
S RAEGAEARBREER
B AR B B - FFE
BERNAESEREDMHER
RENQXFEEZEAEZRER
MR PRI BN AR FR
BEA-

HAKEARE—FHBAR 22
4% - BIE 42 F R M B~
AZEE (BEBE)RERE:
(i) (I o) FE 472 A 4 25 2 B D B 2
(IR BREARLEZ B RHE

in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the B REROAKKEZRAFE
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any B (FTRBEMIRE 2 AFE

investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly

ERGINVEZEPEM A ESE
ZBBREEE LR EMEE
IWARNERZ AEBEEIHE
FoEABRRE RN (0@

B) MAEECEEZEHERE
EENMBENANR —EER

disposed of the related assets or liabilities. o

(d) Segment reporting (d) DR
Operating segments are reported in a manner RENHIZAETELEREE
consistent with the internal reporting provided to (FI%%@JE%%J BENE

Guoan IAternationaI Limited

the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"),
who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Segment reporting (continued)

(e)

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses.
Segment assets and liabilities include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment.
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant
and equipment, inventories, receivables, other
assets, operating cash and exclude mainly financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Segment
liabilities comprise operating liabilities and exclude
items such as, deferred tax, certain corporate
provisions, bank and other borrowings, loan from
the ultimate holding company and convertible
bonds.

Geographical information is presented as the
majority of the Group’s revenue is not only
attributed to customers in Hong Kong but the
majority of assets are located in Hong Kong.

Revenue and other income

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

i. the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group'’s
performance as the Group performs;

i. the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or;
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)

96

POLICIES (continued)

(e) Revenue and other income (continued)

Guoan IAternationaI Limited

iii. the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
A contract asset and a contract liability relating to
a contract are accounted for a presented on a net
basis.

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, the Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

i. Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised from the trading of
telecommunications and other products when
the control of the goods is considered to have
been transferred to the customer.

ii. Service income

Revenue from repair services are recognised
when the services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M EREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)

POLICIES (continued)

(e) Revenue and other income (continued)

(e) WEREMUBA (&)

iii.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying

1.

FI BB A

A S WA B BB A ROX
st B R o Bh A JF B SH K
A ENEERARENS
BMEEMS  BERMEE
AREEMKREARE

amount of the asset. For credit-impaired FEERESREEMS -
financial assets, the effective interest rate ERAEBEAREENS
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross SHAC AN (BDINBR B iE B 1
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the BAERREE) o
asset.

iv. Dividend income from equity iv. REXTAZREHKA
instruments
Dividend income from unlisted equity EEMRAIZE B AR B UK
investments is recognised when the AP AR B S ER AT R A E A
shareholder’s right to receive payment is TSR RERR ©
established.
Dividend income from listed equity ETRR AR E B AR B A
investments is recognised when the share price RIRE B KR E R B
of the investment goes ex-dividend. o

v. Sale of financial assets at fair value v. HEEBBERULFEE
through profit or loss SRz 2R EE
Revenue arising from the net sale process of AHEREFFHEBRRE
marketable securities. 2 o

vi. Commission and brokerage services vii E2RELERBERA

income

Commission and brokerage services income
is recognised on trade date and settled on
settlement date when the relevant sale or
purchase of securities transactions is executed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

(e) Revenue and other income (continued) (e) MERHEMUWA (&)

vii. Asset management services income vii EEEEERBEKRA
Asset management services income is éf)zmﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ&)\@fﬂvﬁﬁ
recognised over time as the service are R RAEARZRSE R
provided in accordance with the terms of 1E1EEIHMET)§T5% & R R IE
the agreements on the valuation date. Asset H-BEERBWARE
management fee income are charged at a BRFEEFENFET
fixed percentage per year of the net asset BB BMRIRAEEE
value of the managed accounts or due on 3% [E AL A 175 7E B E B A A
a regular basis as mutually agreed under WER 4 B WA 1R 5 &
management of the Group. Performance fee AN HERI BRERE
income is charged at a fixed percentage per BuUBPHREHES -
year for managing the investment portfolio of
each client.

viii. Commission income from placing and viii. BERBHEZ LKA
underwriting
Commission income from placing and FEERBHZMEBAT
underwriting are recognised in accordance RIBHAEGRAXR S LT
with the terms of the underlying agreement or EZBRFREERETK
deal mandate when the relevant significant act e AR o
has been completed.

ix. Handling and settlement fee income ix. %ﬁ?&%ﬁ%%#ﬁll
Handling and settlement fee income is FEIMEEWAR LB
recognised when the relevant transactions 2 x%&hf A 28 AR 75 B
have been arranged or the relevant services MR e
have been rendered.

x. Advising fee income Xx. BHEKA
The performance obligations for advisory HELRRTER—ZERN
services are fulfilled when all the relevant AT A BEBETKIE
duties of an advisor as stated in the contract BHRE ZENEET
are completed. B e

(f) Property, plant and equipment (f) ¥ BERFZE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, VI E - BB N s 5 TR AN B BE

less subsequent accumulated depreciation and B EBFHITE RMER ETREER

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. (mnAa) AR

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price BEZHRABIFEEESEREZ

and any directly attributable costs of bringing BEZEZIHNFEERD R EE

the asset to its working condition and location TETE Aig 2 M B EETR A

for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after M R R BT A GEEBT

the property, plant and equipment have been put EEZRAY (MEERIRE)—
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, BENERESHENREBZIRT
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period B o Bz a5 R REENL(E
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can FRzZmE - BB REER IR
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has Rz B2 B S @ BIEER
resulted in an increase in the future economic KA VEBZEE ZFEINK AN

benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
the property, plant and equipment, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

98 [c[IGET)] IAternationaI Limited Annual Report 2019




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of property, plant and equipment, using the
straight-line method, over their estimated useful
lives. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Building over the lease term
Computers and equipment 20 - 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Leasehold improvements 20 - 100%
Motor Vehicle 30%

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 on 1
January 2019)

Definition of a lease

Lease is a contract contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising
from business combinations on or after the
date of initial application, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HEHE &)

POLICIES (continued)
(g) Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 on 1 (9 HE(R=2—hF—H—H

FEREEVBEREENFE165

100

Guoan International Limited

January 2019) (continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of
a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components, including contract
for acquisition of ownership interests of a property
which includes both leasehold land and non-lease
building components, unless such allocation cannot
be made reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient
not to separate non-lease components from
lease component, and instead account for the
lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of premises and office
equipments that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over
the lease term.

As a lessee
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:—

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEREME
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

(g) Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 on 1 (9 HE(R==F—-—hF—H—H

January 2019) (continued)

As a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9")
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost
of right-of-use assets.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)

POLICIES (continued)

(g) Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 on 1 (9 HE(R=2—hF—H—H

102

Guoan International Limited

January 2019) (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise:

e fixed lease payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

e  variable lease payments that depend on an
index or rate, initially measured using the
index or rate at the commencement date;

e the amount expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees;

e  the exercise price of purchase options, if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the
options; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of
an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes

a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use assets) whenever:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(g) Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 on 1
January 2019) (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent
review/expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for
as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HEHE &)
POLICIES (continued)
(g) Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 on 1 (9 HE(R=F—-NnF—HA—H

(h)

Guoan IAternationaI Limited

January 2019) (continued)

Lease modifications (continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease incentives from lessor by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset. When the modified contract contains a
lease component and one or more additional lease
or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessee (before adoption of
HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the leases transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

As lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Foreign currencies (continued)

()

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for exchange differences
on monetary items receivable from or payable
to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity
to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary
items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange difference
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, borrowings are stated at amortised cost
with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable, using
the effective interest method.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESFEEHE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

(j) Employee benefits (G) EERF
Employee leave entitlements EEAERZRAE
Employee entitlements to annual leave are BERIZA ZFRIINER TE
recognised when they are accrued to employees. BERER BHEREHARHES
A provision is made for the estimated liability for RERBMES 2 FREFTAERE
annual leave as a result of services rendered by EERE -BEENEZEZREBR
employees up to the end of the reporting period. ERIFEREZMREBRS TIA
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity o
or paternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.
Retirement benefit obligations BIRBEREE
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund REBERBESREMAE RS
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong EEPIRBEBERBIEIEE Z(E
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance B2masE B ([&
for employees employed under the jurisdiction BEstEl]) - BESFEIRHE
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The SXFEABE 2 AEHFORNKET
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement e BEZTE 2 BRI RES
scheme administered by an independent trustee. REBERTHNG MZEEER
All contributions to the MPF Scheme are charged E B HE AR RS 28
to profit or loss as incurred and reduced by Wt SR A8 & PR /R FIRR L A Ko
contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the MPF Scheme prior to vesting fully in
contributions.
The Group also undertakes mandatory pension RNEBE TR B ER B2 60| K3
schemes covering retirement benefits for its Taiwan E - REABEREEAEREIMR
employees as required by relevant legislations and RET B LR FE R KB T
regulations in Taiwan.
The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which REBRPEAMEEZMEA
operate in mainland China are required to A2 EEALNEE M BTE
participate in a central pension scheme operated by tEZ IR E 58 - AR IR
the local municipal government. The contributions B JGR IR 5T 8 2 47 Bl FE TR
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit BiEEBEmAHER-
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.

(k) Taxation (k) FE

Guoan IAternationaI Limited

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Annual Report 2019

FTS RS bR BN AR TR B
FE T TH O AN ©




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M EREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

(k) Taxation (continued) (k) ®E(2)

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESFEEHE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
(k) Taxation (continued) (k) HiiE(4&)
Deferred tax (continued) BEEHIE (&)
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is BERIBEEMNREABENS RS
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and HAFE 45 SRR VEAR AT - SN AT B

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at
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initial recognition and over the lease terms due to NPT EHER BAAER T HE
application of the initial recognition exemption. RERR ©
Current and deferred tax for the year KEERRRIELZYE

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current

BT RRRE TR BN B an T RR - e
EHEAEHM2EBAPRERX
BERAERa T ERHIEE HR

AU BVEA SR SE R IR IR 0 Bl E A

and deferred tax are also recognised in other ZEHBRASEENERTER -
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

() Inventories n ==
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net FE\NA KA #3EFEmE T
realisable value. In general, costs are assigned to ZBRIEBESR —&mE - @5

Guoan Irlternational Limited

individual items on a weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is the price at which inventories
can be sold in the normal course of business after
allowing for the costs of realisation.

Annual Report 2019

TR B BT IZ pnAE 1 RS
B BRRENFEELERE
BERT 2 EENGRERER -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& M 35 8 5 P o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Trade and other receivables

(n)

(o)

(p)

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment. An allowance
for impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the allowance is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The
amount of the allowance is recognised in the profit
or loss.

Loan receivables

Loan receivables are secured corporate loan granted
to customers in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of loan receivables is expected in one year
or less, they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Loan receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

Interest receivables

Interest receivables are interest derived from secured
corporate loan granted to customers in the ordinary
course of business.

Interest receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)

POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued)

(p) EWIA(#&)

Guoan IrJternationaI Limited

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15
since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest and dividend income which are derived
from the financial assets and shareholders’ rights
are presented as other revenue and other income.

Financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

e  the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued)

(p) EWMTA (&)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling;
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the date of
initial application/initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income (“OCI")
if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS
3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEZ:BEHE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
(p) Financial instruments (continued) (p) €M I A (£&)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)

Guoan IAternationaI Limited

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “other revenue and
other losses” line item.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZE—ZF—NF+_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEHHRFEHEE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued) (p) €WMIER (&

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECL") on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including
trade receivables, deposit paid, other receivables,
loan and interest receivables, pledged time deposits
and cash and bank balances). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting period to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
period. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting period as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increases in
the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting period
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued)

FESHHRERE (8)

(p) EWIA(#&)

Financial assets (continued) EHEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) EREEME (&)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued) FEERBRBEZELEN (&)

In particular, the following information is taken into HRE RIEEEERRE

account when assessing whether credit risk has *%’Zij]uﬁ\ ’é%)ﬁlz/\—l—éfﬂ.

increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration o STRTEMINE (A )K
in the financial instrument’s external (if AN EEFRAE R TE

available) or internal credit rating; HmER

o significant deterioration in external market o HNEHISEZER S IEEZER
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant FAEZ( - MZEHZE XK

increase in the credit spread, the credit default

RIgM EHEANEER

swap prices for the debtor; A3 HR B 4K

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in e TEHTENEBAREBTE
business, financial or economic conditions BEEREE I KIE T FER
that are expected to cause a significant G BT OB AR O HY
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt IRA S TE R BT & &
obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration s BERAKLLEBNERL

in the operating results of the debtor; TRHEER

e an actual or expected significant adverse e BFEHAMES KEK
change in the regulatory, economic, or MIBEAEER BN A
technological environment of the debtor that EARNF B BWEBE A
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s BITEEEEFNGEIBEE

ability to meet its debt obligations. NG

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

L A SR e SUNCIRN S ]
RE EAONFEREB30
B BB ¥R A RS AR R
ERZEN BRIEAEEAESE
ARz &EHER

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them BEETIZE (INEE ) EREE
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable HKE@%E@HH AI:S R{= B Rk 78
of identifying significant increase in credit risk =z e

before the amount becomes past due.

NGB B AR R E R R
2B DBREEMNFEE 2 W
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued)

(p) EWMTA (&)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
other borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XEE:BEHE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued) (p) SWIT A (&)
Financial assets (continued) THREE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) EEEERHE (&)
Witte-off policy S BUR

Guoan Irlternational Limited

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’'s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group’'s trade and other receivables and
amounts due from customers are each
assessed as a separate group. Loans to related
parties are assessed for expected credit losses
on an individual basis);
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEHHRFEHEE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued)

(p) EWMTA (&)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

o Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)

POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued)

(p) ERIA(#&)

118

Guoan IAternationaI Limited

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Equity instruments (continued)

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables,
accrued charges and other payables, loan from
the ultimate holding company, lease liabilities,
bank and other borrowings, convertible bonds) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liabilities,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis other than financial liabilities classified
as at FVTPL

Convertible bonds

The component parts of compound instruments
(convertible bonds) issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities, equity and
derivatives in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability, an equity instrument and derivative
financial instruments. Conversion option that will
be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued)

(p) EWMTA (&)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Convertible bonds (continued)

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible
instruments. This amount is recorded as a liability on
an amortised cost basis using the effective interest
method until extinguished upon conversion or at
the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is
determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the compound
instrument as a whole. This is recognised and
included in equity, net of income tax effects, and
is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in
equity until the conversion option is exercised, in
which case, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to share premium. Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity date
of the convertible bonds, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to retained profits. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit is recognised in
profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the
conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are recognised directly
in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability component and are amortised over the
lives of the convertible bonds using the effective
interest method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)

POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued)

(p) EWMIA(#&)

120

Guoan IAternationaI Limited

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group continues
to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(q)

(r)

Impairment of tangible assets, right-of-use
assets and other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)
POLICIES (continued)
(s) Provisions (s) B1H

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and

MAEEFBEEHEEREE
&%T&EEE i 2= &= B 1R 7] &
BE{TEE BA %Tsﬁﬁg‘l'ﬁ
OB R - Bl S mREE

ERR BB FREINRE
HARMBITRARETAFBR(E
ZEER EEBABALLZ
R B T B R 3% o fiW B (B TR TR

uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When :rl')@ THEEERZRERER
a provision is measured using the cash flows AIEREEAZSFHERE
estimated to settle the present obligation, its ZEETE(ZZH S RREENTE
carrying amount is the present value of those cash BKX)e

flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will

(GFEEUEINE Tﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂﬂz@%ﬁﬁﬁé
BAIRZ A D 2 BB
H%%?ﬁﬁﬁ‘éﬂﬁz@%‘ﬁ@%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ

A SEM At B R UGRIR - RIRERR %

be received and the amount of the receivable can be JEWRIBREE -
measured reliably.
(t) Contingent liabilities and contingent assets () RARAEEBERIAREE

Guoan IAternationaI Limited

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as
a provision.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
(continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises
from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. A contingent asset
is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquire and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquire. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

o Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 respectively;

o Liabilities or equity instruments related to
share-based payment arrangements of the
acquire or share-based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquire
are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date; and
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)

POLICIES (continued)

(u) Business combinations (continued)

e  Assets (or disposals groups) that are classified

() XBEH(F)

o REBERMBHEERR

as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS SR [FEHEMERBE

5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and ERCKRIEREEBE]H

Discontinued Operations are measured in HRFH/ELHENEE (X

accordance with that Standard. & 4B B ) B ¥R 5z 2E Bl 5t
2.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquire (if any) over the net of
the acquisition-dates amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-
dates amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the

BB Th AP RA(E - (SRR
P s A S 07 R PTG 258
RWET AERE 2 W IKRET
Bz AFE(IME) 2B
B i BT U B 2 7T 38 Bl B e P
AEEZBEREEANZFER
K ERERTE - MG EMFER
FT Ui 2 a8 R B B S P HE B
BERWE R FRESNEEL
RAE BRI RN B

consideration transferred, the amount of any non- F TG & R DA R USRS 75 ST TR
controlling interests in the acquire and the fair B2 W RiE 2 A FE (40

value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquire (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition date
fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquire prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other

B)z @ IE AN A
PORE R o (B MK B M 2 o

WMEBAFITIDEERER K&
PAE Ff 55 B9 4% W B8 05 B R 10
Wis B IR AP EEHTE A
EENRE (WG EEm T’
R ER KU E T s - A
A 2w Wes P R RO TR

FEaNPERELEN SR

comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or E%ﬁ PEEER (PR R A
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if Hi#) o
that interest were disposed of.

(v) Goodwill (v) BE8

Guoan IrJternationaI Limited

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets
of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)

POLICIES (continued)
(w) Related parties (continued) (w) BEREAL (&)
(b) (continued) by (%)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Guoan International Limited

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a) (i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity) and.

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is apart, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(w) Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources
and obligations between related parties.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include loan
and interest receivables, trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, pledged time
deposits, cash and bank balances in house accounts,
trade payables, accrued charges and other payables,
loan from the ultimate holding company, bank and other
borrowings, lease liabilities and convertible bonds. Details
of these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

FTESTHREME (&)

(w) BEEAL (B)
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At At

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZZE—ILE RZZT—N\F
+=A +=A
=t+—H =+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000

BETF T BT T

Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets measured at BREBEKAFTECERMEE

amortised cost 263,926 71,195
Financial assets at FVTPL EATEFABRZEHEE 14,733 16,390
Financial liabilities cREE
Amortised costs B8 SH R A 709,295 101,259
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4.

Guoan IAternationaI Limited

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk factors

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk, which result from both its
operating and investing activities. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure
and the current operations of the Group, no major
hedging activities are undertaken by management.

(a) Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to United States Dollars, Singapore Dollars and
Renminbi. Foreign exchange risk arises from the
foreign currency denomination of commercial
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group has
no significant direct exposure to foreign currencies
as most of the commercial transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency same as the
functional currency of each entity of the Group.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or each flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Bank and other borrowings and convertible
bonds bearing fixed rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively and the exposure to the Group is
considered immaterial.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)
Price risk

The Group’'s equity investments classified as
financial assets at FVTPL which is measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period and
expose the Group to price risk.

The Group's equity price risk is mainly concentrated
on listed equity securities which quoted on the
Stock Exchange. The management will monitor the
price movements and take appropriate actions when
it is required.

No sensitivity analysis is presented as the Group’s
financial results are not significantly affected by
equity investment price risk.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from bank
balances, pledged time deposits, loan and interest
receivables, trade receivables, deposit and other
receivables. The carrying amounts of these balances
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to financial assets.

Cash deposited at banks

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk
is considered to be low as the counterparties are
reputable banks. The existing counterparties do not
have defaults in the past. Therefore, expected credit
loss rate of cash at bank is assessed to be close to
zero and no provision was made as of 31 December
2019 and 2018.
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 4. @RI A (&)
Financial risk factors (continued) eHEREE (&)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERB (&)
Trade receivables JEW E 3 BR 3

Guoan IrJternationaI Limited

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected credit loss provision for all trade
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. The Group has
performed historical analysis and identified the
key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit loss. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information.

Trade receivables arising from other ordinary
course of business of dealing in securities
transactions

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to all
clients including cash clients, future and option
clients and margin clients. This ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. Cash
clients and future and option clients are required to
place deposits as prescribed by the Group's credit
policy before execution of any purchase transaction.
Receivables due from cash clients, future and option
clients and clearing house are normally due within
two trading days after the trade date. Because of
the prescribed deposit requirements and the short
settlement period involved, credit risk arising from
the trade receivables from cash clients, future and
option clients and clearing house is considered
insignificant. In addition, the Group holds collateral
to cover its credit risks associated with its trade
receivables from margin clients as mentioned in
Note 23 and reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual accounts receivable at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.
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4. SWMIA (&)

TEEREER(E)
(b) EERE (&)

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Trade receivables arising from other ordinary course

of business of dealing in securities transactions

(continued)
Trade receivables from margin clients of the
Group are internally classified into the following
categories:

Stage 1 —Financial instruments have not had a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit
risk at the reporting date and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs.

Stage 2 —Financial instruments that have had a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition (unless they have low
credit risk at the reporting date) but
that do not have objective evidence
of impairment and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 —Financial assets that have objective
evidence of impairment at the reporting
date and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

The following is the analysis of the gross carrying
amount and ECL of the trade receivables from
margin clients as at 31 December 2019 by the
Group’'s internal credit rating and year end
classification

EWE SR (E)
REMBEREBIEPEITE
HRHGELEZEBE S ER
(#&)
KEAKBEAFREFHNEKES
BRRAB D BEA TS

F—REER-BNTHEREME
EER R ERE
BN HE BB
EERBREKERR
Z @M 121E A FEH
EEEESHEGE
BEREBEZERT
Ho

F_EER- BNTHAEER
BREBEEN (BRIER
BERHEERAR
BIK) - (EYEFE
MERE  BRER
REREHREES
BeRFEEHRR
eI A-

FoEE- REEEHTER
BREZERLRSE
ARzHRHEER
EREcBEAERR
BEBzcemITA-

AT BB R ENME AR R R
FROBED N _FT—NF
TZA=T—HAREPZEK
BIERCREREEREREER
B




132

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 4., €®IR(#)
Financial risk factors (continued) eHEREE (&)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) =EREp (&)
Trade receivables (continued) JEWE ZERZ (&)
Trade receivables arising from other ordinary course REMBEETEKBEREITE
of business of dealing in securities transactions FRGEEZEWESZER
(continued) (%)
As at 31 December 2019 R=B—-—h&E+=H=+—H
Gross Net
Carrying Carrying
amount ECL amount
yEHA BRE
HMERMEE FEFE FE
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000

EBETT EBETR W T T

Stage 1 FEE 110,270 (27) 110,243
Stage 2 FPEER 8,711 (63) 8,648
Stage 3 E=[EE 6,118 (196) 5,922

125,099 (286) 124,813
The movement in the impairment allowance on REAFREEHEWE S EESW
trade receivables from margin clients are as follows: HEREEESHT

(Stage 1) (Stage 2)  (Stage3)

(%— (8= (%€=

P ER) P ER) P ER)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BT EETT

As at 1 January 2019 RZZT—NF
Acquisition of a subsidiary! i — Rt & 2 7 = = 1,518 1,518
Provision/(reversal) of JEHREEEE

allowance for expected  #& (& @)

credit loss 27 63 (1,322) (1,232)

As at 31 December R-ZE—h&F
2019 +=HB=+—H 27 63 196 286
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4. SWMIA (&)

TEEREER(E)
(b) EERE (&)

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Trade receivables arising from the ordinary course of
business, except for business of dealing in securities
transactions

The Group's concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in Hong Kong.
The Group also has concentration of credit risk by
customers of approximately 42% (2018: 68%) and
94% (2018: 91%) of total trade receivables arising
from the ordinary course of business, except for
business dealing in securities transactions was due
from the Group's largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively.

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluation of
its customers’ financial condition and requires no
collateral from its customers. The impairment loss
in trade receivables is based upon a review of the
expected collectability of all trade receivables.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As
the Group’s historical credit loss experience does
not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 on trade balances individually or based
on provision matrix. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

EWE SR (E)
REEXBEEPEL 2 BWE
PR EHFRXHEBEBEI

rEBZwREASZEEES
EREZBMNNRES - ANEETE
BRRFEDZEEEHRRER A
RESEKBRED (BER5E
BEEBBRINEEZERESEK
RAEEE 2 #H42% (—TF— N\ :
68% ) K%94% (=T — \&F:
91% ) N RIREAEBZEAR
ERAEREF-

REBHERF ZMBIRETT
FEZEENG XERNETP
2R an o FEUE 5 Bk 2R
BEERTIRIEMERKE RN
Z TR R U [B] 15 5 2z &1 £ 1 1
H o

AEBNERBEBEEFEZE
HBEHEEE R EE SRR
R BEEE - aRARE 2B
EEEBELRIIFRBIRAE
FroalzBRREALEHBE
£ RUBE-—TROAKEN
[F & P B 78 R AR O 2 185 18 3¢
i o

BEREEERR TEED
Zk—xBEERAEHTEER
B EEEHNEMEERER
IARECR BRERER 1T B e 18 B R
Bottsh REREBMEHRSE
ERFHAR - A KB E R IR
BREEELESHEBRBEREE
B ERA SRR E RS - Bk
5 EERR/ARENEERR
K B A o
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 4. EEIT A (%)

134

Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(c)

Guoan International Limited

Loan and interest receivables and deposit and
other receivables

The Directors considered the credit risk of the
Group’s loan and interest receivables and deposit
and other receivables is relatively low as they
have a low risk of default and the issuer has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by regularly
monitoring current and expected liquidity
requirements and ensuring sufficient cash and
cash equivalent to meet the Group’'s liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.
In addition, the management of the Group
continuously monitors forecast and actual cash
flows and matches the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables below have been drawn
up based on the contractual maturities of the
undiscounted financial liabilities including interest
that will accrue to those liabilities except when the
Group is entitled and intends to repay the liability
before its maturity.

Annual Report 2019

TEEREER(E)
(b) EERE (&)

(c)
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BEERR BRERERRAE
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RREE BRITAEBERE
IREHARTHEHAORERE
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B E LR

AEEEERDESRARZTR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 4. TRIT R (&)
Financial risk factors (continued) cHEBEE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) REELEE (&)
At 31 December 2019 R=ZZB-AEFE+=ZA=+—8
Weighted Total
average contractual Total
effective Within ~ Between 1 Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1year and5 years Syears cash flow amount
il 321 CLESE ¢

LLYIES 1$h  1FE5ER A8 SREAE  AKEE
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
Ev¥fr  ERfn E¥Tn ERfn BT

Non-derivative financial liabilities T4 £ REE

Trade payables EfE 55K - 185,623 - - 185,623 185,623
Accrued charges and other payables fE:fE B R E e 508 - 68,895 = = 68,895 68,895
Lease liabilties HERE 3.73% 3,668 1,554 - 5222 5,118
Bank and other borrowings FAREMEE 8.51% 173,616 - - 173,616 160,000
Loan from the ultimate FRERAAER
holding company - 3,556 - - 3,556 3,556
Convertible bonds ARES 1.51% 100,790 218,969 - 319,759 286,103
536,148 220,523 - 756,671 709,295
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—NE+-_A=+—H
Weighted Total
average contractual Total
effective Within -~ Between 1 Over  undiscounted qarying
interest rate Tyear  and5years 5 years cash flow amount
ETS3 alATER

ERH % 1€/ 1EE5ER BEsE  ghErE  LEAE
HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS'000
EEFT  EMFT AT AT BRI

Non-derivative financial liabilities T4 £ BEE

Trade payables BB S5 - 10,540 - - 10,540 10,540
Accrued charges and other payables fE:fE B R E e 508 S 52,663 - - 52,663 52,663

Loan from the ultimate FRERAFER
holding company - 3,556 - - 3,556 3,556
Bank borrowings BEE 437% 34,546 - - 34,546 34,500
101,305 - - 0305 101,259

BEZERARAFE
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4.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the
level of fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable.

4., €@I R (&)
SWMIBE>ATE
EREEMEEY AT EEFES
rEFBCEHEEZAFEHE
AEEDHEBEERSREBFRIK
AFEEHSE - TRBUHABERER
TEEHEHARE Y TBRIEE
MAEEZZeMEEZATEE
(R R B8 AR 2 fi (5 4l e 8 A B
B) URBEAFEELGEMES
PRATEEBR (B1REEMB) 2
B o

Valuation
Fair value at Fair value at  Fair techniques
31 December 31 December value and
2019 2018 hierarchy key inputs
R-Z—NE RZIZE-—N\&F
+=A +=—A
=+—H =+—H A2A¥EE fh{E B M7 &
ZATEE ZAVFEE BR FTEHAZE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Financial assets
cTHREE
Financial assets at FVTPL
BRAFEFABREZ
ERMEE
— Listed 1,173 1,840 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in
equity securities active markets
— ETRAE 5 F1R ERTISFHRE
Financial assets at FVTPL
BATEFABRZ
TRMEE
— Unlisted 13,560 14,550 Level 2 Market comparison
club debentures
—REWEMES F28 3% L

Guoan International Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 in the
current and prior year.

Except the above financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis, the Directors consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 in the
current and prior year.

Except for the liability component of convertible bonds
which recorded at amortised cost as below, the Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
approximate to their fair values.

4.

€RTITHE (&)
SRMIBEZATE(E)
RAGEERBEFESIR T28K%
F3H 7 RN o

B REEEEEAQNTFEENE
ZEMEBEEN EEZRR RMEH
REPGESPBRETHRAZSRE
ENeRAEROEREELQFEER
2

RAFERBEFES 1L B2 R
SE3 2z HA R

B T SR SR AR T R 2 FTR IR (B 25
BERDIN EERRARNAKELES
MBEMNRPIRBHR AR S/
BENERABZREERERAFE
HE -

31 December 2019
R-ZE—-hFE+=-A=+—H

Carrying Fair

amount value

FREE N E

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Convertible bonds AR ES 286,103 291,462

The fair value of the liability component is the present
value of the contractually determined stream of future
cash flows discounted at the interest applied at that time
by the market to instruments of comparable credit status
and providing substantially the same cash flows, on the
same terms, but without conversion option.

BERD 2 AFETIRIWEE RKIR
ERERERAAHEEEEMNRN 12
HEARBHERBRSRE  GFAREE
Bz TRABER SRR
ZHBE-

|
—E-NEFH
|

BEZERARAFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 4, €T R (&)
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) ERMIBEZATEE(£)
Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting Financial assets and financial
liabilities offsetting

(d) The disclosures set out in the table below include (d) TRATHZHEESTEX A58 5
financial assets and financial liabilities that TR FREE B S B U BT
are subject to an enforceable master netting HREvemEERERBE
arrangement or similar agreement.
Under the agreement of continuous net settlement BEBEAEBEFEPREERR
made between the Group and Hong Kong Securities NA([BEAEE]BELE 2
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC"), the BERRGEE®R AARERS
Company has a legally enforceable right to set off AR R BTN AR &S
the money obligations receivable and payable with H BB A B I U FE 3R
HKSCC on the same settlement date and the Group HEE mMEASEEEEIRFRE
intends to settle on a net basis. B
As at 31 December 2019 R=ZB-hAE+=A=+—8H

Gross amounts  Net amounts
of recognised  of financial

finandial assets/
assets/  (liabilities) Related amounts not
(liabilities) ~ presented  set off in the consolidated statement
Gross amounts  set off in the in the of financial position
of recognised consolidated ~ consolidated ARGRUBRRR
financial statementof  statement ERNRESE
assets/ financial  of financial Financial ~ Collateral Net
(liabilities) ~ position position  instruments received amount
REAHE

#R& REauE
EHNERR VS
BRASR  SHEE 2INER
KE/(8)  /(RE) 2B/ (8F) 1 GLE
ag L it I8 Efm i
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000
A¥Tfn  ERTn  ERFn BT ERTn BR¥n

Financial assets SREE
Trade receivables EWE SR
- Clearing house -£g 10,855 (9,262) 1,593 - - 1,593
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade payables EREHER
- Clearing house - L (9,262) 9,262 - - - -

Guoan International Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts
(which include bank and other borrowings, lease
liabilities, convertible bonds and loan from the ultimate
holding company), cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves. The Directors review the
capital structure on a continuous basis. As part of this
review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with capital. Based on recommendations
of the Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, issuance of
new share as well as the addition of new borrowings.

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio of borrowings over total assets. The Group aims to
maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

4.

TRITHE &)
ETRMITAZAVE (&)
BEXmpEE
AEBERRBEAUBRAEEZE
BERNETHBELE UEBTE
FEEERRERAEEEA ATR
RARH AEE s EEREABE
FERBERTE-

AEBZEARBEHER (BREE
ThEMEE HEABRATARE
7)) RERAEFEBYRAREE
BARIE#ED (BREBITRA R
) MK - BB EEEMIT E AR
Bo-ERRERN 2 —#D BEFE
BEARARBERNERZRR 1R
BEFZEZR AREBEBNKR
B BITHBRO R EEEFEHHEE
BEARE-

AEBNUEERNREEZEERRE
e RS EERE R EE N - REH
NBBEEARLEREFESEKE-

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

R-ZZE—ILE RZZT—N\F

+=A +=ZA

=t+—H =+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Total borrowings (note) mEsE (M) 454,777 38,056

Total assets BEE 1,030,778 460,348

Gearing ratios BEABLE 44.1% 8.3%

Note: B &

Total borrowings include bank and other borrowings, lease BEERERTLAMERE HEAR.

liabilities, convertible bonds and loan from the ultimate holding ARKRESRREERARER-

company.
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Guoan IrJternationaI Limited

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Impairment of loan receivables and trade
and other receivables

The Group determined the loss allowance
of the loan receivables and trade and other
receivables based on the expected credit loss of
these receivables. The Group applies significant
judgement in the determination of the impairment
model and the use of parameters. The Group
also uses significant judgement in its assessment
on whether there is any significant increase in
credit risk of these receivables. The Group makes
assumptions on the economic indicators for
forward looking information and the application of
economic scenarios and probability weightings.

(b) Useful lives of property, plant and

equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of property,
plant and equipment to determine the amount of
depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful
lives are estimated at the time the asset is acquired
based on historical experience, the expected
usage, wear and tear of the assets, and technical
obsolescence arising from changes in the market
demands or service output of the assets. The Group
also performs annual reviews on whether the
assumptions made on useful lives continue to be
valid. The Group tests annually whether the assets
have suffered any impairment. The recoverable
amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is
determined based on value-in-use calculations
which require the use of assumptions and estimates.

Annual Report 2019
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. RS MTRAE &)

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c) Allowance for slow-moving inventories (c) REFERE
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net FERA A KA #3RFERE
realisable value. Assessment of net realisable value ZBIEE R JERFEEE
is based primarily on the latest invoice prices and RIEF T AR EER RIRITHR
current market conditions. The Group also carries fhat e REER & HE R EE
out review of inventories on a product-by-product BREmzFE WHFHEESD
basis at the end of each reporting period and makes fEL B -
allowance for slow-moving items.

(d) Impairment assessment of goodwill (d) BEEREFNME
Determining whether goodwill are impaired REETHEESHBERERER
requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the STESEAENREEEBEMLN
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been FHABE AKERFTERAE
allocated. The value-in-use calculation requires the BENERReELSMTEIES
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to HIARIRIRE M= NE & B3R R E
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable HIEE AGtBEIRE - MER K
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. RIS MEBENTEE - BT %
Where the actual future cash flows are less than HEERNREERE-
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

(e) Income taxes (e) FAEH

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions, mainly in Hong Kong. Significant
judgement is required in determining provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating segments based on information
reported to the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM") for the purpose of resources allocation and

AEBETERBBEE - REE
PISHB R  SEELERH
B -MNAEXBBET FHES
ESARBETHBTHEE 2R
SR AEERBHRLFH
RENBIRRZ G5 LR
BB EERRAE - HZF
EHZREBBER BRI
ZEBIR ZEEZRBRTER
HEEE FE 2 RSP BT
PiIR A

7 EER

THAREEGEEHH HERRE
BARRRRFETMAEELERE
E([EBEEBREE])REZEN

performance assessment are as follows:— /i -
(i)  Trading of telecommunications and other products (i) BIAAEMERES
(i)  Provision of repair services for telecommunications (i) IREEBAEREBRE

products
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (&)
(i) Investments in financial assets (i) EMEERE
(iv)  Money lending business (iv) MEXE®
(v)  Provision of securities brokerage services (v) REEBEFLLIRTS
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments FRABZE_Z—NFR_ZF—N\F
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is TZA=+—RLEFEAEEEAETR
presented as follows:— EDEZEMENNMT : -
(a) Segment revenue and results (a) PHURERERE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BECR-NFHoA=1-BLFE

Provision of Provision of

Trading of repair securities

telecommunications services for  Investments Money brokerage

and other  telecommunications in financial lending services
products products assets business  operation  Consolidated

EARA  RHERER RURSEL
EREZ BBEE SREERE HEZH RHEH &4
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS 000

BRTR ERfn  ERFr EETR ERfn BRFR

Total revenue Bl 130,116 42,548 495 657 33,978 207,79
Seqment resultsf(oss) AHEE/ (BE) (6,836) (4,402) 516 625 25,174 15,077
Other losses EEE (1,376)
Interest income HMEMA 35
Finance costs BHRA (24.238)
Unallocated income AARUMA 178
Unallocated expenses AT (35,150)
Loss before taxation REAEE (43,774)
Taxation i (2.814)
Loss for the year ERER (46,588)
I
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(@) Segment revenue and results (continued)

DEER (4)
(a) ZMUEREE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\ET-A=T-HLEER

Trading of ~ Provision of repair
telecommunications services for — Investments Money
and other  telecommunications in financial lending
products products assets business  Consolidated
BAREM RELZNER
En85 BERYK SREERE  REEK fFa
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT E&Fr  EEFn BT EEn
Total revenue s 43,409 64,678 385 1,240 109,712
Segment resultsfoss) PUEE/ (BB (4,500) (11,134) (864) 1,209 (15,289)
Other losses FIEWA (1,150)
Bank interest income FITHERA 112
Finance costs BT R (251)
Unallocated expenses KAETH (27.263)
Loss before taxation EHREEE (43,841)
Taxation RE 4
Loss for the year EnEiE (43,837)

Revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There are no
inter-segment sales for the year ended 31 December
2019 and 2018.

Segment result represents the result generated
from each segment without allocation of central
administrative costs including directors’ salaries,
staff costs, legal and professional fees, certain other
losses, certain other revenue, certain finance cost
and taxation. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

tR2H s BWREHITFELELZ
Wt - BE_FT-NEFR-_F-N\F
TZA=t—HALFEYESHHELZ
BHE e

“%%\EQ%Q%E$Z¥%”ﬁ

DEFRITEREAN  BEESH

@& BIXAK EZRLRBEXEMR ET

HiEpE FTEMEABTHH

ﬁk$&ﬁ1§ it T35t 5 EE"*‘B%E&

n¥'f§f\45§£ﬂﬁﬁm$ i/kﬁﬁ%f
o EE-

BEZERARAFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7HER (&)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) 7HEERERE
As at 31 December 2019
RZ8-1E+ZA=1-8
Provision
Trading of  Provision of repair of securities
telecommunications services for ~ Investments Money brokerage
and other  telecommunications in financial lending services
products products assets business operation  Consolidated
EfREM RECERER RERZEL
Emg% BERE SHEERE HEER BREH E
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
BBTT B8R E8Tn BETR BBTT BBTT
Segment assels ABEE 64,759 6,290 6,646 249 612,488 690432
Financial assets at fair value through  BABHMNATE
profit or loss Sz SREE 13,560
Unallocated corporate assets AARAAEE 326,786
Consolidated total assets GREELE 1,030,778
I
Segment libiltes ANEE (39,719) (5,526) (2453) n) (172,048) (219,818)
Convertible bonds TAkES (286,103)
Unallocated corporate liabiities ~ £AEAFEE (209,003)
Consolidated total liabiltes GRARLE (114,924)
I
As at 31 December 2018
RZZE-\E+-A=1-H
Trading of  Provision of repair
telecommunications services for — Investments Money
and other ~ telecommunications in financial lending
products products assets business  Consolidated
Tikae  mpEaEz
En85 BERK SHEERE  REXK iFa
HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BT E¥Fr  AEFfn BT EEn
Segment assets PEHBE 52,904 10,850 3,135 13,404 80,293
Financial assets at fair value through ~ EBBHMATESIE
profit or loss SREE 14,550
Unallocated corporate assets AORDTEE 365,505
Consolidated total assets RABERE 460,348
I
Seqment liabilities 2HEE (9.879) (8,763) = (20 (18,662)
Unallocated corporate liabilities KOEAAEE (83,201)
Consolidated total liabilities RABRELE (101,863)
I
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE_—F

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

(c)

For the purpose of monitoring segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments:—

i)

All assets are allocated to reportable segments
other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and certain property,
plant and equipment; and

All liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments other than convertible bonds,
deferred tax liabilities, bank and other
borrowings, loan from the ultimate holding
company and certain accrued charges and
other payables.

Other segment information

e MEHE M

—NE+-A=1+—BLEFE

6. TEER (&)
(b) FBEEREME (#)

(c)

FERFE D BER IR M o B 0 & 2
E"Jﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁ g =

MBEEDEEZEZHO AL 1EE
i@?éiﬁ?’ib(@$1ﬁ§%@2$mﬂ§§

RETHE BEREBEIN
K

AR ERHEE T
MRES i L?RIEEJE RTT
LEMEE ZEERATER
FETRFERREMENFIE
BR G o

Htt o BEH

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZE-NETZA=t-HLEE

Provision of
Trading of Provision of repair securities
telecommunications services for  Investments Money  brokerage
and other telecommunications in financial lending services
products products assets business operation  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
BAREf RUERER & RHtESEE
ERE% BBRE BERE HERE it 3 AE 58
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BRTR BRTR BETFT ERTR BEFT b AR
Capital expenditure* BRFR 8 2% 84 - pl] 13 158
Depreciation of properties, plantand %1% BERZEHE
equipment 50 244 108 - 51 9,841 10,294
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ EREAEIE - 601 1,558 - 1,166 676 4,001
Loss on written off or property BaEng BEREELER
plant and equipment - - - - - 305 305

Bl B RAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (&)
(c) Other segment information (continued) ()0 HttpHER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZ-N\E+-A=t-HL%E

Trading of ~ Provision of repair

telecommunications senvices for — Investments Money
and other telecommunications ~ in financial lending
products products assets business  Unallocated ~ Consolidated

Bkl REENER £
Ends RERE  RERE  HRERE ol ke
HKS 000 HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD
AETT AETT  RRBTn AMTn  A¥TR EETR

Capital expenditure* BRER* - 154 63 = 686 903
Depreciation of properties, plantand 913 BE LR BN E

equipment 52 435 = = 10,323 10,810
Loss on written off or property, W% BERAELER

plant and equipment - 6 - - - 6

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, & EXRZBIEREME BE

plant and equipment. RBHEzEE-
(d) Geographical segments (d #HwEHDH

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 89% RBE_ZT-NF+_A=1+—

(2018: all) of the Group’s revenue and all (2018: HIEFE AEE89% (= F

more than 99%) of the Group’s total assets were —NF:-B)NKERAEE

derived from and located in Hong Kong. The (T — N\F  BiHE99% )

geographical segments of the Group’s revenue for WEEEGHRE RLNEE - K

the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is EEEE_ZT—NFR_ZFT—N

presented as follows:— F+-A=Z+—HIEFEZHE

DEEHNWAT : —

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

BZE BHZE

—B-hE  —F-N\FE

+=A +=A

=t—H =+—H

LHFE IEFE

HK$°000 HK$'000

EBETT BT T

Hong Kong BEREBB 184,228 109,712
Southeast Asia HEon 23,566 -
207,794 109,712
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DHEFR (&)
(e) Information about major customers (e) FEAXEEFZER
Revenue from customers over 10% of the Group’s REGAEERKZEB10%2
total revenue is as follows:— BEEZWEMT: -
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
8= HE
—E-NEF —ZE-)N\F
+=A +=A
=t+—H =t—H
IHEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000

EBETT BT T

Customer A ZEA 26,612 37,070
Customer B %FB 23,566 —*
Customer C ZHEC 23,055 —*
* No information on revenue is disclosed for this & HRZETP RASERRE
customer since it contributed less than 10% to the BHMER10% @ I EHEHE R
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December BHE_T—N\F+=—A=1+—
2018. BIEFEZWRHEHR -
7. REVENUE 7. Wz
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZ BHE
—E-hE —F-N\F
+=ZA=+—-H +=—A=+—H
LFE HFE
HKS$’000 HK$'000
BETF T BEF T
Revenue from contracts with customers:  RKEEEAAHUWA :
Recognised at a point in time FOBF ] B 3R
Sales of telecommunications and other HEBMEEMER
products 130,116 43,409
Provision of repair services for RUBHEREERE
telecommunications products 42,548 64,678

BEZERARAFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE (continued) 7. W= (#)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Bz BHE
“E-hF —F-N\F
+=—A=+—-H +=A=+—H
LEE LHEE
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFT BT
Provision of securities brokerage services 324t FH &L 4L RF
— Commission and brokerage income e RELKA 6,353 -
— Commission income from placing -BEERBEHIASHEA
and underwriting 8,832 =
— Handling and settlement fee income —FREREEBHA 2,249 -
190,098 108,087
Recognised over time P& B R 7 3R
Asset management services income BEEERBRA 4,811 -
Advisory fee income BREEWA 944 _
5,755 =
195,853 108,087
Revenue from other sources: H At RIRITA
Interest income from loan financing BEFEE 2 BWA 657 1,240
Interest income from brokerage financing &4 & & 2 ¥ 2 A 10,768 -
Net realised gain on financial assets at fair BEBIEZARXNFEEINE 2 E@ME
value through profit or loss, net EEZRWEFE
— Listed securities held for trading —REEEZ LTRES 516 385
11,941 1,625
207,794 109,712

All revenue from contracts with customers are for a
period of one year or less, as permitted by practical
expedient under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Guoan International Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

OTHER REVENUE 8. Hfttrz:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZ HE
—E-hE —ZT-N\F
+=ZA=+—-H +=—A=+—H
ILFEE HFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Dividend income B 24 A 44 87
Bank interest income RITH BUWA 455 112
Rental income el A 1,835 1,099
Sundry income HETE U A 2,639 2,430
4,973 3,728

OTHER LOSSES, NET

9. HittEBIRFHE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZE BHZE
—E-hEF —T-N\F
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
LEE LFE
HK$'000 HK$°000
BETFT BT T
Change in the fair value of financial assets BEBBHENRAFEIEZLREE
at fair value through profit or loss AN L5 )
- Net unrealised (gain)/loss on fair value —BEEEEN TTESZATLE
change on listed securities held for BB RER (W) EEF
trading L (19) 1,252
— Fair value change of unlisted club —AREmEMEF R TEER
debentures 990 1,150
Reversal of allowance for expected credit JEWE FER B EEHEEE
loss on trade receivables [0 (1,021) -
Loss on lease modification HEBIEBE 386 -
336 2,402

BEZERARAFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

10. FINANCE COSTS

10. BAFE B A

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Bz BHE
—E-hE —E-N\F
+=A=+—-HB +ZA=+—H
EEE HE5E
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFT BT
Interest expenses on bank and others ARAFRNEHEREZRITREM
borrowings wholly repayable within EEN S X H
five years 7,175 251
Interest expenses on convertible bonds ARRES 2 FISZH 17,426 -
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBBZMEXH 200 -
Other interest expenses HoAth .8 32 H 848 -
25,649 251
11. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 1. BREAIE B
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Bz BHE
—E-NF —E-N\F
+=ZA=+—-B +=ZA=+—H
tEE HFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Auditors’ remuneration: ZEEB & -
Auditor of the Company ZN/NSIE 2 1,554 1,427
Other auditors H fth 1% EAm 368 410
Cost of trading inventories sold BEEESEFEERA 129,221 37,777
Employee benefit expenses EERAZH 31,549 35,568
Retirement benefit costs RRREFIBL AR 1,118 1,388
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BEREETE
equipment 10,294 10,810
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREEZINE 4,001 -
Expenses relating to short-term lease REEAM B MR X 1,174 -
Bad debts written off* R I AR 8 27 101
Loss on written off of property, plant and ~ #is5% %  WE MR 2 EiE*
equipment* 305 6
Reversal of allowance for expected credit JEWE SR 2 BREEHEEE
loss on trade receivables o (1,021) -
Allowance for inventories FEEE g 17
Reversal of allowance for inventories BROFERE (5) (70)
Operating lease rental in respect of rental HHHEEYME 7 KLHEE
premises - 5,769
* Items included in other operating expenses. * HAEMKEE H2IER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

TAXATION 12. H1E
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
HE BHE
—E-hE —E-)N\F
+=ZA=+—-H +=—A=+—H
LEE IHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFTT BT
Current tax: BNEATR IR :
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BEENGER:
— Current year —AEE 4,072 -
— Qver provision in prior years — B EERARE = (56)
Deferred tax (Note 33) EIERE (KY7F33) (1,258) 52
2,814 4)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25% and profits above HK$2 million
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for the year (2018: No
provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year). Taxation arising in other jurisdictions
is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant
jurisdictions.

R-ZZE—N\E=A=-+—8 FHE
EEBIB TSI AMAHFESHIIEN
201758 (1BFT) (B75H)IEHIE
R([BER]) ZERER_T—N\F
ZA-Z+NBREXEEE THKX
B 7 8B R T E o AR I W AR I 7 45 X
B AEREREEBNE2EE S LA
G 1R8.25 % MBI R BF - MiBE2E
BB TTHFEBIZEE16.5% M K&
o THFEMAHFESHHENEE
TR S EEIR16.5% N E T X
BEL o

EBFEBH I AF ARG 2 ERBDG
FIE16.5% (ZTE—N\F:HRAE
ERFRATENESELERRMN &
o B EEL B BRI ESHERE) oM
RtE -REMBEEREEZHRE
TR R EERIBIT I HETE -

|
—E-NEFH
|

BEZERARAFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

12. TAXATION (continued) 12. BiE (&)
The tax expense/(credit) for the year are reconciled to the AEEBRERX(ER)EEFEA1E
loss before taxation per the consolidated statement of mrREMEEKEER BRTAEE
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: HERMAT -
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
—E-h&F+=A —E-N\F+ZAH
=+—HILEFE =+—HLEFE
HK$'000 % HK$°000 %
BT T % BETIT %
Loss before taxation B 1 Al &S 18 (43,774) (43,841)
Tax at statutory tax rate WEAEMRFTEZHE (7,223) (16.5) (7,234) (16.5)

Tax effect of expenses T TE FE AR B A1 T g

that are not deductible ABMAR 2 MG E

in determining

taxation profit 864 2.0 1,296 3.0
Tax effect of income that is A& T & 58 i v F| 1~ &

not taxable in determining EFH U A Z T iS5 E

taxable profit (434) (1.0) (1,684) (3.8)
Unrecognised tax losses RERBIEEE 9,260 21.2 5,981 13.6
Unrecognised deductible RAER A HIF 7 s =

temporary differences #2 398 0.9 1,637 3.7
Tax concession B = (51) (0.1) - -

Tax charge/(credit) and REEHERS

effective tax rate (B2) REBRRX

for the year 2,814 6.5 (4) -
At 31 December 2019, the Group has cumulative RZE—NF+_A=+—H 'K
tax losses of approximately HK$371,884,000 (2018: EE 4 E B 371,884,000 (= F
HK$315,762,000) available for offsetting against future — N\&F : B #315,762,00070) 25+ F1
taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been HEBAHEE R RERTEFR - B
recognised in respect of such estimated tax losses of RARBETRE B2 2w A - I gt B
HK$371,884,000 (2018: HK$315,762,000) due to #371,884,0007T (—ZF—/\F: B%
uncertainty of future profit streams. 315,762,0007T ) 2 {4 BB E 1B HER

13. DIVIDENDS 13. B2

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any BEETEZBREHE_T—NE+=
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: A=T—HRLEFEZEARE (ZF
Nil). —N\F )
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$45,417,000 (2018: HK$43,690,000)
and the weighted average number of 7,748,960,899
ordinary shares for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: 7,748,960,899).

The diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2019 was the same as basic loss per share as
the outstanding convertible bonds had an anti-dilutive
effect on the basic loss per share (2018: there were no
potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during the
year.)

14. BRE#E

HE_ZT—NWF+_A=+—HLHF
B BERENGENREBERAQRES
A FE (R B 18 478 #45,417,0007T ( =
T — )\ 4 : 5 #43,690,0007T) & N
R Y5 807,748,960,8990% L@ (=
T — )\ £ :7,748,960,8990% ) 5t & -

HREE=_ZE—NF+=-A=+—H
FFEEZHABTAIRRESHS
BREAEBEARBEZEZ (TN
FEBERNABITESTER) W
FESREEBHEHETRELREER
ﬁo

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ -HERZE
Computers
Leasehold Furniture and Motor
Buildings improvements and fixtures  equipment vehicle Total
BT HENXEE HBAREE EZKRRE RE Rt

HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARTT  AMTr  ANTT  ARTT  BRTT  RETR

Cost: KA

At 1 January 2018 W-E-\E—A—H 324,249 5,805 1,071 4,708 745 336,578
Additions NE - 436 187 280 - 903
Written off s - - (14) (161) = (175)
Exchange alignment By AR = 13 1 = = 14

At 31 December 2018 W-ZE-N\¥+-A

and 1 January 2019 =t-HKk=Z-N
£—A-H 324,249 6,254 1,245 4,827 745 337,320
Acquisition of a subsidiary  WEE— B AR
(Note 38) (f5#38) - - 58 75 - 133
Additions nE - 16 7 135 - 158
Written off s - (439) (36) 1) = (496)
Exchange alignment By R = 16 = = = 16

At31December 2019 RZ=-ZE-AFE+=HA
=t-H 324,249 5,847 1,274 5,016 745 337,131

\
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ BERZE (&)
(continued)
Computers
Leasehold Furniture and Motor
Buildings improvements and fixtures  equipment vehicle Total
BF HENEEE GARKE SERRE RE At

HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
EETT  EETT  EETnT BT EETn BETn

Accumulated depreciation Rt ERFERE:
and impairment losses:

At 1 January 2018 RZZ2-\F-A—-H 6,514 2,397 815 3,853 236 13,815
Charge for the year TEERE 9,068 1,044 119 430 149 10,810
Eliminated on written off i35 434 = = (11 (158) = (169)
Exchange alignment X A% = 1 - _ _ 1

At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\&E+=A

and 1 January 2019 =+-8k
“Z-NE-A-H 15,582 3,442 923 4,125 385 24,457
Charge for the year TEERE 8,904 717 125 399 149 10,294
Eliminated on written off #5444 - (166) (13) (7) - (186)
Exchange alignment BN A% - 3 - _ _ 3

At31December 2019  R=ZE-RE

+=HA=t-H 24,486 3,996 1,035 4,517 534 34,568
Carrying amounts: REE:
At31December2019  R=Z-h%

+ZA=1+-H 299,763 1,851 239 499 211 302,563

At 31 December 2018 R-B-\F

+-A=+—-H 308,667 2,812 322 702 360 312,863
At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s buildings RZEBE-NFRZZF-NF+_H
are situated in Hong Kong and are held under medium =+ —B AEENEFURES
term lease. BIRPBALRE -
Buildings with carrying amount of approximately RZZE-NE+A=+—H0 KA
HK$299,763,000 (2018: HK$308,667,000) as at 31 & R4 A5 299,763,000 (=&
December 2019 are pledged as collaterals for the Group’s — )\ % : ##308,667,0007T) Z EF
bank and other borrowings. Please refer to Note 30 for EERERAEERITREMBERZ
details. B IER 2 M 330 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. EREEE
Rental premises
HEWE
HK$'000
BT T
Cost: )% N
Impact on adoption of HKFRS 16 as at RZZF—NE—R—BREMAEEHH
1 January 2019 RELEAEI6HF 2T E 3,726
Additions NE 6,602
Lease modification MEEE] (2,213)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE—HE+=-_B=+—8 8,115
Accumulated depreciation R ERBEREE:
and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NFE—-—H—H -
Charge for the year REEZHE 4,001
Lease modification MEBET (862)
At 31 December 2019 RZEBE—NF+_A=+—H 3,139
Carrying amounts: BREE :
At 31 December 2019 R=-B-hAE+=B=+-—H 4,976
GOODWILL 17. B8
HK$'000
BT T
Cost: )N
At 1 January 2019 R-ZZE-—NFE—-—H—H -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 38) Wi — A B 8 2 7] (MTEE38) 299,121
At 31 December 2019 R-E—hh&FE+-_A=+—H 299,121
Accumulated impairment: ZitEE:
At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 R Z=-Z—AF—A—HBRERZ-ZZ—hF
+=ZA=+—8H -
Carrying amount: FREE
At 31 December 2019 R=-ZF-NE+=-A=+—H 299,121

BEZERARAFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

17. GOODWILL (continued) 17. B8 (&)

156

Note:

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of Yicko Securities Limited
which was completed on 28 February 2019. Goodwill was
allocated to the groups of cash-generating units identified
according to the operations, which was substantially allocated
to the investment in provision of securities brokerage services
operation.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group assessed
the recoverable amount of cash generating unit to which
the goodwill was allocated by appointing an independent
professional valuer, who has staff members with appropriate
experience and qualifications. The assessment conformed to the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS”) Valuation Standards
2017 published by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and
the International Valuation Standards 2017 published by
International Valuation Standards Council.

Particular of impairment testing on goodwill

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing
purposes to the following cash-generating units (“CGU"):

— Provision of brokerage services operation

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculation, which is based on discounted
cash flow sourced from the financial budgets approved
by the management covering a 5-year period, and the
discount rate of approximately 14.2% that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGU. Cash flows beyond
5-year period have been extrapolated using 2.5% growth
rate per annum. Other assumptions included budgeted
income estimated based on the past performance and
management’s expectations of market developments, etc.

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amounts of the CGUs to exceed their recoverable
amounts.

Guoan IAternationaI Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

17. GOODWILL (continued) 17. B8 (8)
Impairment tests for cash-generating units BREBEZRSELENMRENR
containing goodwill (continued) (&)
As the recoverable amounts of the CGUs is higher than HRBEeELEEUNAINEEESR
the carrying amounts, no impairment loss on goodwill of FREE FEWEEGRSER RHA
these CGUs are recognised in the consolidated statement FHNGRERZEReEEELR
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. EHREERE-
18. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 18. B 2 AER
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 RZE-NFERZZFE-N\F+ZA
December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: =+t—B AQREEWB AR 2
LGN
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of fully Percentage of equity
Name of subsidiaries operation paid up capital attributable to the Company ~ Principal activities
AL/ ADAEERE
[if: PEEE mEny HRRAZFE b1 TTER
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
% %

RoE-AE HT-NG
t=A=1-8 +2A=t-A

% %
Indirectly held
HEEE
Ample Vision Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 Ordinary 100 100 General trading
Hong Kong
ERERERAT ARRAHE /R BERET ~RE5
Bk
Linktech Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Ordinary 100 100 Provision of repair services
Bk LaREGIT RILBERS
World Way Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100 100 General trading
Bk BERESIT ~RE5
Ever Asia Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100 100 Money lending business
Bk LERESIT HEXH
Eagle Faith Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100 100 Property holding
30 LEREEIT B
Vitis Invest Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 55 55 Trading of wine
Bk BERESIT )
Yicko Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 Ordinary 100 - Provision of securities
B L4817 150,000,0007T brokerage services

REEFELRHS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

18. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. B A RBER (&)

158

Guoan International Limited

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

The financial statements of the above subsidiaries are
coterminous with those of the Group except for Ample
Vision Holdings Limited and Linktech Hong Kong Limited
which have a financial year ended 30 September 2019.
The Group's financial statements have taken account the
results of Ample Vision Holdings Limited and Linktech
Hong Kong Limited between 1 January 2019 and 31
December 2019.

(@) Detail of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests

EERR LRAIARBZHER
ANIBEREAEEXESEEZW
BRI -BEXZRK RHEGHELR
BIFEBEHRITE -

P E A RM B Rk AL B
K — B0 MERIEREGR A A
¥ Linktech Hong Kong LimitedB& 4] -
FENFRELAHYAE-_ZT—ILF
NA=+H AEBHBBRKREFT K
$E R E IR A IR A 7] K Linktech Hong
Kong Limited A —ZE—hE—F—H
E-T-NF+-_A=+—HBHWE%E

==
4o

@) BAEAIFER NS 2 AR
BAFZ R

Proportion
of ownership
interests and
Place of voting rights
incorporation/ held by non-
registration and controlling Loss allocated to non- Accumulated
Name of Company operation interests controlling interests non-controlling interests
FERERER
HMRY/ BR  ZFAREER
L REEHE RERBE  IREFEREZCESR Rt ERFERER
2019 2018 2019 2018
8- ZBN\F “8-0E ZBN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETR EETT
Vitis Invest Limited Hong Kong 45% 1,171 147 (1,318) 13,353
&R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. fiB A RIER (&)

(@) Detail of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have (@) BEEXNFEERERZIEREN
material non-controlling interests (continued) BRAZFE (&)

Vitis Invest Limited and its subsidiary

Vitis Invest Limited 2 E [ B 2 5

At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

R=-ZB-h& RZF-N\F
t=A=t-B t=ZA=t—H

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T

Current assets TEEE 6,217 37,923
Current liabilities MEAE (10,763) (9,538)
Equity attributable to owners of the AAREEAELER

Company 5,864 15,032
Non-controlling interests JEIE RS RERS (1,318) 13,353
Turnover HEHE 18,958 22,143
Other income Habug A 13 1,508
Expenses 553 (21,904) (25,266)
Loss for the year FAER (2,933) (1,615)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to  RNARIHEE AER2EEIEEASH

owners of the Company (1,762) (1,468)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to ~ FEFERRER B2 HEIE LR

non-controlling interests (1,171) (147)
Total comprehensive loss for year AEELAEEBASE (2,933) (1,615)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating K& EFFHELZREHEA/ (RH)

activities HEE 14,062 (30,097)
Net cash outflow from investing activities & EFBELZR SR L T4 (8) =
Net cash (outflow)inflow from financing BEERSHELZES (GRE) /KA

activists FEE (13,635) 30,382
Net cash inflow ReEmnE FR 419 285

BEZERARAFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 19. EBEZULAFEIEZE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS & =
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

R-ZB-N&E RZF-N\F
t=A=t-8 +=A=t—H

HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Held-for-trading: BEES:
— Listed equity securities in Hong Kong — BB LTRARES 1,173 1,840
— Unlisted club debentures - RETMEMES 13,560 14,550
14,733 16,390
Classified as: DER:
Non-current assets FnBEE 13,560 14,550
Current assets MEEE 1,173 1,840
14,733 16,390
All financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are FIBERAVFEEFTABEZCREE
stated at fair values. Fair values of the listed investments HAFEEYER FREZAFEE
are determined with reference to the quoted market bid ENEREBIARMISEABE
prices available on the Stock Exchange. E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

The maturity profile of the loan and interest receivables at
the end of the reporting period, analysed by the maturity
date, is as follows:

20. BHERKERE
RBERRZIABYOT 2 ER R
R B ZBIHIBERIT -

At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

R=ZB-1& RZF-N\F
t=A=t-8B +ZA=t+—H

HK$'000 HK$000
BT T BEFT
Loan receivables: FEME K :
Within one year —FNR - 13,000
Interest receivables: JEWH B, -
Within one year —FR - 43
- 13,043
Carrying amount analysed for reporting ABREMONMZREENT
purpose:
Current assets MEEE - 13,043
Note: Bifat -

No impairment loss was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Group's loan receivable which arose from the money
lending business of providing corporate loan in Hong Kong was
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The loan receivable was secured by collaterals provided by
customer, bears interest and repayable with fixed terms agreed
with customer.

Before approving any loans to new borrowers, the Group
assesses the potential borrower’s credit quality and defines
credit limits individually. The Group has policy for allowance of
doubtful debts which is based on the evaluation of collectability
and aging analysis of accounts and on management’s judgment,
including the current creditworthiness, collaterals and the past
collection history of each customer.

HE_Z-\FET_A=+—HIEEL
ERERMERR -

AEERENBBREIRERZMER
B2 ERKRERAB K E -

P Mt B R — i R4 2 9 9 B IR
W BRAREEF T2 BT HEN
fm -

() ¥ i SRAHE B R R B R AT - AR E RS
BEERAZERER YREMAHEER
RE-NEERBREBRE R ZREK
ERAR B 2 ATU B K AR e D AT AT A4 A R
EEEHE BRERSERANEREE K
Ak EREPBERRCE-

BEZERARAFE




162

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

21. OTHER ASSETS

21. HtEE

At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R=Z-1F RIZT-N\F
+=-A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFTT BT
Admission fee paid to Hong Kong Securities i F&BF REZHFR A7
Clearing Company Limited HEANE 100 -
Dealer’s deposit with the Hong Kong ERBLARPEEHERZE SR
Securities and Futures Commission SEEE 50 -
Deposits with the Compensation Fund EAMARIMAERARREES
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Re
Limited 100 =
Fidelity Fund with The Stock Exchange of &HABMERZMBER DA ERES
Hong Kong Limited 100 =
Contribution to the Central Clearing and HREERTW ZGREESHER
Settlement System Guarantee Fund 100 =
Reserve Fund deposit with SEHK Option ~ &EMAX ZTHRLEEMAR A
Clearing House Limited AlEHEE 3,261 -
3,711 -
22. INVENTORIES 22. 78
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R=ZZE-NF RIZE-N\F
+=ZA=+—-H TZA=1t—H
HKS$’000 HK$'000
BETFT BETFT
Finished goods FX o 13,262 34,585
Less: Allowance for slow-moving inventories il : % $517 & % & (23) (19)
13,239 34,566

The reversal of write-down of inventories arose due to
the increase in estimated net realisable value of certain
goods as a result of sales of slow-moving inventories
recognised during the year.

Guoan International Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. ERE FERX
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

R=B-NF RIF-NF
t=A=t-8B t=-A=+—H

HKS$’000 HK$'000
BETFT B TF T
Trade receivables arising from other REHFRXZEEAFRERBEREFE
ordinary course of business of dealing £ ZEWE Z KA
in securities transactions:
- Cash clients -BerP 3,152 -
— Margin clients —-FERP 125,099 -
— Futures and options clients —-HERBERP 1,166 -
— Clearing houses (note i) — B (HaEi) 37,849 -
167,266 =
Less: Allowance for B BHEEEBRRE
expected credit loss (286) =
166,980 =
Trade receivables from the ordinary HEEBBRETELAZEKRE S
course of business, except for B EHFRHEEEBRKRIN
business of dealing in securities
transactions 170,818 149,894
Less: Allowance for B RHEEEERE
expected credit loss (139,506) (139,290)
31,312 10,604
Total trade receivables fEW B 5 RN A% 198,292 10,604
Note: B &
(i)  As at 31 December 2019, the amount included receivable () RZFT-—NF+ZA=+—80 %
from the SEHK Options Clearing House Limited of HREBREEEBMER SRS
approximately HK$36,256,000. HEAR A 2 FEWRIE L B

36,256,0007T °
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. EREZRR (&)

164

Trade receivables from other ordinary course of
business of dealing in securities transactions

The settlement terms of trade receivables from cash
clients, futures and options clients and clearing houses
arising from other ordinary course of business of dealing
in securities are normally due within two trading days
after the trade date. The trade receivables from cash
clients, margin clients and futures and option clients are
recognised on trade date and recoverable on settlement
date or according to agreed repayment schedules, and
bearing an interest rate at prime rate plus 5%, prime
rate plus 4.5% and prime rate plus 1% per annum
respectively. Trade receivables from margin clients are
secured by the underlying pledged securities. Credits
are extended to securities margin clients subject to the
marginable value of the listed securities pledged with the
Group. The margin ratios are reviewed and determined
periodically. At the end of the reporting period, fair value
of marketable securities pledged by securities margin
clients was HK$536,599,000.

The Group offsets certain trade receivables and trade
payables as the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the balances and intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the balances simultaneously.

No aging analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the aging analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of business in
margin financing.

Trade receivables from the ordinary course of business,
except for business of dealing in securities transactions
At the end of the reporting periods, the aging analysis
of the trade receivables from the ordinary course of

business, except for business of dealing in securities
transactions, based on the invoice date, is as follows:—

Guoan IAternationaI Limited Annual Report 2019
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BEARSBHREIAMEARSHAE
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e MEHE M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. EREZ R (4)
Trade receivables from the ordinary course of business, AERBBEFZEKE ZRL
except for business of dealing in securities transactions EARGEBEBRI (&)
(continued)
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

R=ZB-1& RZF-N\F
tT=A=t+-B t=-A=+—-H

HKS$’000 HK$'000
BETF T BT T

Current and within one month BIEg K — & A A 15,802 4,270

One to three months —Z=={d8A 9,686 5,822

More than three months, but less than “EAREE+=@EAUR

twelve months 6,014 499
Over twelve months TZEANKE 139,316 139,303
170,818 149,894

Less: allowance for expected credit loss i : B M BB 1B B & (139,506) (139,290)

31,312 10,604

Notes: Bk

(@) The credit terms granted to the Group’s customers vary (@ HKLTAKEEEFPZREHZET
and are generally the results of negotiations between the [ —M IR & B EE R % PR
Group and individual customers. ZHEER -

(b) Included in the trade receivables balances are debtors (b) EUWEZFEFEHBERRSHE
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately B ER 2 AR E A #AB7,449,0007T
HK$7,449,000 (31 December 2018: HK$6,334,000) which (ZB-NF+-RA=+—H: &%
are overdue at the reporting date for which the Group has 6,334,0007T) * HEAS & B I K 7%
not provided for impairment loss as there has not been a EoHEEREBEBREEG RAA
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are EEERHANBEEREEHARZK
still considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any EeBMERAR TWE - KEER
collateral over these balances. WA ZEEARFFE EMERm-

BEZERARAFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. BIRE B R (&)

Trade receivables from the ordinary course of business, AEXRBBEFZEKE ZRHL

except for business of dealing in securities transactions EHERGEBEBRI (&)

(continued)

Notes: Hfat -

(©)  The movement of the allowance for expected credit loss (00 HEEXEGBEBEPELAZEWRZZE
of trade receivables from the ordinary course of business, ?A (BARHEEXEBREKEZ SR
except for business dealing in securities transactions trade B%?l\)i‘ﬁmﬁﬁa,ﬁﬂgﬁfﬁ“@ﬁﬂ
receivables is as follows:— ZZDT :

At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

R-ZZB-N#F R-ZF-N\F
t=A=+-B +=A=+-~

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

At the beginning of the year READ 139,290 139,305

Allowance for expected credit loss EHEEEERE 211 -

Exchange difference &K = 5 (15)

At the end of the year NER 139,506 139,290

(d) The aging analysis of the trade receivables which are (d EBaBERREZEREZERZ
overdue but not impaired is as follows: BRER AT T -

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

R=B-n%E RZB-N\F
+=g=+-8 +=A=+-H

HK$’000 HK$°000

EBEFT BT

One to three months overdue BH—Z==EA 7,407 5,822
More than three months, but less than #HEfBE=@A - BLR+ @A

twelve months overdue 22 499

Over twelve months overdue BME+ @A E 20 13

7,449 6,334
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24, ENFRE -ReREMEWRR
RECEIVABLES i)
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
RZIE-HAE RKRZIZ—NF
+=ZA=+-H +=A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$000
B FT BT
Prepayments TS FE 5,296 3,461
Deposits e 5,005 5,731
Other receivables H 4 M FR0E 2,645 2,459
12,946 11,651
CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 25. EHNEEREGHARE
LIABILITIES
(a) Contract assets (a) EHEE
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
RZIE-AE RZIZ—NF
+=ZA=+-H +=A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
B FT BT
Contract assets relating to asset BEEEENESBEEALER
management and advisory on securities 7 & 41& E
contract 1,155 =

The contract assets are primarily related to
the Group’s right to consideration for asset
management and advisory on securities contract
because the rights are conditional upon the Group’s
fulfilment of certain performance. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the
rights become unconditional.

BHEETREAEEYREEER
AkESERGORENENER R
A% ENBGARBEEZERE TRR
BAATITE - GNEERE BER
RRERTREERIE SRR

BEZERARAFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

25. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 25. EHNEEREGNAERE (&)
LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Contract liabilities (b) EXERE
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

R=B-7%F RZF-NF
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-8

HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFT BT
Contract liabilities relating to asset HEEEERBLFBEHANEH
management and advisory on securities Z A4 EE
contract 265 =
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount TECHRAGHNEESENEE
of contract liabilities recognised are as follows: NRIGEHET :
Generally, the Group receives a lump sum amount —BmE AEREEREITEL
of asset management fee and advisory on securities ‘HIERAANRIIEES —RM
fee in advance for a specified range of time from WREEEREREFERE -
customers when they sign the contract. This lump ZE-REFBULERBER
sum amount received is recognised as a contract BERR KRBT ERRERHE
liability initially and to be recognised overtime as BWRBUA -
revenue when performances obligation are satisfied.
Movement in contract liabilities: BHEEES:
HK$'000
BT T
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 38) W — R B A (HaE38) 1,002
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of EIRATEITEEEERAZHTEER
billing in advance of assets management BRBEEEM
and advisory 531
Decrease in contract liabilities as result of EFRNBERBAZHE N B ERD
recognising revenue during the year (1,268)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 REZB-AF+ZA=+—HZ&HK 265
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS

The balances, which were carried at the prevailing market
interest rate at 1.70% (2018: 0.94%) p.a. represent
deposits pledged to a bank to secure bank overdraft
facilities (2018: secure bank borrowing) granted to
the Group, and therefore classified as current assets.
The pledged deposits will be released upon expiry or
termination or upon the settlement of relevant bank
overdraft facilities. At 31 December 2019 and 2018, all
the pledged time deposits were denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

(a) Segregated accounts

From the Group’s ordinary business in provision of
securities brokerage and related services, the Group
receives and holds more deposited by client in are
course of the conduct of the regulated activities.
These clients’” monies are maintained in segregated
bank accounts at market interest rates. The Group
has recognised the corresponding accounts payables
to respective clients. As at 31 December 2019, the
segregated accounts with authorised institutions in
securities relation to its brokerage business totalled
HK$121,789,000.

26.

27.

EEFERFR
BBTMHFENEI70% (ZF—N
F:094% )5 B2 ERIBIERER
ERTRITAERR T ASE 2 RTT
BXBE(ZF— \F EIURTE
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FRENEBRITEIREE R
LHEEERRER R_F-AFK
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ERE S E R LB E-

HERIRITHEER

(a) BIAKRFE
AL BIRMEEFHLL RIEER
B HEEBME  ARBERRK
EXHEEHBAE P WEIL
ERFTFARE ZEXFNIE
EmBHNEFERBILRITE
F-AEEBRABRNTEEFRZ
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 27. BERIBITHEER
(b) House accounts (b) BEERFE
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

R=Z-H& RZF-N\F
tT=A=t+-8B t=-A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BEF T
Cash at bank and in hand RITEHRREE 47,833 34,199
Notes: Mo aE -
(a) Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based (@) GFHRIBITZRETIBESH
on daily bank deposit rates. RITIFRF R 2 )% 8h 2 R BRER
*lj '%\ ©
(b)  The Group's bank balances are denominated in the (b) ANEBERITERATIIEEST
following currencies: &:
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

R-ZB-NF RZF—\F
t+=A=+-A +=A=+-H

HK$'000 HK$°000

BT T BT

Hong Kong Dollars et 41,896 32,692
Renminbi AR 411 462
Singapore Dollars ;T 251 389
United States Dollars ETT 5,195 48
Euro 7 30 553
Others Hh 50 55
47,833 34,199
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued) 27. RERBITEER (4)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from () METBHELEZ2EBHEK:
financing activities
Loan from
Loan from Bank the ultimate
a related and other holding Lease
party  borrowings company liabilities Total
—BHEAL BTR BRER
EX HifEE AREXR HERE At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BB BETTT BETT BETT BETT
(Note 30) (Note 31)
(HiE30) (Hiix31)

At 1 January 2018 R=B-N\$¥—F—H = 4,500 3,602 - 8,102
Change in financing cash flows:  BEB&HEEE:
Increase in bank RITREMEEEMN

and other borrowings - 57,000 - - 57,000
Repayment of bank BEFTRAMEBE

and other borrowings - (27,000) - - (27,000)
Total changes in financing BERSREEEY

cash flows - 30,000 - - 30,000
Others: Hit:
Exchange adjustments EH AR - - (46) = (46)
Other changes HiEE = = (46) = (46)
At 31 December 2018 R=B-NE+ZA=+-H - 34,500 3,556 - 38,056
Impact on adoption of Wﬂﬁ}% Eﬂ%iﬁ‘tﬁﬂ‘l

HKFRS 16 Fl6M T2 - - - 3,726 3,726
At 1 January 2019 R-E-AF¥-FA—-A - 34,500 3,556 3,726 41,782
Change in financing cash flows: BEB&REEE:
Increase in bank RTREMEEREM

and other borrowings - 332,500 - - 332,500
Repayment of a related party BE—RBEBAL (12,000) - - - (12,000)
Repayment of bank BERTRAMEE

and other borrowings - (207,000) - - (207,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities ERHERR - - - (3,940) (3,940)
Total changes in financing BERENEME

cash flows (12,000) 125,500 - (3,940) 109,560
Others: Hifr:
Acquisition of a subsidiary WENE AR (H138)

(Note 38) 12,000 - - - 12,000
New leases entered/modified BEY/BIHAE - - - 5,332 5,332
Other changes Hitn s 12,000 - - 5,332 17,332

At 31 December 2019 RZEB-h&+-A=1+—-H - 160,000 3,556 5,118 168,674
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. ENE SRR
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R=Z-1F RIZT-N\F
t=A=t-B +t=ZA=+—A
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFTT BT T
Trade payables arising from other REFRZEEARERBRFTE
ordinary course of business of dealing £ ZENEZKERK:
in securities transactions:
— Cash clients —-ReRP 37,447 -
- Margin clients —-HFRERF 77,318 -
— Futures and options clients —HERBAEREP 50,548 -
- Others —Hfb 717 -
166,030 =
Trade payables from the ordinary AEEEBEIELZERESR
course of business, except for business ' EH X 5 B & ZK KR
of dealing in securities transactions 19,593 10,540
Total trade payables JENE SRR ARHE 185,623 10,540
Trade payables arising from other ordinary course of REBEEXZEEAMA 5 XK BE

business of dealing in securities transactions

The settlement terms of trade payables from the business
of dealing in securities are two days after trade date, and
those of trade payables arising and recognising from the
business of dealing in options contracts are the trade
date. Interest is payable to any individual cash client with
the balance over HK$100,000 at 0.01% per annum. No
aging analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of directors of
the Company, the aging analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of this business.

Trade payables to clients arising from the business
of dealing in options are cash deposits received from
clients for their trading of these contracts. The required
cash deposits are repayable upon the closure of the
corresponding options position. The excess of the
outstanding amounts over the required cash deposits
stipulated are repayable to clients on demand.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE_—F

TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

Trade payables arising from other ordinary course
of business of dealing in securities transactions
(continued)

Except for the trade payables to clients arising from the
business of dealing in securities which bear interest at a
fixed rate, all the trade payables are non-interest bearing.

Trade payables from the business of dealing in securities
amounting to HK$121,789,000 are payable to external
clients in respect of the segregated bank balances
received and held for clients in the course of the conduct
of the regulated activities. However, the Group does
not have a currently enforceable right to offset these
payables with the deposits placed.

Trade payables from the ordinary course of business,
except for business of dealing in securities transactions

At the end of the reporting periods, the aging analysis of
the trade payables from the ordinary course of business,
except for business of dealing in securities transactions,
based on the invoice date, is as follows:—

e MEHE M
—NE+-A=1+—BLEFE

28. Eﬁ%’%,ﬂﬁ (%)

EHFERGEEEMAREEEBET
/XSEZ/@HjT%ﬁEr (%)

B% L EERRELZCRNEPES
FRFIZICR ARG BN A RN E
BRI AL S -

?ﬁﬁéi&ﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬂﬁ#ﬁ%}fu&
BEBECBYRTEGBTE &
BEBEEBEEACENESRFBE
121,789,000 C/BAINBE A - A&
i+ 2N 55 [ 35 FRF 7 4 1] o I SR 1 T AE
LAFME R 2 & B H2 S e 5

AERBHEEDZ ENEZBRAX
BHEXZEEEEB
RBERK AREB (BEXHE
BEEBRNBRAELE Y ENE
SRR ZERSN (REREH) D
T

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

R=ZB-hE R-ZE—NE

+=ZA=+—-H +=—A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

BEFT BT T

Current and within one month B R — @ AR 11,797 3,843
One to three months mA—Z=={@A 7,787 3,491
Over three months BAI=E A A £ 9 3,206
19,593 10,540
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29. ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER 29. EstEAREMENFIE
PAYABLES
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

R-ZB-N&E RZF-N\F
t=A=t-8B t=A=1+—H

HK$’000 HK$°000
BETFT BT T
Accrued charges fest &R 894 620
Other payables (note) Hoft JE T 5RIE (B at) 57,059 52,043
Interest payable JE A 1) 2 10,942 -
68,895 52,663

Note: Bt et -
At 31 December 2019, other payables comprised an RZZE—NF+ZA=1+—8 HitfER
amount due to a former director, Mr. Sy Ethan, Timothy, of FIBEIEEMNAMTE B E L LR
approximately HK$37,596,000 (2018: HK$40,247,000). The #) 7 #37,596,0007T (=T — N\F : B
amount is interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand. 40,247,0007T) e B AR L - EEA R

AR ERERE-

30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 30. SRITREMEE
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

R=B-7EF RZF-NF
+=A=+-A +=A=t+-A

HK$°000 HK$°000
BYEFT BT
Secured EHEA
— bank borrowings —RITEE - 34,500
— other borrowings —HEEE 160,000 -
160,000 34,500
Carrying amounts of secured FEEREERBITREAMEEZR
Bank and other borrowings repayable: HE
— Within one year or on demand ——FANRIEEK 160,000 34,500

1 74 Guoan International Limited Annual Report 2019
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)
Note:

At 31 December 2018, the bank borrowings of approximately
HK$34,500,000 are secured by the pledged time deposits,
carried interested rates at HIBOR plus 2.5% per annum and
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.

At 31 December 2019, the other borrowing of approximately
HK$160,000,000, is secured by the building owned by the
Group (Note 15), carried fixed-interest rates at 8% to 14% per
annum and denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.

LOAN FROM THE ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

At 31 December 2019, the loan from the ultimate
holding company of approximately HK$3,556,000 (31
December 2018: HK$3,556,000) represents the loan
from the ultimate holding company to the Company
and is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 28 February 2019, the Company issued convertible
bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$300,000,000 which borne an interest rate of
3.8% per annum (“Convertible Bonds”) as a part of
consideration for acquisition of Yicko Securities Limited
(Note 38). The Convertible Bonds entitled the holder to
convert them into ordinary shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.26 per ordinary share and will
be converted into 1,153,846,153 shares assuming full
conversion. Conversion may occur at any time during the
term of the convertible bonds

The Convertible Bonds contain two components: liability
and equity components. The equity element is presented
in equity heading “Convertible bonds reserve”.

30.

31.

32.

WITRHEMEE (&)

ff it -

R-ZE—NFE+-_A=+—RH R7EEH
#4975 34,500,0007T LA TE HA 17 SUAEK 3F -
WA B B R EHFEM2.5% 2 FF L5t 8
K AEEEHE

R-E—hE+-_A=+—RH HiEH
#4975 #160,000,000 T A A £ B HEE 2 1
FEER (F5E15) - W LARE E F F 8%
E14%5T B RABEETE-

REERQIFER

RZFE—-NAF+—ZA=+—H0B &%
44 B N B B F 4 B #3,556,0000T
(ZE—NF+ZA=+—8: 8K
3,556,0007T ) & &R ZER A R M AR
R zER BEBEEE 28R
BIREREE-

AR ES

R-E—NAF-_A=-+/\H KA7F
1T R & 4858 B 75 300,000,000
Z AR E S R FFE3.8%FT &
([T @pkES])  EA KBRS RS
BERAR ([Tmm]) 2B RE (M
38) A MR EHEREIF A ARER
BERTARBE 26T EE R A
AAE LB BRBHEHR o a2
¥ 51,153,846,1530% A% {7 2 #2 A g
7 P] 2 % & 5 B PR R (Efr B P B 4 ©

THRBRESBEMED A kg
B EEmEO N [ARRESFE]
2 REET
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The Convertible Bonds information are presented as

follows:

32. JARESH (&)

Convertible Bond

—NE+-A=1+—BLEFE

ARBESFEMZI T2

Convertible Bond

Convertible Bond

2020 2021 2022
(“CB 2020") (“CB 2021") (“CB 2022")
—E-EF —E--—F —E-ZfF
ARRES ARRES ARKRES
(MT=2=%2fF (=2=—-% ([=2==F
MBMRES]) mBRRES]) BaRES])
Principle amount
PNk
— as at 28 February 2019 HK$100,000,000 HK$100,000,000 HK$100,000,000

-R=E-NAE=-A=F+/\H

Issue date:

BITEH:

Maturity date:
388

Conversion price per share

FRERE
Discount rate

BRI %

Effective interest rate

BERAIR

In HK$ settlement
3.8% p.a. payable
Annually
751#100,000,0007T
LA B E
FFER3.8%
BF

28 February 2019
—ZE-NE
—A=+N\R
28 February 2020

HK$0.260
7 10.260 7T
5.68%
5.68%
5.68%
5.68%

The Convertible bonds recognised in the consolidated

In HK$ settlement
3.8% p.a. payable
Annually

75 #100,000,0007T
DA HE 5
HEFEN3.8%
BEF

28 February 2019
—ZNEF
—A=+NR
28 February 2021

HK$0.260
75 10.260 7T
5.68%
5.68%
7.15%
7.15%

In HK$ settlement
3.8% p.a. payable
Annually

75 #100,000,00070
PN
HEEN3.8%
BF

28 February 2019
—Z2-NEF
—A=t+N\H
28 February 2022
—Eo—F
—RA=+NR
HK$0.260
7510.260 7T
5.68%

5.68%

9.94%

9.94%

RER A M BN R AR < A AHE

statement of financial position was calculated as follows: HFErEWMT
CB2020 CB2021 CB2022 Total
—E_EE —EC-—£ —ECCFE
ARRESs ARREF UTBRRES @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEFT BEF T BEF T
Liability component BEHD 98,222 94,149 85,837 278,208
Equity component gtz 1,064 5,858 14,165 21,087
Nominal value of convertible RETEHBARRES 2AE
bonds on issue date 99,286 100,007 100,002 299,295
At 28 February 2019 \=T-NE=-A=1+N\RH 98,222 94,149 85,837 278,208
Imputed interest charge HEMEY 4,668 5,626 7,132 17,426
Coupon interest payable ENEEF S (3.177) (3.177) (3,177) (9,531)
At 31 December 2019 R=Z-AF+=A=t+-8H 99,713 96,598 89,792 286,103
Current portion BEES S 99,713 - - 99,713
Non-current portion FABEBS - 96,598 89,792 186,390

Guoan International Limited

Annual Report 2019
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33. DEFERRED TAXATION 33. IEEBIIE
(a) Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities recognised (a) ERRELEREBE(EE) &
&
The components of deferred tax liabilities FAREGE M BIRRARAERZ
recognised in the consolidated statement of RIETIA R BE D M E 0
financial position and the movements during the I
year are follows:
Accelerated Expected
tax credit loss Convertible
Depreciation allowance Bonds Total
BHEE
MEBERE FRRE ARRES @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BEFT BT BT
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\$—-A—H 552 - - 552
Change to the statement of RERBEREMEZANRER

profit or loss and other Nk

comprehensive income

for the year 52 - - 52
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE-\$+ZA=+—-H

1 January 2019 EZE-NE—A—H 604 - - 604
Acquisition of a subsidiary WeiE—EM B AR (faE38)

(Note 38) (45) (250) - (295)
Issuance of convertible bonds BT ES - - 3,596 3,596
Change/(credited) to the Mk (GIA)AFEERER

statement of profit or loss and HizEKER

other comprehensive income

for the year 65 (19 (1,304) (1,258)
At 31 December 2019 RZZB-AF+ZA=t-H 624 (269) 2,292 2,647

BEZERARAFE
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33. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

(a) Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities recognised

33. IEERE (&)

(a) ERAELEHE(EE) &

(continued) & (&)
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZE-NF RIZ-N\F
tT=A=t-8B tZA=+—A
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFT BT T
Net deferred tax asset recognised RERE BT R AR 2 BT
in the consolidated statement of HRBEEFE
financial position 269 =
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised ~ R4RA B IEAAN R NHER Z T
in the consolidated statement of HEaGEEESE
financial position (2,916) (604)
(2,647) (604)

34. LEASE LIABILITIES
At 31 December 2019, the Group had lease liabilities as

34. HEAE
RZE—NFE+_A=+—"H &&E

178

follows: BrHEEaEHIWT:
2019
Present
value of the 2019
minimum Total
lease minimum
payments lease
—E-AEF —E-AEF
RIEHEENSK REHEE
ZRE TR R
HK$'000 HK$'000
B F T BEF T
Within 1 year 1F R 3,570 3,668
After 1 year but within 2 years 1824 1,548 1,554
5,118 5,222
Less: total future interest expenses T R R B B ST AR KR (104)
Present value of lease liabilities HEaBEZRE 5,118
Analysed by: HIAT o8 :
Rental premises HEMZE 5,118

Guoan International Limited

Annual Report 2019
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34. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 34. HERE (&)
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the AEBRBKETERNEVNLERAE
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the B BHREERE 165 WHBRZ
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise T-NF—H—BZ B LARE
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously REMBBREB ST ERENTRSE
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. AREEHE HERB HEAR-
Comparative information as at 31 December 2018 has RZZE-NF+TA=1T—HZLR
not been restated. Further details on the impact of the ERWARES - BEZBBNBEHRE
transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in Note 2. HRF16R 2 B2 E—FFHBERN
BaE2 -
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. g7
Number of Share
Share capital
KRR [
HK$'000
BT T
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December R—_E—N\F—H—HB =&
2018, 1 January 2019 and 31 —N\E+=—_R=+—H ==
December 2019, ordinary sharesof —hE—A—BE-ZT—R
HK$0.01 each Ft-A=+—8 SKAEE
BE0.01m 2 BB 20,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At 1 January 2018, 31 December R_E-—NF—H—QH"
2018, 1 January 2019 and —E—-N\F+=A
31 December 2019, ordinary shares =+—H - — %
of HK$0.01 each —A—BEZ=ZZF—NF
+TZA=+—RH SKkEE
B0 2 E B 7,748,960,899 77,489

BEZERARAFE
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36. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 36. EEEAZH
(a) Staff cost (a) EIRAK

The total staff cost of the Group during the year RERN AEEZEITKALRE
(including directors and senior management (BREENEREEAS 2]

180

(b)

Guoan International Limited

emoluments) is as follows: )R
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BE HE
—2-nE —ET-N\F
+t=A=+—-HB +t=A=+—-H
IEFE IFFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and allowances e KOER 31,370 35,207
Staff welfare 1B B & A 179 361
Contributions to retirement fund R/R & 3% 1,118 1,388
32,667 36,956

Directors and senior management

emoluments

The emoluments of the Directors are as follows:

(b) EEREREBEAEZHE

EEMemT

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-Z-NE+-A=t-HLEE

Contributions
Salaries and to retirement

Fees  allowances fund Total
Name of Directors EEfZ e HepEE  BASEX At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$000
BETFT BEFT BETT BEFT
Executive directors HiTEZE
Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian it gited - 1,380 18 1,398
Mr. SO Haw, Herman (note (i) BRAE (Wi0) - 1,380 18 1,398
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Mr. DU Jun HELE - - - -
Mr. LI Xiang Yu TRELE - - - -
Mr. CUI Ming Hong ERLELE - - - -
Ms. BAI Wei (note (iii) WEL L (B i) - - - -
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BUF#H1TEE
Mr. WONG Chun Man TREE 360 - - 360
Mr. TSE Yung Hoi HEEEE 360 - - 360
Mr. NG Man Kung RYBEE 360 - - 360
1,080 2,760 36 3,876

Annual Report 2019
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36. BE®AIZH (&)
(b) EEREREBASZME
(%&)

Year ended 31 December 2018
E-2-/\ETZAT-AILEE

36. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)

(b) Directors and senior management
emoluments (continued)

Contributions
Salaries and  to retirement
Fees allowances fund Total
Name of Directors BEhA e FeREH  RREHER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEFT BEFT BETT
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian EVE S - 1,380 18 1,398
Mr. SO Haw, Herman (note (i) BELA (H0) - 1,380 18 1,398
Non-executive Director HUTEE
Mr. DU Jun HELE = - = -
Mr. LI Xiang Yu e - - - _
Mr. CUI Ming Hong ERELE = - - -
Mr. YANG Li Ming (note (ii)) BB SA (Ht (i) - - - -
Ms. BAI Wei (note (iii) WELL (B i) - - - -
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BUH##HTEE
Mr. WONG Chun Man TEEE 360 = = 360
Mr. TSE Yung Hoi E b bt 360 - - 360
Mr. NG Man Kung RIHEE 360 - - 360
1,080 2,760 36 3,876
Note: Bfat -
()  Mr. SO Haw, Herman was resigned as executive () HBALLACBEEIHITES B

director with effect from 31 January 2020.

—E-EF—A=+—HELE
e

(i) Mr. YANG Li Ming was resigned as non-executive (i) HBUBAEERTIERTES:

director with effect from 23 August 2018. B /\FN\A-+=H#
Ao

(i) Ms. BAl Wei was appointed as non-executive (i) MHBELEZTAEIERNTE

director with effect from 23 August 2018.

= BAF-N\FNA=+=
HEER -

BEZERARAFE
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36. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued) 36. EERAXZH (&)
(c) Five highest paid individuals () EEESHMAL

The five individuals with the highest emoluments HE-Z—hWF+=ZRA=+—
in the Group for the year ended 31 December BEFEE AEBREESH
2019 included two (2018: two) Directors whose MATBREMRSG (ZZE—N\F:
emoluments are set out in Note 36(b). The M%) EE o H S MY R
aggregate of the emoluments payable in respect 36(b) RERNENTZ=4
of the three (2018: three) highest paid individuals ZE-)\F ZR)REFMA
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the T (WIHEARARREEHEETH

Company, during the year are as follows: AB)ZFM@sEmT :
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BE HE
—E-NF —E-)N\F
+=ZA=+—-8 +=—A=+—-H
IHEE IFFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Salaries and allowances e MOER 2,844 2,086
Contributions to retirement fund Rk & H % 44 61
2,888 2,147

Number of individual

AE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZE H=E
—E-NEF —E—N\F
+=B=+-8 t=A=+-8
IEFEE IEFE
Emolument bands: AR
Nil to HK$1,000,000 BHEZ T = A% 1,000,0007T 2 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 & #51,000,0017T&
7% 1,500,0007T 1 =
3 3

1 82 Guoan International Limited Annual Report 2019
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 6 March 2015 pursuant to which
employees and directors of the Group and other eligible
persons who have made contribution to the Group
were given opportunity to obtain equity holdings in the
Company.

A summary of the Scheme is set out as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group.

Participants of the Scheme

Eligible participants include full time employees
and directors of the Company or its subsidiaries;
advisers, consultants, suppliers and agents to the
Company or its subsidiaries and such other persons
who, at the sole determination of the board of
directors, have contributed to the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme and percentage of issued
share capital at the date of this annual
report

No share option had been granted under the
Scheme and no share is available for issue under the
Scheme at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
under the Scheme

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue unless
the same is approved by shareholders in general
meeting.

37. BIRAETE
R-ZZ—AF=RNH RNAFHER
—IRERERT & ([5181]) AEEZ
BEREEUREHAKEELER
ZEMEEBRATHESHEMEA
NG e

AEZMEHIMT

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BEZERARAFE

ArElZB W

FHElZ B MEREARRRIRHE
BHETHESRE FRESH
AEBEMERER 2 R E R -

HElzemE
ABRSEEDEAA TR EN
BARZEREERES AL
AR EME A T 2 R
B R RAELREEE S
MR R A B BB K
AL e

REFTETHBT 2ROBE
REFFHERAHEHRITREZ
Bt

AR B HIN AR AR AT &R
B - TME R D RIEE &R
BT

REFEASTSRECRSRE

RAEM2ME A BMETER T &
2mEZERE(BEETE
B R HARTT R Z AR )
BERITRBETZRDBHETE
BBERTRMNI% HERRE
BERA G Lt /EA BBACERER I -

|
—E-NEFH
|
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 37. B HERE (®)

184

(e) The period within which the shares must be (e) REBREARBRMDZHR
taken up under an option
At any time during a period to be notified by the EEgRA 2 RN EARRE -
board of directors, which period not to exceed 10 B B HAE NS B B BB AR
years commencing on the date on which the option HHARET 105 - WHRIBRZ 104
is accepted and expiring on a day not later than the HExE—BER-
last day of the 10-year period.
(f) The minimum period for which an option (f) BREATTEAEFEZR
must be held before it can be exercised 55 HA PR
None, unless otherwise determined by the board B RIFEFEFTEEUARE
of directors and specified in the offer letter of an REZL AN SITEIA
option.
(g) The amount payable on application or () REERIZEMERERENR
acceptance of the option and the period B R MHESR AR R A
within which payments or calls must or may AREEENEEERZHR
be made or loans for such purposes must be
repaid
HK$1.00 is to be paid as consideration for the grant BEBRES QL3308 AE
of option within 30 days from the date of offer. B 00T EARE -
(h) The basis of determining the exercise price (h) BEETHEEZEE
The exercise price shall be determined by the board THEEEHESESET  HTE
of directors but shall not be less than the highest of: BERTIE&S
(i)  the closing price of the shares as stated in the (i) RONRBFLEBEBRM
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange HWEXRM 2l m
on the date of offer; B

(i) the average closing price of the shares as (i RHONEBEERLE BAISHE
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the EEREBIMERARE
Stock Exchange for the 5 business days KO 2 FHARTE: &
immediately preceding the date of offer; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share. (i) —RRfRMm 2 HEE-

(i) The remaining life of the Scheme (i) FrEIFERER
The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period FEIR - —hE= A/NAHEMR
of 10 years commencing on the adoption date on 6 EHEEF10FABK -

Guoan International Limited

March 2015.

No share option has been granted under the
Scheme since its adoption.

Annual Report 2019
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ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 13 February 2018, Exquisite Honor Holdings
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement for
the acquisition of 100% of the issued share capital
of Yicko Securities Limited (“Yicko”) at a total
consideration HK$420,000,000, which was satisfied as
to HK$120,000,000 in cash and HK$300,000,000 by the
issue of the convertible bonds by the Company. Yicko
provides financial services to the clients which consist
of securities brokerage services (including securities and
stock option broking), placing and underwriting services
(such as acting as underwriter and placing agent for
equity securities, which include initial public offerings
on the Main Board (the “Main Board”) or the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange
respectively, and placements/rights issue/open offers in
Hong Kong), securities margin financing service and asset
management service. The acquisition was completed
on 28 February 2019. Please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 14 February 2018 and 28 February
2019 and the Company’s circular dated 24 May 2018.

Details of the purchase consideration and the net assets
acquired are as follows:—

38. WiE—EKMEBAA

R-E—N\F-A+=H AQ7=E
& [} /8 2 F]Exquisite Honor Holdings
Limitedpt KBS EHFBR QA
([EE]1)Z2100% 2 BETRAIZE
E W 2R E A% ¥420,000,000
JT - H A %5120,000,000 T LA & 2
<t & 7% #300,000,0007T i i@ 3 17 A
AEABRRESSIF -mmREFRE
HEBRE AEFHFLCLCRD (RIE
BHEEREHELRL) BEREH
RS (NEERAZTSN B HEE R
ERE (BESBIRERAER (£
1) HGEM ([GEM ] ) B IX A 5
BE URBBRE MR A%
B BFETERERBEREEEE
RF4MK - WBEBEBER T —NF
“AZ+HNBEK -BREARAFA
HMA-_E—N\E_-_A+tHAR=-Z
—NEFE-ZA-F+NBZAEURARN
RIAPAE-—Z— /\FRA=-tWMAZ

BERERKBEEEFRZIABEH
CZp S N

Purchase consideration BERE
HK$'000
BT T
Cash consideration HeERE 120,000
Fair value of convertible bonds issued BERTIBRERESZAFEE 299,295
Total consideration #E 419,295
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38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 38. WiE — BB QT (&)

Purchase consideration (continued) BERE (&)
The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the HUEZHEBRZEERBER
acquisition are as follows:— L N

Fair value

AEEE

HK$'000

BETFT
Property, plant and equipment I ER NN 133
Other assets Ht&EE 2,309
Deferred tax assets BT IBE E 295
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss & BB A AT EBEIIEZ S REE 4
Trade and other receivables JE W B 5 B 3R B EL At FE W R IE 178,050
Tax recoverable AJ 4 Bl 18 421
Bank balances — Segregated accounts IRITREBR—BIRR 123,547
Bank balances — House accounts RITHEBR—BBEERF 16,150
Cash on hand FEES 3
Bank overdraft RITEX (7,819)
Trade and other payables FET 8 5 BR 3k K EL 4t JE < 5RIB (179,917)
Contract liabilities BHAEE (1,002)
Loans from a related party BERER (12,000)
Net identifiable assets acquired B A BRI & E R R 120,174
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 17) WHEES 28 (Hat17) 299,121
Total fair value of consideration paid: ENREZERATFEE: 419,295
The acquisition contributed revenues of HK$33,978,000 RZE—NF=A—HBE=-Z—1F
and net profit of HK$21,161,000 to the Group for the +ZA=+—BHHE KEREAEE
period from 1 March 2019 to 31 December 2019. If B Bt ES 8 #533,978,0007T & 4l Il
the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2019, the #21,161,0007 e WM EER =T — N,
pro-forma revenue and profit for the year ended 31 F-A-HBELE BE_ZT-NF
December 2019 would have been HK$42,337,000 and +-A=+—BHIEEEZHEERER
HK$27,429,000 respectively. The Directors consider that sm F #8 9 Bl) & 75 #42,337,0007T & 75
these pro-forma numbers represent an approximate #27,429,000L  EER B % EHE
measure of the performance of the combined group on EHFIHENFEEZEHERR
an annualised basis and provide a reference point for RBAOFE  WIRHSZH UMK
comparison in future periods. REABIELL R o
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FEMBEREME
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 38. WiE—EMEATR (&)

Purchase consideration (continued) BERE (&)
Purchase consideration — cash outflow: BERE-RERD:
HK$'000
BT T
Cash consideration HERE 120,000
Less: Bank balance — House accounts BRTTHEB-BBRR (16,150)
Less: Cash on hand FFEEIR® (3)
Add: Bank overdraft MERITEX 7,819
Net outflow of cash W R FE 111,666
Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$3,218,000 W % A8 B B 7N 8 #63,218,0007T B R
have been recognised as an expense in the period, AEEBEZIGFEEBRRNEM B
within the “administrative expenses” line item in the KANTTTBHEZ I BTERAERNZ
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other B o
comprehensive income.
39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 39. TEBEALRF
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances detail MBREEERRPEM T 25
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the NRBEHMAIN REBERFRHEEE
Group had the following material transactions with ATETATEARS:
related parties during the years:
(a) The Group had the following transactions (a) AEBENFRERBFEALTET
with the related parties during the years: RN
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
Notes 2019 2018
= HE
—E-NF —E-N\F
+t=A=+—-HB +=ZA=+—H
Kt aE LEEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Commission and brokerage B A KA TUWE 7 H4
income received from: R AE AU A 7
— related parties —BEAT 7 -
— directors —EF 73 -
— immediate —BEEERAT
holding company 98 =
Asset management services BIATATWERZ EE
income received from: B AR WA - 7
— directors —EF 111 -

BEZERARAFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 39. TEBEALRZ (4)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) The outstanding balances with related (b) R|BEHREBEEA L ZRE
parties at the end of the reporting period are EEREEMT
as follows:
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R=—Z—hFd RKRZE—N\F
+=A=+-8B +t—A=+—8H
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
it aF BT T BT T
Amounts due from related  FEUgRE:E A L+
parties included in: I A
- margin clients receivable —EBWRZFLEF
ZBRR 23 26 -
Amounts due from directors FEUE E R IEET A ¢
included in:
— contract assets —EHNEE 25 82 -
Amounts due to related JE 1 BE 8 A 5B AT
parties included in: A
— futures and options —EHHERRER
clients payable P 2R 28 376 -
- margin clients payable —-ERNRELEF
ZBRR 28 3 -
Amounts due to directors JEfTEEIBRT A
included in:
— cash clients payable —-EBRNRERF 2K
EEN 28 480 =
— margin clients payable - ENRESEF
ZBRR 28 339 -
— futures and options — BB &R
clients payable P ZERR 28 4,214 -
Amount due to the immediate FE{ B 3ZE LA B FUE
holding company included 5t A :
n:
— margin clients payable —-ERNRESEF
Z BRI 28 19,366 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30. TEMEALRF (48)

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

() Key management personnel compensation () EEEEBAEME
Compensation for key management personnel, EH 36 TR T 2ER
including amount paid to the Directors, as disclosed AEBME (BEINTFESZK
in Note 36(b), is as follows: )R

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZE HE
—E-NEF —E-N\F
+=BA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
ILFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$°000
EBETF T BT T
Salaries and allowances e MRk 4,712 4,716
Contributions to retirement fund Rk & {3 51 90
4,763 4,806
40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 40. REHERIE

The Group as lessee AEEFERABAA

The Group leases certain of its properties under operating AEEREBELKEHELRHHERTY

lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated X -MWEZHEFHKEREET

for terms ranging from one to three years. R—FE=FTF

At the end of reporting periods, the Group had total REEBRR AEBERE T 7 HARF 2

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable Hi 2 TR BH S S E M R 2R 2 &

operating leases falling due as follows: REEREZQBNT -
At
31 December
2018
R-ZTE—-)N\F
+-—A=+—H
HK$'000
BT T
Within one year —F R 3,212
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_FEFRAFAEERNEBITEEN) 2,243
5,455

BEZERARAFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41. B AR R &R

At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R=ZBE-hE RIZE-N\F
+=A=+—-HB +=-—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$000
BT T BET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interest in subsidiaries [ DIEENGTR - E 430,044 10,749
Financial assets at fair value through BRBEAATEBEINEZ SR
profit or loss BE 11,560 13,800
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries WEEH B AR 2 e - 21,873
441,604 46,422
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits R IE - RE R HE A EUWIE
and other receivables 742 745
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE WP /B A B XA 286,893 336,781
Financial assets at fair value through FEBERUATFEEIRZESR
profit or loss BE 1,158 1,840
Cash and bank balances Be MRITES 12,366 24,178
301,159 363,544
Current liabilities nEBaE
Accrued charges and other payables FERT & A I H h FE 1+ 3B 16,392 6,532
Loan from the ultimate holding company ~ H& R A T E X 3,556 3,556
Bank borrowings RITEE - 30,000
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHBERE 47 -
Convertible bonds AR EH 99,713 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEHB B A B FA 151,139 5,844
270,847 45,932
Net current assets REBEEFE 30,312 317,612
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAE 471,916 364,034

Guoan International Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41. IR RER (&)
(continued)
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

R-ZB-h&E RIZ-N\F
+=B=+-B tZA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT BT T
Non-current liabilities nEBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIEA R 2,245 -
Convertible bonds B ESR 186,390 -
188,635 =
Net assets EEFRR 283,281 364,034
Equity s
Capital and reserves attributable to RRRHEEABIGERRFE
owners of the Company
Share capital N 77,489 77,489
Reserves (note) i (Hat) 205,792 286,545
Total equity mRER 283,281 364,034
The statements of financial position of the Company RN BIRARER AT EEER
was approved and authorised for issue by the board of ZEZTFMANBRERERET
directors of the Company on 9 April 2020 and are signed H O UWHTNYNESRKREE:
on its behalf by:
HUANG Zhen Qian Du Jun
EiR®R HE
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEF HITEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41. BRI F (&)
(continued)
Note: ff ot -
The reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 RZE-NEFERZE—N\F+ZA=+—
are as follows: BARQRZREEDT :
Capital Convertible
Share redemption bonds  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
EX Bf:-
) e &% E-
18 e 4 BiE At
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETT BETT BETT BETL

At 1 January 2018 WZ2-\E—fA—A 1,049,990 160 - (703,612) 346,538
Loss for the year FAEE = - - (59,993) (59,993)

At 31 December 2018 and R=ZE—/\E+=f

1 January 2019 =+—-BR=ZT-N&
—A—A 1,049,990 160 - (763,605) 286,545

Recognition of the R ER BRES

equity component of B

convertible bonds - - 21,087 - 21,087
Deferred tax on AMRRES ZEEHE

convertible bonds - - (3,596) - (3,596)
Loss for the year FREE = = (98,244) (98,244)

At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-AE+=AH

=t-H 1,049,990 160 17,491 (861,849) 205,792
At 31 December 2019, the Company has a distributable reserve, R-_ZE—hhE+_A=+—HB X272
of approximately HK$188,141,000 (2018: HK$286,385,000), Al DR 4 4 A 75 15188,141,0007T (=
represented by share premium exceed accumulated losses of T — N\ 4 : 5 1286,385,0007T ) * H 15K
the Company. Under the Companies Law (2014 Revision) of the DHEBREAATEEHEEIL D - RiEH
Cayman Islands, share premium of the Company is distributable EHERNAEA(ZE—WMFEE]) AR
to the members, subject to a solvency test. TR R E N K EEE RSB S IE TR

Ho
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE_—=

42. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(i)

(ii)

On 28 February 2020, the Company and Mr.
CHONG Chin and Ms. YAO Sze Ling, the holders of
the convertible bonds due 28 February 2020 (the
“1st Tranche Convertible Bonds”), entered into
a deed of extension to extend the maturity date
for repayment of the principal amount of the 1st
Tranche Convertible Bonds from 28 February 2020
to 28 November 2020. The transaction is in essence
a mere extension of time for repayment of a debt,
which is the principal amount of these convertible
bonds being HK$100,000,000, and there is no
extension of the conversion period for Mr. CHONG
Chin and Ms. YAO Sze Ling to exercise their right
to convert the 1st Tranche Convertible Bonds into
shares of the Company. Save for the aforesaid
alteration, all other terms and conditions of the
convertible bonds shall remain unchanged and in
full force and effect.

Since January 2020, the outbreak of Novel
Coronavirus (“COVID-19") has impacted the global
business environment. Up to the date of these
financial statements, COVID-19 has not resulted
in material impact to the Group. Pending the
development and spread of COVID-19 subsequent
to the date of these consolidated financial
statements, further changes in economic conditions
for the Group arising thereof may have impact
on the financial results of the Group, the extent
of which could not be estimated as at the date
of these consolidated financial statements. The
Group will continue to monitor the development
of COVID-19 and react actively to its impact on
the financial position and operating results of the
Group.

43. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as at 1 January
2019. Under the transition methods, the comparative
information is not restated.

44,

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M 35 8 5 P o

—NE+-A=1+—BLEFE

42, REHRESE

(i)

(ii)

RZE-_ZTF_A-_+N B 'K
AEER T ZTF-_A=+N
BEIBz R ES ([EHa]
ERELS|)ZFBARSLEE
MR HT R X LR L E R R
NiEEEa I mRESF A
BWZHHBBEBR_ZT=_ZTF_A
—tN\RERE-_ZE_TF+—
AZtNB -RXZAELEAE
REZER (MZETRERES
2 K4 %875 %100,000,0007T )
ZEE AMEERRGLER
EREPE = 2 SR HR - ATTIE R
SRR ESERARA
AIARAD 2 BRI o B Ll B T 4h -
MBRES B EMER R
EHEHREBRE YA+
j‘j °

BT _TF - ARBENH
AEMRFE ([COVID-19]) B ¥
FHREERBEAKTVE-HZE
ZEUE®RE HE - COVID-19
WAEHAEBEKRERATE - R
COVID- 19 ZEF 6 M B &K
H%&%E&E%%ﬁ E%L

%§E$¢l2%ﬁ¥ﬁ3
FE BREREEINZS
RAMERER B G - AEE
54 B ESRCOVID- 192 B R
I FEAR FE T AR EE SR
DS EHBEE I HE-

43. Lk B #H =

AEER=-Z

—NF—-A—HERE

REBM B REER 165 - RIFE
A WBERKTED -

44,

RETREKS

B E

EZSER T -_TFWUANBHE
NERENERE T B®RE -

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Directors on 9 April 2020.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFEMBIRE

RESULTS E 5
Fifteen
Year ended Yearended  months ended
31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 Year ended 30 September
BZ Bz e BEAB=THILEE
—E-nE “E-N\E “E—+F 2016 2015
+=ZA=+-8 +=RA=+-B +=RA=t—H HK$'000 HK$'000
LEE IHEE It+EEA —E-RE —T-nf
BETT BETL BETTL BEFTT BEFTL
Results E4
Revenue Wz 207,794 109,712 116,026 103,401 86,695
Loss before taxation BHREE 43,774 (43,841) (45,853) (25,299) (23,365)
Taxation P (2,814) 4 (39) - 20
Loss for the year attributable to:  JA T AT EEFEER:
Owners of the Company KRAEEA (45,417) (43,690) (45,892) (25,299) (23,345)
non-controlling interests FERER (1,171) (147) - - -
Dividends RE - - - - -
Assets and liabilities IHEERER
Total assets WEE 1,030,778 460,348 432,860 78,448 39,945
Total liabilities aak (714,924) (101,863) (53,767) (80,519) (16,850)
315,854 358,485 379,093 (2,071) 23,095
Equity attributable to owners KA REAE ARE(BER
of the Company 317,172 345,132 379,093 (2,071) 23,095
Non-controlling interests FERER (1,318) 13,353 = = =
Total equity s 315,854 358,485 379,093 (2,071) 23,095
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